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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MBENBE

Year Ended 31 March EZ=A=+—-HLEE

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
“Z--f% ZE-= “Z-mE —Z-1F CZE-RE
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000
TR THT TET THT Tz
Revenue Yzs 2,974,126 390,189 489,133 418,865 1,260,232
Gross profit/(loss) 5,/ (1) 1,388,303 32,302 (163,149) 82,683 233,979
Profit/(loss) before tax BERFE/ (BE) 926,036 (1,133,538) (787,604) (66,953) 19,799
Profit/(loss) for the year AR EREDR
attributable to ordinary BEANEGREE
equity holders of the Company 11 /(&%) 697,874 | (1,133,325) (787,356) (19,098) 130,408
Earnings/(loss) per share gREF/ (B8)
(HK cents) (810)
Basic HK 57.21 (91.04) (58.12) (1.41) 8.95
(Restated)
(EE75)
Diluted i3k 57.21 (91.04) (58.12) (1.41) 8.84
(Restated)
(&E5)
Non-current assets ERBEE 29,979 51,753 46,309 31,117 20,535
Current assets TMBEE 2,923,576 2,851,694 1,312,312 1,385,544 2,003,370
Current liabilities mEaE 919,544 1,669,835 854,635 904,687 1,182,739
Non-current liabilities FrRBaE 281 = = = 13,997
Net assets BEFE 2,033,730 1,233,612 503,986 511,974 827,169
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEEX
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

n~EEH

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
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Dr. Lee Kwok Keung Edward

Mr. Liang Guoxing
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Ms. Cheung Mei Sze
Mr. Wong Hing Keung
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Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF

BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Room 1802-03, 18th Floor

Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road
Hong Kong

HEAD OFFICE IN THE PEOPLE’S REPUBLIC
OF CHINA (the “PRC")
5/F, Intelligence Valley
Mei Sheng Creative Valley
No. 10, Longchang Road
Block 68, Bao'an District
Shenzhen, PRC
(with effect from 2 June 2016)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEEX

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company

(Cayman) Limited
4th Floor, Royal Bank House
24 Shedden Road, George Town
Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKS
China CITIC Bank International Limited
Bank of Communications Co., Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

STOCK CODE
886

WEBSITE OF THE COMPANY

www.silverbasegroup.com

(information on the website does not form part of this

annual report)
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2015/16 YEAR OVERVIEW OF SILVER BASE GROUP
“E-L-ARFEEREKEEARET
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2015/16 YEAR OVERVIEW OF SILVER BASE GROUP
“E-R /I -AEFEREKREAST

May 2015 — Feitian Moutai baijiu with 53% alcohol content in 400
milliliter bottles was officially launched in the market.

2015958 - 53ERAF B400mIEX ETHEHE ©

June 2015 — The “"Wine Kingdom” Wechat distribution
system went online officially.

201568 - [ MESHIMEIHEEREXN L4 -

August 2015 - Silver Base self-operated, specialised
wine and liquor e-commerce platform “Wine Kingdom”
(www.pinhui001.com) went online officially.
2015%8F - REBZEXFEKYE [RESH
(www.pinhui001.com) IER, _E4R °

November 2015 — Mobile app of Silver Base self-operated, specialised wine

and liquor e-commerce platform “Wine Kingdom” went online officially. In

the same month, the 2nd Shunfeng Wine Tasting Workshop was held.

201511 A - REBLEF BRI mESHR] FHEREAER L
m-MANERTE_REIREHHERBEFIE -

December 2015 — Silver Base received the “Outstanding

Distributor Award” in the 2015 Wuliangye 1218 Meeting.
20154F12 7 - (REEIF2015FE ARIR1218KE
B[t 2] o

March 2016 — Silver Base participated in the “Spring Confectionary
and Liquor Exhibition in Chengdu” in which the new product Feitian
Moutai in 1300 milliliter bottles was displayed.

20165F3 1 - REZR[KEEZRER] -
RAF B1300mFT@RETR -

REAEEZERERLIA - T - RNEFER
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

ETEHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Silver Base Group Holdings Limited (“Silver Base
Group” or the “Company”), together with its subsidiaries,
(collectively, the “Group”) and the board (the “Directors” or
the “Board”) of the Company, | hereby present the annual
report of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2016

(the “Year under Review").

2015 is a year in which the PRC's economic development
has entered into a state of “new normal”, with the annual
GDP growth at 6.9%, a growth rate somewhat slower
than the growth rate of 7.4% experienced in 2014. During

|u

the time of “new normal”, China’s economic structure
will continuously undergo a longer period of optimising
adjustments and upgrade, with the gap between urban
and rural areas gradually narrow down, bringing a higher

proportion of consumption-based GDP growth.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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During the Year under Review, China’s baijiu industry
experienced an industry-wide growth. The gap of high-
end baijiu consumption created by the rapid decline of
government officials’ consumption due to the restrictions on
“three public expenses” was being filled by the commercial
and mass consumptions. The overall business environment
and demand of the low-end baijiu market was greatly

improved.

During the past three years of industrial adjustment, the
Group has been adjusting and improving the sales structure
of products as well as adding high quality products and
renowned brands. With respect to the construction of sales
channels, the Group continued to explore new channels and
established a comprehensive electronic e-commerce sales
platform, and successfully achieved the transformation from
traditional sales channels to sales channels in the internet
era, which provided the Company with further competitive

advantage in the future.

During the Year under Review, the Group has achieved a
substantial growth in sales, which was the fruitful result of
the Group’s forward-looking and appropriate adjustments in

product structure and sales channels in the past few years.

During the Year under Review, the Group’s proprietary
e-commerce website “"Wine Kingdom” was officially
launched for online business. Under the circumstances
of a constantly growing e-commerce market, the Group
believes this kind of highly efficient retail sales solution
will bring positive shopping experience to the consumers.
The Group will continue its effort in exploring the internet
business models with respect to commercial customers and

consumers.

REEEZRAER QA
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

ETEHRE

OUTLOOK

After three years of difficult adjustments, the PRC’s baijiu
market finally experienced an overall industry-wide recovery
under which the Group achieved exciting results. | personally
believe that “brand building, popularity and product
diversification” are the key growth drivers for the PRC's
baijiu industry. Increasing the range of products, introducing
new packaging designs and adding new types of sales
channels will be the catalysts for the industry development.
The Group will actively explore various types of cooperation
with upstream suppliers, mainstream e-commerce platforms
as well as TV shopping platforms to create a win-win
situation in which both the traditional sales network and

e-commerce platforms will benefit.

As a leading operator in China’s baijiu industry and a
professional service provider of alcoholic beverage sales
platform, in order to lay a solid foundation for our
long-term development, the Group will, base on the
industry adjustments and market changes, continue to
adopt an active and long-term development strategy;
pursue sustainable development through highly efficient
management mode and seize every opportunity brought by

the changes in the market environment.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited

fRE
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FERS

On behalf of Silver Base Group, | would like to express my % @ RAZERKRBFEEERORBHAENE
sincere thank you to the Directors, the management team E EHEM2EET  BHSULRE %
and all the employees. | would also like to thank you our  HAEBHUEEL—EUNRYEBH X
shareholders, business partners and customers for their AR - HPIBRTEFMNERMED
continuous support and understanding. Leveraging on our NEHBE FHENIIE BERE 87
own resources and strengths, we will seize opportunities and FEmE  ERASEENLEE BIZREER
strive to explore new markets with efforts which are more 2 RRRBEEFNEERER -
pragmatic and meticulous, to achieve the business objectives

and strategic plans of the Group, and create better value

and returns for our shareholders.

Liang Guoxing FE
Chairman 2 &)
27 June 2016 20166 A827H
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overview

During the year ended 31 March 2016 (the “Year under
Review”), Silver Base Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”), together with its subsidiaries, (collectively,
the “Group”) successfully walked out of the stagnant
sales situation and achieved explosive growth. The Group
recorded a total revenue of approximately HK$1,260.2
million (2015: HK$418.9 million), representing a substantial
increase of approximately 200.9% as compared to the
corresponding period in 2015. Excluding the factor of
provision for inventories, the Group's gross profit was
approximately HK$251.4 million (2015: HK$104.2 million).
The gross profit margin before provision for inventories
was approximately 19.9% (2015: 24.9%). The profit
attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company
was approximately HK$130.4 million (2015: loss of HK$19.1
million). Basic earnings per ordinary share was approximately
HK8.95 cents (2015: loss of HK1.41 cents).

During the Year under Review, the Group's cash flow from
operating activities has fundamentally improved. During
the year, the net cash inflow from operating activities was
HK$264.1 million. At the end of the year, cash and cash
equivalents amounted to HK$300.7 million. During the Year
under Review, the Group has also obtained the support
of banking facilities. A one-year term facility of HK$615.0
million was granted to the Group through bank’s acceptance
bills, which provided support for the Group’s proper

expansion.

During the Year under Review, revenue derived from the
PRC market accounted for approximately 43.1% of the
Group's total revenue (2015: 57.8%), while revenue from
the international market accounted for approximately 56.9%
of the total revenue (2015: 42.2%).

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited

E L EIl
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE WK DT

Baijiu Business

During the Year under Review, China’s baijiu industry
experienced an industry-wide growth after three years of
industrial adjustments. According to data from the National
Bureau of Statistics, the income of catering service for the
year 2015 was RMB3,231 billion, representing a year-on-
year growth of 11.7%. Restaurants are the major locations
for baijiu consumption. With the impact of restrictions
on government official consumption, the recovery of the
catering industry indicates that commercial and mass
consumptions have already replaced government official

consumption as the major part of the catering market.

The rationalisation and stability of the prices of the Moutai
and Wuliangye products indicate that the consumers accept
the current price level of such products. The Group firmly
believes that Moutai and Wuliangye products have become
the preferred choices of high-end baijiu in business dinners,
company, friends and family gatherings as well as gifts. The
Moutai and Wuliangye products are increasingly displaying
the unique advantages of their brand values in the baijiu
industry. The rationalisation of their prices has squeezed
the markets of second and third tier baijiu brands; and
some of their consumers has converted into Moutai and
Wauliangye consumers. The Group also believes that Moutai
and Wuliangye products will continue to solidify their
leading positions in the market, maintain steady growth
and increase their market shares. The baijiu of second and
third tier brands will face increasing market pressure; while
being positioned as mass consumption, low-end baijiu will
still attract their distinctive group of consumers and maintain

their market shares.

REEBEZRER QA
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE WK DT

Wine and Cigarettes Businesses

During the Year under Review, the Group still considered
that there would be a huge potential for the development
of wine market. In 2015, the imported wine in China was
approximately 550 million litres in volume, representing
a year-on-year growth of approximately 44.6%; and the
imported amount is approximately US$2,030 million,
representing a year-on-year growth of approximately 34.3%.
The Company will actively develop wine business. During the
Year under Review, the revenue from the cigarettes business

decreased as compared with the same period last year.

Business in Electronic Commerce and Image Stores
Over the years, the Group has always taken it very seriously
in the exploration and transformation of sales channels. With
the premise of maintaining the advantage of the traditional
channels, the Group has put great efforts in catching up
and actively adapting to various changes in the market. This
is exemplified by the establishment of the self-operated
chain store “Wine Kingdom”; the setting up of distributors
and franchised stores; the proposed equity investment
in Zhong Jiu Wang for the establishment of an online-
offline integrated sales network in 2013 and eventually the
establishment of the Group’s own e-commerce website.
With the rapid development of new sales channels in
e-commerce and mobile internet, the business models
for the baijiu industry are becoming more innovative and
creative. Following the 020 interactive model which has
become a new form of consumption sentiment promoter,
the development of B2B business model in the liquor

industry is also extremely rapid.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE WK DT

During the Year under Review, the Group’s e-commerce
business delivered strong sales growth and made greater
contribution to the Group’s revenue. On top of the solid
cooperation relationship maintained with all the major
e-commerce shopping platforms in the PRC, such as
Jingdong Mall, Yihaodian, T-mall, Vip.com, Rongyigou,
Shunfeng Heike, Amazon, Hunan Happigo and Anhui
Jiajiamall etc., the Group has been vigorously experimenting
brand new internet-based business models. The Group
clearly realised traditional sales channels will evolve and

integrate with internet in a brand new manner.

The Group has been maintaining a good cooperative
relationship with various suppliers. The Group believes that
a sound business partnership will create a win-win situation

for all parties.

Outlook and Future Development

Looking ahead, with China’s economy entering the “new
normal”, there will be consumption upgrade and reduction
of production capacity in China’s baijiu industry which
will greatly enhance market concentration at the same
time. Alongside with the increasingly stringent food safety
supervision in the PRC, consumer confidence towards
the quality of liquor has also increased, therefore the
business environment for high and low-end baijiu will be
further improved. The Group will continue to seize the
opportunities, and strive to accomplish the following tasks in

the future.

In respect of products, the Group will, with the premise of
maintaining the existing product structure, focus on the
market situations of the low, middle and high-end products,
track the market changes and quickly launch suitable
products in accordance with market research and data, with
a view to further increase its market shares and broaden its

revenue sources.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE WK DT

In respect of channel development, the Group will uphold its
tradition of aggressive development over the coming years,
and continue to lead at the forefront of the industry. More
efforts will be put in the development of new channels,
same as e-commerce platforms which are more adaptive to
commercial customers and end consumers. The Group will
also work with the existing e-commerce partners to further
explore different in-depth cooperation in order to diversify
its sales channels, and attract more potential consumers,
enhance the market penetration of different types of
products of the Group, increase the overall market shares
and generate better returns for the shareholders of the

Company (the “Shareholders”).

In respect to operation management, the Group will
continue to strengthen internal control, adopt more prudent
financial management and cost control measures, further
regulate the operation expenses and maintain healthy
financial fundamentals in order to achieve sustainable
development and reward the Shareholders, employees and

customers for their continuous support.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and Gross Profit

The Group generates its revenue primarily from sales of
high-end liquors. For the year ended 31 March 2016,
the Group recorded a total revenue of approximately
HK$1,260.2 million, representing an increase of
approximately 200.9% compared to a total revenue of
HK$418.9 million for the year ended 31 March 2015. For
the year ended 31 March 2016, approximately 43.1% of

revenue was derived from the PRC market (2015: 57.8%).

The Group's revenue derived from the distribution of liquors
represented approximately 99.6% of the total revenue
for the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: 95.2%) while
the revenue derived from the distribution of cigarettes
represented approximately 0.4% of the total revenue for the
year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: 4.8%).
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The Group’s gross profit for the year ended 31 March
2016 was approximately HK$234.0 million (2015: HK$82.7
million). The increase in gross profit was mainly due to
the significant increase in sales volume during the year.
Excluding the factor of provision for inventories, the
Group’s gross profit for the year ended 31 March 2016 was
approximately HK$251.4 million (2015: HK$104.2 million),
the gross profit ratio before provision for inventories was
approximately 19.9% (2015: 24.9%).

Other Income and Gains, Net
Other income and gains, net amounted to approximately
HK$77.5 million for the financial year 2016 (2015: HK$1.1
million). Such increase was mainly due to the gain on the
disposal of an investment property and purchase incentive

from a supplier during the year.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses mainly comprised salaries
and welfare related to sales and marketing personnel,
advertising and promotional expenses, transportation costs,

rental expenses and miscellaneous expenses related to sales.

Selling and distribution expenses amounted to approximately
HK$180.8 million (2015: HK$180.1 million) accounting for
approximately 14.3% (2015: 43.0%) of the revenue of the
Group for the financial year 2016. Such slight increase was
mainly due to the slight increase in promotion expenses and

transportation expenses.
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Administrative Expenses
Administrative expenses are mainly comprised salaries and
welfare, office rental expenses, professional fees and other

administrative expenses.

Administrative expenses amounted to approximately
HK$103.2 million (2015: HK$110.7 million) accounting for
approximately 8.2% (2015: 26.4%) of the revenue of the
Group for the financial year 2016. Such decrease was mainly
due to the decrease in management staff salaries and wages

and office rental expenses.

Write-back of Impairment, Net

Gain recorded in this account amounted to approximately
HK$17.8 million (2015: HK$170.9 million) for the financial
year 2016. The change was mainly due to the decrease in
write-back of impairment allowances of trade receivables,

bills receivable, prepayments and other receivables.

Finance Costs

Finance costs amounted to approximately HK$25.5 million
(2015: HK$30.8 million) representing approximately 2.0%
(2015: 7.4%) of the Group's revenue for the financial year
2016. The finance costs include interest on discounted bills,
short-term bank loans and other loans. Such decrease was

mainly due to the decrease in bank loan interest.

Income Tax Credit

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
for the year as the Group has available tax losses brought
forward from prior years to offset the assessable profits
generated during the year. During the year ended 31 March
2015, no provision for Hong Kong profits tax had been
made for the year ended 31 March 2015 as the Group did
not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during that year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have
been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries

or jurisdictions in which the Group operates.
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After due and careful considerations, the Group revisited its
tax exposure by performing a detailed assessment on the
Group’s Corporation Income Tax (“CIT") payable brought
forward from prior years. After considering the low practical
risk of payment, certain of the prior year’'s CIT provision was
reversed in the current year. In the future, the Group will

continue to perform regular reassessment.

Profit/(Loss) Attributable to Ordinary Equity
Holders of the Company

Taking into account of the aforementioned, the profit
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2016 amounted to approximately
HK$130.4 million, as compared to a loss attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the Company of approximately
HK$19.1 million in 2015.

Dividends and Bonus Issue of Shares

The Company did not pay any interim dividend during the year.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2016.

In recognition of the continuous support of the
Shareholders, the Board proposed bonus issue of shares (the
“Bonus Issue”) on the basis of one bonus share for every
two existing shares of the Company (“Share(s)”) held by
qualifying Shareholders, subject to, among others, approval
of the relevant resolution approving the Bonus Issue by
the Shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting to
be held on 15 July 2016 and the Listing Committee of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited granting listing of and
permission to deal in the new Shares to be issued pursuant
to the Bonus Issue. Details of the Bonus Issue were disclosed

in the announcement of the Company dated 14 June 2016.
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Inventories
As at 31 March 2016,
approximately HK$692.8 million (2015: HK$758.3 million).

the Group’s inventories was

The decrease in inventories level was mainly due to the

significant increase in the sales volume during the year.

Trade and Bills Receivables

The Group has adopted stringent credit policy. Generally,
most of the customers of the Group shall settle payment
obligations in cash or bank’s acceptance bill issued by
reputable banks before delivery of the goods. In prior year,
the Group also granted a credit period of up to 1 year to

some long-term or reliable customers.

The increase in trade receivables was mainly due to the
increase in trade receivables made by the customers and
short credit terms were granted by the Group to the
customers. However, all of the trade receivables was settled

up to the date of this report.

All the Group’s distributors have been selected after careful
and serious consideration. They generally possess extensive
distribution networks, considerable financial strengths and
competitive market positions. After careful assessment of
the receivable balance’s recoverability by taking into account
of the current adverse operating environment, financial
conditions of the distributors and aging of the balances,
total impairment allowance in aggregate of approximately
HK$197.4 million (2015: HK$212.6 million) had been made
as at 31 March 2016.

As at 31 March 2016, the trade and bills receivables net
of provision were approximately HK$71.3 million (2015:
HK$75.8 million). Approximately 39.3% of the net trade
and bills receivables were aged within two months as at 31
March 2016 (2015: 50.8%). All bills receivable were issued
and accepted by banks.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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The Group will continue to adopt stringent credit control policy
and will apply the following measures to manage and enhance

the recoverability of the Group’s trade and bills receivables:

(i) close and continuous communication and cooperation
between the distributors and our sales managers
in strengthening the sales channels and marketing
strategies of the Group, which enables clearance of
their accumulated inventories and settlements to the

Group; and

(ii) actively pursue cash-transaction business such as

e-commerce and TV shopping.

Up to the date of this report, the Group’s subsequent
settlement of the trade and bills receivables was

approximately HK$35.5 million.

Trade and Bills Payables

As at 31 March 2016, the trade and bills payables was
approximately HK$625.1 million (31 March 2015: HK$3.9
million). The increase in trade and bills payables was mainly

due to the addition of the bills payable during the year.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of approximately HK$300.7 million (2015: HK$170.1
million), approximately 93.2% (2015: 90.2%) of which was
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB"), approximately 6.7%
(2015: 9.7%) of which was denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and approximately 0.1% (2015: 0.1%) of which was
denominated in other currencies. The increase in cash and
cash equivalents was mainly due to the the increase in cash
generated from operating activities, proceed from disposal
of an investment property and proceeds from issue of shares
and bonds. As at 31 March 2016, the Group’s net current
assets were approximately HK$820.6 million (2015: HK$480.9

million).
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Capital Structure of the Group

Total interest-bearing bank and other borrowings as at 31
March 2016 was approximately HK$222.0 million (2015:
HK$453.9 million), of which all were repayable within
one year and bore floating interest rate. 100.0% (2015:
approximately 94.6%) of the total interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings was denominated in RMB, none (2015:
2.6%) of which was denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
none (2015: 2.8%) of which was denominated in United

States dollars.

During the Year under Review, the Group issued bonds
with an aggregate principal amount of HK$15.0 million,
before related expenses of HK$2.2 million, to certain
independent individuals. The bonds bear interest at rates
ranging from 6% to 7% per annum and will mature in July
2017 to December 2022. The interest will be payable by the
Company annually on the anniversary of the issue date of

the respective bond and up to the maturity date.

No particular seasonality trend for the borrowing
requirements of the Group observed for the Year under

Review.

The Group’s bank loan denominated in RMB amounted
to approximately HK$222.0 million bore interest at rate
of 130% of PBOC per annum and would be repayable
in April 2016. As at 31 March 2016, the Group’s bank
loan was secured by the Group’s inventories with cost in
aggregate of RMB250.0 million (equivalent to HK$300.0
million), and supported by corporate guarantees executed
by the Company, a subsidiary of the Company and a related

company of the Company.

During the Year under Review, the Company successfully
placed 166,000,000 new Shares as a means to broadening
the capital base of the Company. Details of the placing of
Shares are disclosed under the section headed “Placing of

New Shares and Use of Proceeds”.
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The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions are
principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars and RMB.
Revenue derived and operating expenses incurred by the
Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are mainly denominated
in RMB. The Directors consider that a reasonably possible
annual change of 5% in the exchange rate between Hong
Kong dollars and RMB would have no material impact on the
Group’s results and therefore hedging through the use of

derivative instruments is considered unnecessary.

The funding and treasury policies of the Group are centrally
managed and controlled by the senior management in
Hong Kong. The Group’s financing activities are managed
centrally by maintaining an adequate level of cash and cash
equivalents to finance the Group’s operations. The Group
also ensures the availability of the bank credit facilities to
address any short term funding requirements. The Group’s
cash and bank balances are placed with reputable financial

institutions.

The Group monitors its capital using the gearing ratio, which
is net debt divided by the total capital plus net debt. Net
debt includes interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
trade and bills payables, deposits received, other payables
and accruals, bank advance for discounted bills, amounts
due to related parties and directors and bond payables less
cash and cash equivalents. Total capital represents equity
attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company.
As at 31 March 2016, the gearing ratio was approximately
50.1% (2015: 52.3%).
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Employment and Remuneration Policy

The Group had a total work force of 203 employees in
Hong Kong and the PRC as at 31 March 2016 (2015: 165
employees). The total salaries and related costs (including
Directors’ fee) amounted to approximately HK$80.8 million
for the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: HK$101.6 million).
The Group has implemented the remuneration policy, bonus
and share option scheme based on the achievements and
performance of employees. The Group has also participated
in the mandatory provident fund scheme in Hong Kong and
the state managed retirement benefit scheme in the PRC.
The Group continues to provide training courses for its staff
to enable them to achieve self-improvement and to enhance

their skill and knowledge.

LITIGATION

In December 2013, one distributor of the Group (the
“Plaintiff”) filed a claim to a District People’s Court in
the PRC (the "“PRC District People’s Court”) against one
of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC in relation to the
Group’s obligation to buy back certain inventories from the
Plaintiff (the “Claim”). The Plaintiff demanded the purchase
consideration and related compensation from the Group of

RMB20.1 million (equivalent to HK$24.1 million) in total.

According to the judgement dated 25 August 2015 issued
by the PRC District People’s Court, the Group was liable to
buy back certain inventories from the Plaintiff with a total
consideration of RMB18.9 million (equivalent to HK$22.7
million). The Group has filed an appeal for such judgement
to the PRC District People’s Court in September 2015.
According to the judgement dated 7 January 2016 issued by
the PRC District People’s Court, the appeal from the Group
was dismissed and the original judgement dated 25 August

2015 was sustained.
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At the date of approval of these financial statements, the — RABEHRE ERH - REBERE A
Group and the Plaintiff are under the negotiation for the buy ~ [EBiEIMEBRAFEEITER - MASKE MK
back arrangement of the inventories and the Group has not MREACQBEAFE - ARAESERA/E
bought back any inventories from the Plaintiff. The directors ~ REEHRERPRZARJEELENTMEL
of the Company are in the opinion that adequate provision BEFELRMEE -

has been made in the financial statements to cover any

potential liabilities arising from the Claim.
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DIRECTOR PROFILES

ESRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liang Guoxing, aged 50, was appointed on 12
September 2007. He is the founder, chairman of the Group
and chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Liang is
also a member of the remuneration committee and the
nomination committee of the Company. He is a director
of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Liang is
primarily responsible for the overall corporate strategies,
planning and business development of the Group. Mr. Liang
has 19 years of experience in the sales and distribution of
Chinese liquor and cigarettes. Mr. Liang obtained Doctor
of Business Administration, honoris causa, from the
Northern University in U.S.. He obtained the 13th World
Outstanding Chinese Award co-organised by World Chinese
Business Investment Foundation and United World Chinese
Association Limited in April 2013. Mr. Liang is a standing
committee member of the 11th Session of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, Zhanjiang and a
member of the 10th Session of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, Guangdong Province. He is also a

fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors.

Mr. Liang is the sole shareholder and a director of Keen Pearl

Limited, a substantial Shareholder.
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Mr. Wang Jindong, aged 57, was appointed on 1 April
2010. He joined the Group in November 2008. He is the
chief financial officer of the Group. Mr. Wang is responsible
for overseeing the investment, legal and financial affairs,
as well as general business development of the Group. Mr.
Wang is currently a postgraduate student for a part-time
Master’s degree in Economics at the Central University of
Finance and Economics, majoring in capital operation and
investment and financing directions. He graduated from the
Guangdong Radio and TV University (BHREEETHRAL)
with a Bachelor’s degree in Accountancy and is a qualified
accountant in the PRC. Mr. Wang has more than 30 years of
experience in accounting and administration in government
organization and the state owned enterprise in the PRC
as well as overseas enterprises,
Administration of Coal Geology (EREHHEB), Shenzhen
Jewellery City Enterprise Company Limited (ZEYITZRE M1
E£ABR27F]) and K&M Asia Limited.

including the Guangdong

Ms. Cheung Mei Sze, aged 43, was appointed on 6
March 2008. She has been appointed as member of the
remuneration committee and member of the compliance
committee of the Company from 31 December 2012.
She is the head of finance of the Group and a director
of a subsidiary of the Company. She is an authorised
representative of the Company as required under Rule 3.05
of the Rules (the "Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). Ms. Cheung joined the Group in
September 2000 and is responsible for the financial and
accounting affairs of the Group. Prior to joining the Group,
Ms. Cheung was an assistant supervisor in Ting Ho Kwan &
Chan, a CPA firm. Ms. Cheung holds a Bachelor’s degree
in Arts majoring in accountancy from the Hong Kong

Polytechnic University.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu Jie Si, aged 64, was appointed on 6 March 2008.
Mr. Wu has over 20 years of experience in finance and
corporate management in the PRC. From 1984 to 1995,
Mr. Wu served in numerous positions in the Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China (“ICBC"), including the president
of ICBC Shenzhen Branch. From 1995 to 1998, Mr. Wu
served as the deputy mayor of the Shenzhen Municipal
Government. From 1998 to 2000, Mr. Wu served as the
assistant to the governor of Guangdong Province. From 12
February 2000 to 8 May 2001, Mr. Wu joined Guangdong
Enterprise (Holdings) Limited (“GDE”) as a director during
the process of assisting its debt restructuring. Mr. Wu ceased
to be a director of GDE shortly after the closing of its debt
restructuring on 22 December 2000. From 2000 to 2005,

Mr. Wu was appointed as the chairman of Guangdong Yue

Gang Investment Holdings Company Limited (R EERE
AR A A)) and GDH Limited (BRIERAR A A]). Mr. Wu

has been appointed in various positions in companies listed
on the Stock Exchange and the New York Stock Exchange.
Mr. Wu served as the chairman of Guangdong Investment
Limited (stock code: 270) (“GDI"”) from March 2000 to
March 2001, as a director of GDI from March 2000 to April
2005 and as the honorary president of GDI from March 2001
to April 2005. Mr. Wu also served as a director and honorary
president of Guangdong Tannery Limited (stock code:
1058) from February 2004 to April 2005. Both companies
are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. While
Mr. Wu was serving as the chairman and then an honorary
president of GDI, GDI and its subsidiaries underwent a
debt restructuring, details of which were included in GDI's
announcements dated 23 December 2000 and 6 May 2003.
From April 2005 to January 2008, Mr. Wu was appointed
as the executive director and from June 2005 to January
2008, Mr. Wu was appointed as the managing director and
the chief executive officer of Hopson Development Holdings
Limited (stock code: 754), which is listed on the main board

of the Stock Exchange. From September 2005 to July 2011,

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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Mr. Wu served as an independent non-executive director
of China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. (stock code: 3968).
From May 2007 to August 2008, Mr. Wu also served as an
independent non-executive director of Yingli Green Energy
Holding Company Limited (stock code: YGE) which is listed
on the New York Stock Exchange. From 15 July 2008 to 23
December 2009, Mr. Wu was executive director of China
Aoyuan Property Group Limited (stock code: 3883) (“China
Aoyuan”). From 24 December 2009 to 19 May 2013, Mr.
Wu was a non-executive director and vice chairman of China
Aoyuan. From 13 February 2006 to 27 June 2013, Mr. Wu
is a non-executive director of China Water Affairs Group
Limited (stock code: 855).

Mr. Wu is currently an independent non-executive director
of Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited (stock code: 392) and
China Taiping Insurance Holdings Company Limited (formerly
known as “China Insurance International Holdings Company
Limited”) (stock code: 966), both companies are listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wu is also a non-
executive director of Shenzhen Investment Limited (stock
code: 604), a company listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange. He is also an independent non-executive
director of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia)
Limited and China CITIC Bank International Limited. Mr.
Wu obtained a Master’s degree in Economics in 1984 and
a Doctoral degree in Economics in 1996, both from the
Research Institute of Finance the People’s Bank of China.
Mr. Wu completed post-doctoral research work in theoretical
economics at Nankai University (FFAZ) in 1998-2000
and was qualified as a professor in theoretical economics at

Nankai University in 2001.
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Mr. Chen Sing Hung Johnny, aged 48, was appointed
as an executive director of the Company on 12 September
2007 and re-designated as a non-executive director of the
Company on 25 September 2010. Mr. Chen joined the
Group in January 2007. During the period from January
2007 to September 2010, he held a number of senior
management positions of the Group including the director
and chief executive officer of Silver Base International
Development Co. Limited, a subsidiary of the Company
and the chief executive officer of the Company. He was
a member of the remuneration committee and a member
of the compliance committee of the Company. Mr. Chen
was responsible for the overall strategies implementation,
business development of the Group. He was also involved
in and supported all investor relationship and public
relationship functions of the Group.

Mr. Chen is a responsible officer of Regal Portfolio
Management Limited (“REIT Manager”), the manager of
Regal Real Estate Investment Trust (stock code: 1881). He is
also an executive director and a member of the disclosure
committee of the REIT Manager.

Mr. Chen has extensive knowledge and experience in
business development, international trade and project
management in sales and distribution of electrical,
mechanical and consumer products. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Chen was the general manager of Faithful
Trading (H.K.) Limited and the operations controller of
GOME Home Appliances (H.K.) Ltd. Further, Mr. Chen held
a number of executive positions with the subsidiaries of
Chevalier International Holdings Limited (stock code: 25),
which is listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange,
from September 1993 to July 2002 during which he was
responsible for the China market and different overseas
markets such as the United States, Vietnam, Myanmar,
Philippines and Japan. Mr. Chen is a member of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, Yueshou District,
Guangzhou City. He is also a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors and a member of Hong Kong
Securities and Investment Institute. Mr. Chen obtained a
Bachelor’s degree in Arts in 1990, and a Bachelor’'s degree
in Administrative Studies and a certificate in Management in
1992, all from York University.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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Mr. Joseph Marian Laurence Ozorio, aged 62, was
appointed as an executive director from 1 April 2010 to
9 April 2013 and re-designated from an executive director
to a non-executive director with effect from 10 April 2013.
Mr. Ozorio joined the Group in October 2009. He has more
than 30 years of experience in investment banking and
equity capital management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Ozorio had served at Merrill Lynch, PF & Smith (HK) Limited,
Anderson Man (Investment Services) Limited, Refco Futures
Limited, Lippo Securities Limited, Sun Hung Kai Securities

Limited and Sun Hung Kai Investment Services Limited.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hung Sui Kwan, aged 46, was appointed on 6 March
2008. He is the chairman of the audit committee, the
compliance committee, the remuneration committee and
the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Hung was
an executive director and the chief executive officer of Get
Nice Holdings Limited (stock code: 64), a company listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange, for the period
from 28 April 2011 to 7 April 2016. On 24 September
2015, he was appointed as an executive director and the
chief executive officer of Get Nice Financial Group Limited
1469),

on the main board of the Stock Exchange on 8 April 2016.

(stock code: a company whose shares were listed
Mr. Hung has over 19 years' experience as certified public
accountant in Hong Kong and is currently a director of
Venture Partners CPA Limited. Mr. Hung is a licensed
person under the Securities and Futures Ordinances for
regulated activity “advising on corporate finance”. Mr. Hung
obtained a Bachelor of Science degree from the University
of Hong Kong and is a fellow member of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom
and a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants.

REEEZRAER QA

UL £ % (Mr. Joseph Marian Laurence
Ozorio) ' 625 NZ_ZE—ZTHFMWA—HZ
TE—-—FNANBEZEEAERITES
YR ZZE-—=ZFNAT+HBERTEETHAT
RIFPTEFT - MEAEER_ZTZTAF+H

MAARER - BEABB=TFRERT
NEREERES - RMAKREER - FEE

& AR 75 = MR PF & Smith
(HK) Limited * Anderson Man (Investment
Services) Limited * Refco Futures Limited * JJ

EBFARAR FBELEFER AR M
%%&ﬁ%%ﬁ@@ﬂ

% (Merrill Lynch) »

?’%.\‘7#%’?%%

ﬁégo&ﬁﬁ/a%ﬁ§§@~éﬁéé
g FMEESRIREREEG TR - LA

RZE——FNA-F+NHEZZ—XRFH
At BHAMEEBRAMER LA R GIFE
BARRAR (BRHDNRIE : 64) WAITES RIT
BRH R-T—RAFNA=-+MA K&
ZRERKETRMEBERAA (RHORK :
1469) (ZRARIMBRMR=ZZE— R FMNANH
BT ER ET) MITES RITHARH -
HEARBTERBREXRSHAMEERAT
Fr-BRAMKESHMEBHABERARZE
B U RBSNAEGIT [sHEERERHE
ERINZHRERDIHEAL AELEE
BABREBELEN  FRARERTA
RETMRGERLERBTEGTREE

85 o

[l
A
|
>t
<F:R
S
5qd



DIRECTOR PROFILES

EERE

Mr. Ma Lishan, aged 64, was appointed on 6 March 2008.
He is a member of the audit committee, the remuneration
committee, the compliance committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. Ma has extensive
experience in corporate operation and management. Mr.
Ma graduated from Beijing Foreign Studies University in the
People’s Republic of China in 1975. Mr. Ma served in various
managerial positions such as chairman, executive director,
general manager in certain large-scale grain, edible oil, food
processing corporations and Great Wall Wine under China
Oil & Foodstuff Corporation. From January 1996, Mr. Ma
served as an executive director of China Foods Limited (&

B RMARAT) (“China Foods”), a company listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (stock code: 506).
From May 1997 to June 2003, Mr. Ma served as executive
director and managing director and from April 2002 to June
2003 as managing director of China Foods. In 2000, Mr.
Ma served as the deputy general manager of China Foods
Ltd. (EfEH R m#E H A
). Mr. Ma was the deputy chairman of Top

Import and Export (Group) Co.,
(£B) BRAQA]
Glory International Holdings Limited (B57| BB £ E B R
‘A A]) (a shareholder of COFCO Property (Group) Co., Ltd.)
from June 2003 to July 2005. From June 2008 to January
2009, Mr. Ma was an executive director of Sino Resources
Group Limited, a company listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (stock code: 223). From March 2016 to
present, he is an independent non-executive director of SRE
Group Limited, a company listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (stock code: 1207). From August 2009
to present, he is an independent non-executive director of
Sunac China Holdings Limited, a company listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (stock code: 1918).
From September 2010 to August 2012, he was also the
executive director, managing director and chairman of Hao
Tian Resources Group Limited (now known as Hao Tian
Development Group Limited), a company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (stock code: 474). He is the
senior consultant in Hao Tian Development Group Limited

since August 2012.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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Dr. Lee Kwok Keung Edward, aged 61, was appointed
on 24 June 2014. He is a member of the audit committee,
compliance committee, remuneration committee and

nomination committee of the Company.

Dr. Lee is the founder and the chairman of Nuovo Collection
Hong Kong Limited which is the leading high end Italian

furniture retailer in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Dr. Lee was graduated at Ontario College of Art & Design,
Canada in 1977 with honor Associate of Ontario College of
Art & Design (A.O.C.A.D.).

With 37 years of experience as a professional interior
designer and furniture retailer, Dr. Lee was appointed as the
chairman of the Furniture and Decoration Industries Group
by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries and the vice-
chairman for Hong Kong Furniture and Decoration Trade
Association Limited. The Government of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region has appointed Dr. Lee as a standing

committee member of The Public Affair Forum in 2009.

Dr. Lee has also participated in a number of social
community service groups, such as a director of The Chinese
General Chamber of Commerce, a vice-chairman of the
New Territories District Liaison and a vice-chairman of New
Territories General Chamber of Commerce, In addition,
Dr. Lee is an executive council member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Directors, a district secretary of Rotary
International District 3450, a chairman of Preserve Planet
& Earth of Rotary International District 3450, a director of
China Council for the Promotion of International Trade and

council member of Innovation China.
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Dr. Lee was awarded as “China Top 10 Financial and
Intelligent Persons” for the year 2008, “China Famous
Professional”, “China Enterprise Award for Innovative
Corporate” and “China Enterprise Award for Creative
Businessmen” in the PRC. In Hong Kong, Dr. Lee was
awarded as “The World Outstanding Chinese Award for the
year 2006", “Honorary Doctor for Business Administration

and Management” and “2009 Capital Leader of Excellence”.

In 2013, Dr. Lee was appointed as the “Most Promising
Entrepreneurship Award” of “Asia Pacific Entrepreneurship
Awards” (APEA) by Enterprise Asia for recognising his
business profession and for his great entrepreneurship spirit
in leading, growing and contributing to his organisations,
communities and country. He was granted as the fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Director (FHKIOD)
by the Hong Kong Director Institute since 1997. He was
also appointed as the standing committee member of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference Shenzhen
District and director of HeBei Chinese Overseas Friendship
Association. In 2014, Asia Brand Development Association
recognised Nuovo Collection as a “Famous Brand Hong
Kong 2013".

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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Mr. Wong Hing Keung, aged 54, the company secretary
of the Group. He joined the Group in April 2014.
Mr. Wong is mainly responsible for overseeing the Group's
corporate governance, regulatory compliance and legal
matters and advising on corporate development, information
disclosure and internal control policies and procedures
of the Group. Mr. Wong is an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. He obtained a master’s degree in professional
accounting from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in 2002. Mr. Wong has over 20 years of experience in
the areas of auditing, finance and accounting. He is also
experienced in the compliance duties of company listed on
the Stock Exchange. He is an authorised representative of

the Company under Rule 3.05 of the Listing Rules.

Ms. Chan Sing Doris, aged 41, is the vice president of
the Company. Ms. Chan joined the Group in November
1997. She is responsible for sales and distribution of
high-ended Chinese liquor in Hong Kong market and
maintaining close relationship with the customers.
Ms. Chan performed as manager of administration and
human resources of the Group previously, and was proficient
in the Group’s business operation. Ms. Chan holds a
postgraduate diploma in international management in
The International Institute of Management and obtained a
degree of Master of Business Administration in Bulacan State

University in Philippines.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES
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Mr. Hua Shangsheng, aged 42, is the chief operation
officer of Silver Base Trading and Development (Shenzhen)
Co. Limited (”Silver Base Trading Shenzhen”). Mr. Hua
joined the Group in October 2015, and is now responsible
for the overall management of the Group’s operation.
Mr. Hua has worked for banking institutions, a well-
known management consulting firm in China and a listed
company in the beer industry. He has access to resources
in the industry as well as outside of the industry, and he
has extensive experience in establishing sales channels,
marketing planning, sales and business management.
Mr. Hua graduated in 1998 from Guangzhou Financial

College (BN & mtm & HRE4Z) with a major in accounting.

Mr. Yang Jingke, aged 35, is the vice president of Silver
Base Trading Shenzhen. Mr. Yang joined the Group in
July 2007. He is responsible for offline marketing and
management of the Group. Mr. Yang graduated from the
Beijing Bailie University (At 52 B 20t) majoring in
International Trading and subsequently obtained a Bachelor’s
degree in Business Administration from Jinggangshan
University (FFi 1L AKE2).

degree in business administration at Xiamen University (2

He is now pursuing a master’s

A£Z). Mr. Yang has been engaging in the sales of wine and
liquor for more than 9 years, during which he accumulated
extensive experience in the industry. Mr. Yang was engaged
as an operation manager upon joining the Group and served
as regional manager and vice general manager before his

promotion to vice president of Silver Base Trading Shenzhen.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES
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Ms. Li Yuxi, aged 33, is the senior vice president of
Silver Base Trading Shenzhen. Ms. Li joined the Group
in November 2012 to participate in market development
and the exploration, establishment, sales and marketing
of all Internet-related channels. She is responsible for the
establishment and sales of 020, B2C and B2B integrated
business models, and also the layout of various new
channels of the Group in the PRC, product planning,
market operations, team building, sales management, and
other related matters. Ms. Li obtained a Bachelor's degree
in International Economics and Trading from Jianghan
University ()% KE).

Ms. Lin Xingyu, aged 31, is the vice president of Silver
Base Trading Shenzhen. Ms. Lin joined the Group in August
2012, and is responsible for the Group’s integrated supplier
management, global shopping business, administration and
human resources management, the liaison with the suppliers
of baijiu and handling of export of Chinese branded wine.
Ms. Lin graduated from Shenzhen Polytechnic (G315 2 52 fiy
ZBt) in 2007 and is experienced in the alcoholic beverage

business.
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The directors (the “Directors”) of Silver Base Group Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) hereby present their report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
"Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2016 (the “Financial

Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries as at
31 March 2016 are set out in note 41 to the financial
statements. There were no significant changes in the nature

of the Group’s principal activities during the Financial Year.

RESULTS, APPROPRIATION AND BONUS ISSUE
OF SHARES

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2016 and
the financial position of the Group at that date are set out in

the financial statements on pages 111 to 231.
No interim dividend was paid during the Financial Year.

To reserve the resources for the Group’s business
development, the board did not recommend the payment of

a final dividend for the Financial Year.

The Board proposed bonus issue of shares (the “Bonus
Issue”) on the basis of one bonus share for every two
“Shares”) held by

qualifying Shareholders, subject to, among others, approval

existing shares of the Company (the

of the relevant resolution approving the Bonus Issue by
the Shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting to
be held on 15 July 2016 and the Listing Committee of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited granting listing of and
permission to deal in the new Shares to be issued pursuant
to the Bonus Issue. Details of the Bonus Issue were disclosed

in the announcement of the Company dated 14 June 2016.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company (“Annual
General Meeting”) will be held in Hong Kong on Monday,
15 August 2016. Notice of the Annual General Meeting
will be issued and despatched to the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) together with this annual

report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Thursday, 11 August 2016 to Monday, 15 August
2016, both dates inclusive, during which period no transfer
of share(s) will be effected, for the purpose of determining
the Shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote at the
Annual General Meeting. In order to qualify for attending
and voting at the Annual General Meeting, all transfers
documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
must be lodged with Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar and transfer office, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong
Kong time) on Wednesday, 10 August 2016.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment,
and investment property of the Group during the Financial
Year are set out in notes 13 and 14 to the financial

statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Financial Year are set out in note 26 to the

financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the

Company’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman

Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new

Shares of the Company on a pro rata basis to the existing

Shareholders.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
On 20 February 2009, the Shareholders approved and
adopted a share option scheme of the Company (the “Share

Option Scheme”). Key terms of the Share Option Scheme are

summarised below:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
an incentive for the Qualified Participants (as defined
below) to work with commitment towards enhancing
the value of the Company and its Shares for the
benefit of the Shareholders and to retain and attract
persons whose contributions are or may be beneficial
to the growth and development of the Group.

Qualified Participants of the Share Option Scheme
include any employee, any executive and non-
executive director of the Company, its subsidiaries
or entity in which the Company or its subsidiaries
holds any equity interest (“Invested Entity”) and
any such other persons (including but not limited to
supplier, customer, consultant, adviser, contractor,
business partner or service provider of the Company
or its subsidiary or any Invested Entity) who in the
absolute discretion of the Board has contributed or

will contribute to the Group.

The total number of Shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme is 120,000,000 Shares, being 10% of the
total number of Shares in issue as at 8 April 2009, the
listing date of the Company on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)
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The maximum number of Shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company, must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the

total number of Shares in issue from time to time.

Unless approved by the Shareholders in general
meeting, the total number of Shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of all options granted to
any Qualified Participants under the Share Option
Scheme in the 12-month period up to and including
such further grant must not exceed 1% of the total

number of Shares in issue.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years commencing on the date of
adoption of the Share Option Scheme, after which

period no further option shall be granted.

A non-refundable consideration of HK$1 is payable
on acceptance of the offer of grant of an option.
An offer of grant of an option may be accepted by
an eligible person within the date as specified in the
offer letter issued by the Company, being a date not
later than 5 business days from the date on which the
offer is made.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme any time during a
period (which may not expire later than 10 years from
the date of the grant) to be notified by the Board at
its sole discretion.
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(ix)  The subscription price must be at least the highest
of (1) the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the
date of grant; (2) the average of the closing price of
the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; or (3) the nominal value
of the Shares.

(x) The Board is entitled at any time within the period
of 10 years commencing on 20 February 2009 i.e.
the date of adoption, to offer the grant of an option
to any Qualified Participants in accordance with the

terms of the Share Option Scheme.

On 22 April 2015 (the "Date of Grant”), the Company
granted share options to certain Directors, a substantial
Shareholder and employees of the Group to subscribe for a
total of 134,900,000 ordinary Shares of HK$0.10 each in the
capital of the Company under the Share Option Scheme. The
exercise price is HK$1.09 per Share. Details of the grant of
share options, including the validity of the share options can
be referred to the announcement of the Company on the
Date of Grant. Accordingly, options to subscribe for a total
of 574,999 Shares, representing approximately 0.04% of the
total number of issued Shares, may still be granted under the

Share Option Scheme as at the Date of Grant.

On and subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme
and the approval of the chief executive officer of the
Company, the options shall only be exercisable in respect of
such part thereof that has been vested in accordance with

the following manner:

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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Fraction of the Shares covered under the option

106 58 IR RE PR B 2 IR 0 B LE 431

Vesting date
BEEAH

First 20% of the Shares under the share options

BRREMY M2 BH120% 0

Second 20% of the Shares under the share options

BRI P N 2 88 — #E20% X 0

Third 20% of the Shares under the share options
BB IRREFT P N 2 88 = HL20% A% 1

Fourth 20% of the Shares under the share options
B A P8 e 2 56 PO 820 % AR 17

Remaining 20% of the Shares under the share options

BIREMS M2 T20% 0

At the annual general meeting held on 21 August 2015 (the
“2015 AGM"), the Shareholders duly approved to renew the
total maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme to be up to 10% of the Company’s issued share
capital as at the date of the 2015 AGM, which amounted to
134,920,599 Shares.

The Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange subsequently
granted the approval for the listing of, and permission to
deal in, the Shares to be issued pursuant to the renewed

Share Option Scheme mandate.

Since the Date of Grant and up to the date of this report,
the number of share options to subscribe 29,300,000 Shares
were lapsed and no share option was exercised or cancelled.
As at 31 March 2016, the number of share options
outstanding was 106,200,000 Shares.
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Details of the share options outstanding as at 31 March RZTE—RE=ZA=1T—80 BREFET
2016 under the Share Option Scheme are as follows: IARITEBREZZFBOT ¢
No. of No. of No. of No. of No. of
Exercise Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares
price involved involved involved involved involved
per Share Options in options in options in options in options in options
under held as at granted exercised lapsed cancelled held as at
Exercisable the share 1 April during during during during 31 March
Grantees period options 2015 the year the year the year the year 2016
HKS
i R=B-AE
AR TR EREY ERi%¥ =A=1-R
Woe-RE cBBE ZBRE 2BBE 2BERE AEZERE
i SREREL mA-H FyR FyR FyR FyR 2 FoRe
AR s h%@ KEZBRE RH%E RH%E RH%E RH%E RH#E
BT
Directors:
7
Wang Jindong 22 Apr 2016 to 21 Apr 2021 1.09 - 6,000,000 - - - 6,000,000
IER ZE5-RENAZTZRE
it St 31); by g
Cheung Mei Sze 22 Apr 2016 to 21 Apr 2021 1.09 - 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
X% “E-REBACTCRE
ZEC-FREAZT-R
W Jie Si 2 Apr 2016 t0 21 Apr 2021 1.09 - 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
EWEVEE\ ZE-RERAZ ﬂ' HE
R -ERAZT-R
Chen Sing Hung Johnny 22 Apr 2016 to 21 Apr 2021 1.09 - 500,000 - - - 500,000
R ZE-AFEAZTZRE
ZRC-%¥@At-H
Joseph Marian 22 Apr 2016 to 21 Apr 2021 1.09 - 500,000 - - - 500,000
Laurence Ozorio ZE- EMAZTZAZ
s ZBC-fBACtT-H
Hung Sui Kwan 22 Apr 2016 to 21 Apr 2021 1.09 - 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
sl ZE-EMAZTZAE
“EC-ERAZT-R
Ma Lishan 22 Apr 2016 to 21 Apr 2021 1.09 - 500,000 - - - 500,000
vl “E-NEMA-_TCEE
it S 31y et
Lee Kwok Keung Edward 22 Apr 2016 to 21 Apr 2021 1.09 - 500,000 - - - 500,000
FER ZE-EMAZTZAZ
“EC-EMAZT-H
Substantial Shareholder
of the Company:
FRAEERR:
Luo Li (Note ) 22 Apr 2016 to 21 Apr 2021 1.09 - 700,000 - - - 700,000
&Ml (Hati) ZE-EMAZTZAE
“FC-F¥MACt-H
Others:
At
Other employees
of the Group 22 Apr 2016 to 21 Apr 2021 1.09 - 121,200,000 - (28,700,000) - 92,500,000
AEEAMES - EMmAZTZHE
“2--¥MAC+-A
;g;ral - 134,900,000 - (28,700,000) - 106,200,000

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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Note:

(i) As at 31 March 2016, Yinji Investments Limited held
480,212,500 Shares representing approximately 31.69% of
the issued share capital of the Company. The entire issued
share capital of Yinji Investments Limited is directly owned
by Grand Base Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands and indirectly wholly owned by a
discretionary trust, the beneficiaries of which are Mr. Liang
Guoxing, Ms. Luo Li, the spouse of Mr. Liang Guoxing,
and Miss Liang Gia Li Melody, the daughter of Mr. Liang
Guoxing. Mr. Liang Guoxing is the chairman, an executive
Director, the chief executive officer and a substantial
Shareholder.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2016, distributable reserves of the Company,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law, Cap 22
(Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands, amounted to HK$529.1 million (as at 31 March
2015: HK$357.6 million).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial years, as extracted from
the audited consolidated financial statements and restated/
reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 5 in this
annual report. The summary does not form part of the

audited financial statements.
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FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR

The Group regards both the current ratio and the gearing

ratio are important indicators of its financial health.

Current Ratio

The current ratio is the balance of current assets at the
end of the financial year divided by the balance of current
liabilities at the end of the financial year. As at 31 March
2016, the current ratio was 1.7 (2015: 1.5) which means the

Group is able to meet the creditors’ demands.

Gearing Ratio

Gearing ratio is net debt divided by the total capital plus
net debt. Net debt includes interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, trade and bills payables, deposits received,
other payables and accruals, bank advance for discounted
bills and amounts due to related parties and directors less
cash and cash equivalents. Total capital represents equity
attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company.
As at 31 March 2016, the gearing ratio was approximately
50.1% (2015: 52.3%). From a long-term perspective, the
management is committed to maintain an optimal and
stable gearing ratio, in order to achieve maximum capital

efficiency.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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PLACING OF NEW SHARES AND USE OF
PROCEEDS

On 7 August 2015, the Company raised net proceeds of
approximately HK$212.0 million through the placing of
166,000,000 new Shares at a price of HK$1.31 per share.
The Group intends to use the net proceeds from the placing
for future business development (which include expansion
of distribution network, development of new products,
enhancement of marketing and promotion efforts, etc.),
repayment of bank loans and general working capital
purposes. Details of the shares placement were disclosed in
the announcements of the Company dated 27 July 2015 and
7 August 2015.

As at 31 March 2016, the net proceeds of approximately
HK$212.0 million raised from the placement of Shares was
utilized by the Company. The net proceeds raised from the

placement of Shares were applied as to:

i. approximately 93.2% of the net proceeds or
approximately HK$197.7 million for the purchase of

goods for selling; and

i. approximately 6.8% of the net proceeds or
approximately HK$14.3 million for payment of
operating expenses such as salaries, rental expenses and

etc.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company,
or any of its subsidiaries, of the Company’s listed securities

during the Financial Year.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the Financial Year, the Group did not make any
charitable contributions (2015: Nil).
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Financial Year and

up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liang Guoxing (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wang Jindong (Chief Financial Officer)

Ms. Cheung Mei Sze

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wu Jie Si
Mr. Chen Sing Hung Johnny

Mr. Joseph Marian Laurence Ozorio

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Hung Sui Kwan

Mr. Ma Lishan

Dr. Lee Kwok Keung Edward

In accordance with Article 84 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Liang Guoxing, Mr. Joseph Marian Laurence
Ozorio, Mr. Hung Sui Kwan and Mr. Ma Lishan shall retire by
rotation at the Annual General Meeting and, being eligible,

offer themselves for re-election.

Mr. Hung and Mr. Ma will be the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company more than nine years if their
service contracts are renewed in next year. Details of their
re-election recommendation are disclosed under the section
headed “Appointment and Re-election of Directors” of the

following Corporate Governance Report.

DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
PROFILES

The profiles of the Directors and senior management of the

Group are set out on pages 38 to 49 of this annual report.
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CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS FHEESERNNED

Upon specific enquiry by the Company and following KARNTELEREERAUAREESNER
confirmations from the Directors, save as otherwise set out & ' BRARE BTHIEIN  EHESE &
in this report, there is no change in the information of the B AR ETT R AIZE13.51B(1) KB T # 5=
Directors required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) a1

of the Listing Rules.

Name of Directors Commencement Date

Esns F % B

Mr. Wang Jindong With effect from 1 January 2016, the annual salary of Mr. Wang
as executive Director had been changed from RMB833,000 to
RMB980,000.

TEREE HECZ-—RF-—A—RAE EELEHERTEEFZ2FHFHARK

833,000 L% A A R#980,0007T °

Mr. Hung Sui Kwan On 24 September 2015, Mr. Hung appointed as an executive director
and the chief executive officer of Get Net Financial Group Limited
(stock code: 1469), a company whose shares were listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange on 8 April 2016.

Mr. Hung resigned as an executive director and the chief executive

officer of Get Net Holdings Limited (stock code: 64) with effect on 8

April 2016.
I ST RIZZE-—RAFAA-_THA AELEBZERETREBBRAR

A (B 5% - 1469) (RARMBRMN R —T—RFMAN\BERBRZ
IHREM)WATESE RITHRAR -

AELEB T ANFOANAEREAFZERERARE (RO :
64) ATTE R RITHARE -

Mr. Ma Lishan Mr. Ma appointed as independent non-executive director and the
chairman of remuneration committee and a member of nomination
committee and investment committee of SRE Group Limited (stock
code: 1207) with effect on 31 March 2016.

AVATIE S B EEE T —RE=-A=T—"HREZEARLEEBERA
AI(ROARSE 1207 B FMITES  FHEESTIRUARRES
ZEERKRELZBEGZKE -

REAEEZERERLIA - ZFT - RNEFER
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EEERE
DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS BEENREEN

Each of the Directors has a service contract with the
Company for a fixed term of three years with the following

commencement dates:

Name of Directors

BEEnA

SEEHDEARARILRBELN  BUT
AMARSEEFH=F "

Commencement Date

Fa B

Mr. Liang Guoxing (Note 1)
RE WAL (B aE1)

Mr. Wang Jindong (Note 2)
EEREE (H22)

Ms. Cheung Mei Sze (Note 3)
EEXB L (HiE3)

Mr. Wu Jie Si (Note 4)
RER LA (Kit4)

Mr. Chen Sing Hung Johnny (Note 5)
BREA MG & & (B7aE5)

Mr. Joseph Marian Laurence Ozorio (Note 6)

T s A SE A (KT at6)

Mr. Hung Sui Kwan (Note 7)
IR IR S A (A7 2E7)

Mr. Ma Lishan (Note 8)
Bk E (fE8)

Dr. Lee Kwok Keung Edward (Note 9)
FERE L (H79)

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the Annual
General Meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited

12 September 2013
“E-=FAA+ZH

1 April 2016
—EF—-XFIMA—H

6 March 2014
—EF—-UF=ANH

6 March 2014
—E—NF=ZAKH

25 September 2013
“T-Z#NA-tHA

10 April 2016
“T-AFmATE

6 March 2014
—E-WF=HRH

6 March 2014
—E—NF=ZAKH

24 June 2014
—E-NEASAZ+EA

BRBRRBFAGLEENERHEEAR
BRI BA R R MERE CRERERIN) BT
AR —FRRIENRBAHL -
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The previous service contract of Mr. Liang expired on 11
September 2013 and a new service contract was entered
into between the Company and Mr. Liang for a term of
three (3) years commencing from 12 September 2013.

The previous service contract of Mr. Wang expired on 31
March 2016 and a new service contract was entered into
between the Company and Mr. Wang for a term of three (3)
years commencing from 1 April 2016.

The previous service contract of Ms. Cheung expired on 5
March 2014 and a new service contract was entered into
between the Company and Ms. Cheung for a term of three
(3) years commencing from 6 March 2014.

The previous service contract of Mr. Wu expired on 5 March
2014 and a new service contract was entered into between
the Company and Mr. Wu for a term of three (3) years
commencing from 6 March 2014.

The previous service contract of Mr. Chen expired on 24
September 2013 and a new service contract was entered
into between the Company and Mr. Chen for a term of
three (3) years commencing from 25 September 2013.

The previous service contract of Mr. Ozorio expired on 9
April 2016 and a new service contract as non-executive
Director was entered into between the Company and Mr.
Ozorio for a term of three (3) years commencing from 10
April 2016.

The previous service contract of Mr. Hung expired on 5
March 2014 and a new service contract was entered into
between the Company and Mr. Hung for a term of three (3)
years commencing from 6 March 2014.

The previous service contract of Mr. Ma expired on 5 March
2014 and a new service contract was entered into between
the Company and Mr. Ma for a term of three (3) years

commencing from 6 March 2014.
Dr. Lee was appointed by the Board as independent non-

executive Director on 24 June 2014 and a three (3) years
service contract was signed on the same date.
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DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION

The remuneration of the Directors is recommended by the
remuneration committee of the Company and is decided by
the Board, as authorised by the Shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting, having regard to the Group’s results,
Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance, and the

prevailing market conditions.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2016, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the”SFO")) (i)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which were
taken or deemed to have been taken under such provisions
of the SFO); or (ii) which were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or (iii) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model

Code contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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Shares of the Company NN E)
Approximate
percentage or
Number or attributable
attributable number percentage of
of shares held or Nature of shareholding of
Name of Director short positions Position interests the Company
REDRRAE
P 5 = B4R IR 4 BRED L
EEpR HEHKXRHE g EEME REEED L
Liang Guoxing 183,930,000 (Note 1) Long Interest in controlled 12.14%
corporation
RE M 183,930,000 (A#7:%1) ) REEEB 2 # =
480,212,500 (Note 2) Long Founder and beneficial 31.69%
object of a
discretionary trust
480,212,500 (#17t2) 1R 2REERZEBA
RE@A
700,000 (Note 3) Long Family interest 0.04%
700,000 (#77£3) 1tE EN3 i
REFEZRAER QA —E-RER




(i)
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Share Options

Underlying shares

share options as at
31 March 2016

Name of Directors

(i)

pursuant to the

5 A
Approximate
percentage or
attributable
percentage of
shareholding of
the Company

R-ZE—RF
=B=+—H R DB R
BREMSRZ MABEES
EEgE HERGEE T2
Wang Jindong (Note 4) BR (Kit4) 6,000,000 0.39%
Cheung Mei Sze (Note 4) BEXR (Hit4) 3,000,000 0.19%
Wu Jie Si (Note 4) RIER (Hit4) 1,000,000 0.06%
Chen Sing Hung Johnny PR FEE G (M 7E4) 500,000 0.03%
(Note 4)
Joseph Marian Laurence T £ (T at4) 500,000 0.03%
Ozorio (Note 4)
Hung Sui Kwan (Note 4) I (M it4) 1,000,000 0.06%
Ma Lishan (Note 4) Sz (Bt it4) 500,000 0.03%
Lee Kwok Keung Edward B (M it4) 500,000 0.03%
(Note 4)
Bt -

Notes:

These Shares were held by Keen Pearl Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and the entire issued
share capital of which is owned by Mr. Liang Guoxing, an
executive Director, the chairman and the chief executive
officer of the Company.

These Shares were held by Yinji Investments Limited. The
entire issued share capital of Yinji Investments Limited
is beneficially owned by Grand Base Holdings Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and
indirectly owned by a discretionary trust, the beneficiaries of
which are Mr. Liang Guoxing, Ms. Luo Li, the spouse of Mr.
Liang Guoxing and Miss Liang Gia Li Melody, the daughter of
Mr. Liang Guoxing. HSBC International Trustee Limited was
deemed to be interested in the Shares in the capacity of a
trustee of the discretionary trust as aforementioned.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited

2% 0% 19 fiKeen Pearl Limited (— IR B
HBREEEMK I ZAT)EBE MAR
HEHITHRABHARFTRITES  THEF
TREHRHRELEHEE -

ZEMAD AYinji Investments Limited# 7 °
Yinji Investments Limited” & &6 B2 27 A
FAGrand Base Holdings Limited (— & 7 2 /&8
HRRHESEMK I AR) BEEEE - A
— A2 ELIEERES  ZEAZZBAR
RE B L RERES SR RBERZL
NRREREEENZ R REZE/NE - ELEH
RERARAFAALMEEERZIZFEA
BWRARZERDHEERES

Annual Report 2016



REPORT OF THE
EE59

=B

These interests represent the share options granted to Ms. Luo
Li, the spouse of Mr. Liang Guoxing under the Share Option
Scheme.

These interests represent the share options granted under the
Share Option Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, none of the
Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had or
was deemed to have any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) (i) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (iii) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant

to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER" INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to the Directors and the chief executive of
the Company, as at 31 March 2016, the following persons
(not being Directors or chief executive of the Company) had,
or were deemed to have, interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or as

otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange:

REEEZRAER QA

£

DIRECTORS

H

[ ]

(3) WEEEARBEERESSITET
AR BREF L L 2 ERE -
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1 o
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é $ % #& =
Approximate
percentage or
Number or attributable
attributable number percentage of
Name of of shares held or Nature of shareholding of
Shareholders short positions Position interests the Company
RN B R E
s EERGEE BAFALR
REERE E 3-8 {E! =¥ EEHE EEEA T
Keen Pearl Limited 183,930,000 (Note 1) Long Beneficial Owner 12.14%
Keen Pearl Limited 183,930,000 (4737 1) 59} ExnEEA
Yinji Investments Limited 480,212,500 (Note 2) Long Beneficial Owner 31.69%
Yinji Investments Limited 480,212,500 (A1i#2) e ExEAA
Grand Base Holdings Limited 480,212,500 (Note 2) Long Interest in controlled 31.69%
corporation
Grand Base Holdings Limited 480,212,500 (##22) e REEEE R
HSBC International Trustee 480,212,500 (Note 2) Long Trustee of discretionary trust 31.69%
Limited
ELBBERARAA 480,212,500 (#1:22) 5] FRRELZZTEA
Luo Li 480,912,500 (Notes 2 & 3) Long Beneficial object of 31.73%
a discretionary trust,
beneficial owner
el 480,912,500 (#1722%3) e PREETIXEAN
E5HEEA
Liang Gia Li Melody 480,212,500 (Note 2) Long Beneficial object of 31.69%
a discretionary trust
REE 480,212,500 (#1:22) e PRETIZEA
Liu Yang 184,000,000 (Note 4 & 5) Long Interest in controlled corporation,  12.47%
beneficial owner
2R 184,000,000 (/1 i#4%5) ifE REEEB 2R ERBEEA
Atlantis Capital Holdings 184,000,000 (Note 4) Long Interest in controlled 12.14%
Limited (“Atlantis Capital”) corporation
FARERERBRAF 184,000,000 (#7:#4) e REEEE
(BARER])
Riverwood Asset Management 77,000,000 (Note 5) Long Interest in controlled corporation 5.08%
(Cayman) Ltd
Riverwood Asset Management 77,000,000 (#/7£5) e REEER 2 #8

(Cayman) Ltd

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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These Shares were held by Keen Pearl Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and the entire
issued share capital of which is owned by Mr. Liang
Guoxing, an executive Director, the Chairman and the chief
executive officer of the Company.

These Shares were held by Yinji Investments Limited. The
entire issued share capital of Yinji Investments Limited
was beneficially owned by Grand Base Holdings Limited,
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and
indirectly owned by a discretionary trust, the beneficiaries of
which are Mr. Liang Guoxing, Ms. Luo Li, the spouse of Mr.
Liang Guoxing, and Miss Liang Gia Li Melody, the daughter
of Mr. Liang Guoxing. HSBC International Trustee Limited
was deemed to be interested in the Shares in the capacity of
a trustee of the discretionary trust as aforementioned.

These interests included interest in 700,000 share options
granted to Ms. Luo Li, spouse of Mr. Liang Guoxing under
the Share Option Scheme.

Pursuant to the disclosure of interests notices filed by
each of Ms. Liu Yang and Atlantis Capital on 3 November
2015, among others, Atlantis Investment Management
(Hong Kong) Limited (”Atlantis (Hong Kong)”) and Atlantis
Investment Management (lreland) Limited (“Atlantis
(Ireland)”) were disclosed as having direct interest in
184,000,000 Shares and 40,000,000 Shares respectively.
Atlantis (Hong Kong) and Atlantis (Ireland) are indirect
wholly-owned and direct wholly-owned by Ms. Liu Yang and
Atlantis Capital respectively. Therefore, Ms. Liu Yang and
Atlantis Capital are deemed to be interested in the Shares
held by Atlantis (Hong Kong) and Atlantis (Ireland).

Pursuant to the disclosure of interests notices filed by each
of Riverwood Asset Management (Cayman) Ltd and Ms.
Liu Yang on 13 October 2015, among others, Riverwood
Asset Management (Cayman) Ltd was disclosed as having
direct interest in 77,000,000 Shares and was a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Ms. Liu Yang. Therefore, Ms. Liu Yang
is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Riverwood
Asset Management (Cayman) Ltd.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company were not aware
of any other person (other than Directors and the chief
executive of the Company) who had, or was deemed to
have, interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions”, no other transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance, to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Financial Year or at

any time during the Financial Year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS" INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions”, there was no contract of
significance between the Company or its subsidiaries, and
a controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries at the
end of the Financial Year or at any time during the Financial
Year. Furthermore, there was no contract of significance
for the provision of services to the Company or any of
its subsidiaries by a controlling Shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries at the end of the Financial Year or at any time

during the Financial Year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” of this report, at no time during the Financial
Year had the Company or any of its subsidiaries, holding
companies entered into any arrangement which enables
the existing Directors or chief executives to have the right
to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of Shares in, or

debentures of, the Company or any other legal entities.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Other than operating a Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme and participating the state managed
retirement benefit scheme in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC"), the Group has not operated any other

retirement benefits schemes for the Group’s employees.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Financial Year and up to the date of this report,
no Directors are considered to have interests in a business
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, as defined in

the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Financial Year, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers and purchases from the five largest suppliers
accounted for around 70.7% and 93.7% of the total sales
and total purchases for the Financial Year, respectively. The
Group's largest customer and supplier accounted for around
50.1% and 85.0% of the total sales and total purchases
for the Financial Year, respectively. The purchases excluded

inventory buy-back portion.

During the Financial Year, none of the Directors or any of
their close associates or any Shareholders which, to the
best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital, had any interest in the

Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
During the Financial Year, the Group entered into a number
of continuing connected transactions with the following core

connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules), namely:

) Silver Base (Holdings) Limited (“SBH"), a company
wholly-owned by Mr. Liang Guoxing (being also
the controlling shareholder, the chairman, the chief
executive officer and an executive Director of the

Company);
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Zhuhai Doumen Xinging Jianlong High New
Technology Industry Bonded Warehouse Limited
(HETAPIFERESIBREXZRHT A BRAQA)
(“Zhuhai Jianlong”). Zhuhai Jianlong is owned as to
56% by Ms. Su Yeqing. Ms. Su is the sister-in-law of
Mr. Liang Guoxing; and

Guizhou Yaxi Cellar Liquors Distribution Co.,
Ltd. (BEMEEZEBEEERAR])("Guizhou Yaxi
Distribution”), a company owned as to 20% by Mr.
Liang Guofeng and 80% by Mr. Liang Guomin, both

of whom are cousins of Mr. Liang Guoxing.

During the Financial Year, the Group entered into the

following continuing connected transactions:

(a)

On 26 March 2013, Silver Base International
Development Co. Limited (“Silver Base International”)
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into an agreement (the “Tenancy
Agreement”) with SBH in relation to the leasing of
House No. 8, No. 33 Island Road, Hong Kong for
the continuation and renewal of the agreement
for a term of three years commencing from 1 April
2013 at a monthly rent of HK$532,800 (exclusive of

management fee, rates, and all other outgoings).

On 29 January 2016, Silver Base International and
SBH entered into an agreement for the continuation
and renewal of the agreement (the “Renewal
Agreement”) for a term of one year commencing
from 1 April 2016 at a monthly rent of HK$600,000
(exclusive of management fee, rates, and all other

outgoings).

Details of the Tenancy Agreement and the
Renewal Agreement were stated in the Company’s
announcements dated 26 March 2013 and 29 January

2016 respectively.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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During the Financial Year, the Group mained rent to
SBH amounted to approximately HK$6,393,600 (with
the annual cap set at HK$6,400,000 for the same
period).

On 4 October 2013, Silver Base International
entered into a framework agreement (”“Framework
Agreement”) with Zhuhai Jianlong, pursuant to which
Zhuhai Jianlong will provide warehousing, logistics
and related services to the Group for a term of three
years commencing retrospectively from 1 April 2013

to 31 March 2016 (both dates inclusive).

Details of the Framework Agreement was stated in
the Company’s announcement dated 4 October 2013.

During the Financial Year, the Group paid a sum of
approximately HK$370,892 as service fee to Zhuhai
Jianlong (the annual cap for the corresponding period
is set at HK$3,000,000).

The distribution agreement and supplemental
agreement dated 1 April 2011 and 29 May 2013
respectively entered into by Silver Base Trading and
Limited GREE 5 &
B])("Silver Base Trading Shenzhen”),

Development Shenzhen) Co.,
CRID BRA
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
with Guizhou Yaxi Distribution, in relation to the
purchase and supply of baijiu products expired on
30 September 2014. On 8 August 2014, Silver Base
Trading Shenzhen entered into a new distribution
agreement with Guizhou Yaxi Distribution regarding
the purchase and supply of baijiu products for a term
of three years commencing retrospectively from 1
April 2014 to 31 March 2017 (the “2014 Distribution
Agreement”). Details of the terms and conditions
of the 2014 Distribution Agreement can be referred
to the announcement and circular of the Company
dated 8 August 2014 and 5 September 2014

respectively.
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During the year, the total procurement from Guizhou
Yaxi Distribution by Silver Base Trading Shenzhen
amounted to approximately RMB2,850,598 (with
the annual cap set at RMB200,000,000 for the same
period).

Save as disclosed above, there are no other continuing
connected transaction, which require disclosure in the

annual report in accordance with the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that the above transactions have been entered into (i) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Company; (ii)
on normal commercial terms; and (iii) in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing them during the validity of
the agreement periods on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as

a whole.

The independent non-executive Directors have further

confirmed that:

The values of continuing connected transactions entered
into between the Group and its core connected persons
which are subject to annual caps have not exceeded their

respective annual caps.

The auditors of the Company have reviewed the above-
mentioned continuing connected transactions pursuant to
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules and advised the Board in
writing (with a copy provided to the Stock Exchange) that
the transactions: (i) have been approved by the Board, (ii)
were, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group were the transactions involve the
provisions of goods in services by the Group; (iii) have been
entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing the transactions; and (iv)

have not exceeded the their respective annual caps.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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ENVIRONMENT POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The subject of sustainability has gone far beyond a slogan to
use. It is an important issue to our customers, Shareholders,
government and the general public. As a member of the
globe, the Group is committed to reduce its carbon footprint
and consumption of natural resources in all possible aspects.
Our environmental strategy is, in order to reduce the
pressure on our environment, to achieve a balance between
the quality and efficiency of our services on one hand, and
greenhouse gas emissions on the other. Having branches,
offices and warehouses located in various provinces in the
PRC, the Group is able to deliver our products from our
warehouses to our clients in a timely manner yet reducing
amount of greenhouse gas emitted arising from the delivery
of our products. In addition, the Group has taken proactive
approach to effect internal and external communications
by means of telephone, emails and video conferences or
such other communication methods which are efficient
yet environmental friendly, to replace traditional physical

travelling.

In order to protect our environment and reduce the
administrative expenses, the Group also encourages the
employees to switch off lights and air conditioners that are
unnecessary during lunch and after office hours. The Group
also installed energy efficient lighting facilities covering most

of the office space.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Financial Year, the Group had complied with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the Group, inter alias, Food Safety Law of the PRC (%
AREMBERBLZEE) and Measures for the Administration
of Alcohol Circulation (BIERBEIEDZE), as well as major
local employment regulations at all locations of operations in
the PRC.
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Forced or child labour is not of a significant concern for the
wine and liquor industry. The Group has not engaged any

forced or child labour.

Internally, to bring the operations in line with the Group’s
organisation’s commitment to the highest possible standards
of probity and accountability, a number of policies have
been adopted and shared among our staff. These include the
whistle-blowing policy, gifts and entertainment policy and
guideline on Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201

of the Laws of Hong Kong).

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES

The employees of the Group are the one of most important
assets and stakeholders of the Group and their contribution

and support are cherished at all time.

The Group regularly reviews compensation and benefit
policies according to industry benchmark, financial results
as well as the individual performance of employees so as
to offer fair and competitive compensation packages to
the employees. Other fringe benefits including insurance,
medical benefits and mandatory provident fund are
provided to retain loyal employees with the aim to form a
team of professional staff and management to fulfill the

development needs of the Group.

The Group places great emphasis on the training and
development of employees and regards excellent employees
as its core competitiveness. With a view to further enhancing
their job skills and industry knowledge, the Group has
offered various training programs to its management
staff and other employees. The Group implemented these
programs not only to enhance the quality of its staff, but
also to give the best chances for development of their

personal career.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

Our Directors believe that maintaining good relationships
with customers and suppliers has been one of the critical

success factors of the Group.

We have maintained long-termed relationship with our
major suppliers. Among them, Wuliangye Yibin Co., Ltd.,
one of the principal suppliers of premium baijiu products to
our Group, have had nearly a decade’s business relationship

with our Group.

With the mission to providing the finest wine and liquor
products to consumers, the Group is constantly screening,
sourcing and introducing products that can fulfill the needs
of the consumers, as well as the stringent requirements
of the Group. The Group works closely with our existing
suppliers who are also the producers of the products that
the Group is selling, to develop new products that can create
new demands from both the potential and the existing
customers. The Group believes that it is an essential means
to increase the sales of the Group and also the sales of our

suppliers.

It is the responsibility of the Group to supplying genuine and
safe products to our customers. Our products are primarily
sourced from producers that have complied with rigorous
product testing procedures, regulations and standards of the
countries in which they are produced. There was no reported

case of product safety recall during the year.
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In order to establish new and maintain relationships with
our customers, during the year under review, we continued
to carry out various advertising and marketing campaigns
including sponsoring of booth at conventions with the
aim of promoting and attracting potential sub-distributors,
offering gifts to certain consumers who purchased in the
designated retail outlets and placing advertisements in

magazines circulated at international duty-free conferences.

As mentioned in the chairman’s statement of this report,
the Group established partnerships with various PRC
e-commerce companies during the Financial Year with
business terms that are both in the interest of the Group
and those companies. The Group believes that the mutually
beneficial business terms are important to create a win-
win situation to both sides and to foster a long termed and

reliable relationship with our customers.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Board is responsible for monitoring the business risk
and formulating plans to mitigate potential risks and
uncertainties that materially affect the business of the
Group. The following principal risks and uncertainties may
occur individually or simultaneously. There may be additional
risk unknown and other risks which the Group currently
believes to be immaterial, but turn out to be material. If the
management team identifies any other risk to be material,
the management team will report such risk to the Board and

consider to implement a mitigation plan when appropriate.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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We rely on the supply of products
from Wuliangye Yibin Co., Ltd. and its
subsidiaries (the “Wuliangye Group”).

HPKEEERRBRRNDABRAR A
MEAR(HEAEE)HEER -

Regulatory decisions and changes in
the legal and regulatory environment
in the countries in which we operate
could materially and adversely affect

our business activities

BAREXRBMEBRRNEEREIN KL

APMELBRTMTE -

We cannot control the quality of the

products we distribute

B EEEH S HERNER

REFERERARAA - - F

Since Wuliangye Group is the largest supplier of the Group, the
business and results of operations of the Group reply on, among
other things, the continued and constant supply of the products
from Wuliangye Group and the continued appointment of the
Group as the exclusive distributor of certain products by Wuliangye
Group.

HRABRREERARENSARER  AEBENXBEMELERE
FR(AETEE IRREERERTNERHEARIRREEE
BEAEAEERETERNBREIHES -

We operate in a highly regulated industry environment. Our
business is subject to extensive regulatory requirements regarding
production, distribution, marketing, advertising and labeling in
various countries into which we distribute our products. Regulatory
decisions or changes in the legal environments in these areas may
have material and adverse impacts to our business.
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As a distributor, we cannot control the quality of the products we
distribute. Any contaminant in those raw materials or defects in the
distillation or fermentation processes could lead to inferior quality
and/or illness among or injury to our consumers and may result in
reduced sales of the affected brand(s) or all of our brand(s).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Save as disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 82 to 107, the Company has complied with the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout the Financial

Year.

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors.
The Company, having made specific enquiries to all
Directors, has ensured that all Directors have confirmed their
compliance with the required standard of dealings as set out

in the Model Code during the Financial Year.

The Company has received written annual confirmations of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent of the management of the
Company and are free from any relationship that could
materially interfere with the exercise of their independent

judgments for the Financial Year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the events after the reporting period are set out in

note 39 to the financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float

pursuant to the Listing Rules as at the date of this report.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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AUDIT COMMITTEE BEREES
The audit committee of the Company had reviewed the ARAEBEZRZESCENAETRHKREE
Group’s annual results for the Financial Year and provided ZEFEBEIRERERZRER -

advice and comments thereon.

AUDITOR = B A

The consolidated financial statements for the year were  AFEZAHTBRRCHL KEHIIES
audited by Messrs. Ernst & Young who will retire at the  FFE#% HEREEREBERNSEREER
conclusion of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, FURFEERRBERNEG LBEET-

being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board REESTE

Liang Guoxing FEFRITEAEZ
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 2 H

Hong Kong B

27 June 2016 e AN SA = Bl o o=
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INTRODUCTION
Silver Base Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”,

together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is committed
to high standards of corporate governance and business
ethics. The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of the Company believes that good corporate governance
and business ethics are essential for achieving sustainable
development, building investors’ confidence and protecting
and enhancing interests of the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”).

In pursuit of good and high standards of corporate
governance, the Board reviews the corporate governance
principles and practices of the Company from time to time
in order to meet the rising expectations of the Shareholders
and to comply with the increasing stringent regulatory
requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in

corporate governance.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Save as disclosed below, the Company has applied the
principles and complied with the code provisions (“Code
Provisions”) in the Corporate Governance Code (the”Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) throughout the
year ended 31 March 2016 (the “Financial Year”).

Under Code Provision C.1.2, the management should
provide all members of the Board with monthly updates
giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company’s performance, position and prospects in sufficient
detail to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to
discharge their duties under Rule 3.08 and Chapter 13 of the
Listing Rules.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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The management was late in providing the updates to all
members of the Board during the period from 1 April 2015
to 30 November 2015 due to the relocation of the head
office of the Company in Hong Kong. Beginning from 1
December 2015, the management has re-complied with
Code Provision C.1.2 by providing monthly updates to the
members of the Board after some improvement measures
were taken. The management has undertaken to the Board
that continuous timely monthly updates be provided in the

future.

Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed

by the same individual.

Mr. Liang Guoxing currently serves as the chairman and
the chief executive officer of the Company. The Board
believes that such arrangement is in the best interest of
the Company and the Shareholders as a whole since Mr.
Liang Guoxing has substantial experience in sales of Chinese
liguor in the PRC market and can strengthen the Group's
sales and marketing capabilities. Notwithstanding the above,
the Board meets regularly to consider matters relating to
business operations of the Group. The Board is of the view
that this arrangement will not impair the balance of power
and authority of the Board and the executive management
of the Company. The effectiveness of corporate planning
and implementation of corporate strategies and decisions

will not be affected.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is in charge of providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Group. The Directors, individually and
collectively, must act in good faith, with due diligence
and care, and in the best interests of the Group and the
Shareholders. The Board sets the Group’s overall objectives
and strategies, monitors and evaluates its operating and
financial performance and reviews the corporate governance
standard of the Group. It also decides on matters such
as annual and interim results, connected and notifiable
transactions, Directors’ appointments or re-appointments,
and dividend and accounting policies. The Board delegates

the day-to-day operations of the Group to the management.

The Board meets regularly at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals and holds additional
meetings as and when the Board thinks fit. All Directors
have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda for
Board meetings. At least 14-days formal notice would be
given before each regular meeting and reasonable notices
are given for all other ad hoc meetings, via the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”), to
the Directors and the Board procedures are in compliance
with the relevant rules and regulations. Directors may
participate either in person or through electronic means of

communication.

All minutes of Board meetings and meetings of Board
Committees (as defined hereinafter) are kept by the
Company Secretary and are available for inspection by any

Director at any reasonable time on reasonable notice.

The Company Secretary is striving to update all Directors
on the latest development of the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and

maintain good corporate governance practice.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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Each newly appointed Director is offered training on key
areas of business operations of the Group. They are offered
training materials that set out the duties and responsibilities
of Directors under the Listing Rules, related ordinances
and relevant regulatory requirements of Hong Kong. The
Company also provides professional development and
training courses to the Directors as well as the Company
Secretary to continually update their relevant skills and

knowledge.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or
other relationships with each other. Each of the independent
non-executive Directors has confirmed in writing his
independence with regard to the independence criteria
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and as at the date
of this report, the Company still considers them to be

independent.

SUPPLY OF AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION

The Company has adopted the practice to provide relevant
materials to all Directors relating to the matters brought
before the meetings at least three days before the meetings

to ensure that they are given sufficient review time.

The Company Secretary and the chief financial officer, who
is also an executive Director, attended all the Board meetings
and Board Committee meetings to advise on corporate
governance, statutory compliance and accounting and

financial matters, as appropriate.

All the Directors will be provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties, and, upon reasonable request,
the Directors will be able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses. A procedure for the Directors to seek independent

professional advice was established in January 2010.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently has nine Directors: three executive
Directors, three non-executive Directors and three

independent non-executive Directors.

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 38 to
46 of this report.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company recognises the benefits of board diversity and
endeavours to ensure that the Board has the appropriate
balance and level of skills, experience and perspectives

required to support the execution of its business strategies.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (“Board
Diversity Policy”) on 28 August 2013 which sets out its
approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in
order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board. Pursuant
to the Board Diversity Policy, the Company would consider
a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to the Directors’ gender, age, cultural and educational
background and professional experience in the industry as
preferential factors, taking into account the Company’s own

business model and special features of the industry.

The Board has set measurable objectives to implement the
Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time
to time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the
progress made towards achieving those objectives. The
nomination committee of the Company will review the Board
Diversity Policy from time to time to ensure its continued

effectiveness.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to certain
Board committees including the audit committee (the”Audit
Committee”), the compliance committee (the”Compliance
Committee”), the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) and the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) (collectively, the “Board

Committees”) of the Company.

B

ExERE
EFGOKEBBENRTESETBET
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Eg))  AMZER(AREER)) - 124
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BOARD COMMITTEES
The responsibilities and activities of each of the Board
Committees during the Financial Year are as follows. The
written terms of reference of the Board Committees are
in line with the respective Code Provisions (if any) and
are available on the Company’s website and the Stock

Exchange’s website.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditors and has
the authority to raise questions regarding the resignation or
dismissal of the auditors, reviewing of the Group’s financial
information and overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
systems, internal control procedures and risk management
frameworks. It is also responsible for reviewing the interim
and final results of the Group prior to recommending them

to the Board for approval.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive Directors including Mr. Hung Sui Kwan,
who is a qualified accountant with extensive experience in
financial reporting and controls, Mr. Ma Lishan and Dr. Lee
Kwok Keung Edward. Mr. Hung Sui Kwan is the chairman of

the Audit Committee.

The work performed by the Audit Committee for the

Financial Year is summarised below:

(@) reviewed with the external auditors the results of the
annual audit and audited report of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2015 and the interim results of
the Group for the six months ended 30 September
2015 together with senior management'’s response to
the accounting issues and major findings in the course

of audit/review;

(b) reviewed the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting

function;
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reviewed the continuing connected transactions
entered into by the Group to ensure that the
transactions had been conducted on normal
commercial terms in the ordinary and usual course
of the business of the Group and that the terms and
annual caps are fair and reasonable and in the interest

of the Group and the Shareholders as a whole;

reviewed with the senior management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed the auditing, internal controls and financial

reporting matters of the Group;

recommended the adoption of the updated terms
of reference of the Audit Committee, pursuant to
the changes to the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report in the Appendix 14
to the Hong Kong Listing Rules relating to internal

controls to the Board; and

reviewed the audit fees proposal and terms of
engagement of the external auditors of the Group for

the Financial Year.

During the Financial Year, the Board has not taken any

view that is different from that of the Audit Committee

nor rejected any recommendation proposed by the Audit

Committee.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited results of the

Group for the Financial Year with the management and the

Company’s external auditors and recommended its adoption
by the Board.
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Compliance Committee

The Compliance Committee is responsible for oversight of
the Company’s compliance with the legal and regulatory
requirements of its business operations, including but not
limited to the Listing Rules, as well as compliance with
its code of conduct and/or business ethics policies and
prevailing corporate governance practices and standards.
The Compliance Committee has reviewed the confirmation
given by Mr. Liang Guoxing and Yinji Investments Limited
of their compliance with the deed of non-competition
undertaking as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company
dated 30 March 2009.

The Compliance Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors including Mr. Hung Sui
Kwan, Mr. Ma Lishan and Dr. Lee Kwok Keung Edward and
one executive Director, Ms. Cheung Mei Sze. Mr. Hung Sui

Kwan is the chairman of the Compliance Committee.

During the Financial Year, the Compliance Committee

reviewed the following:
(@) the compliance reports prepared by the external
compliance auditor together with the senior

management and make comments thereon;

(b) the improvement measures taken by the management

to enhance the compliance procedures;

(c) the Company’s policies and practices on corporate

governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(d) the training and continuous professional development

records reported by the Directors;
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() the Company’'s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the announcements/report of interim
and annual results of the Company and the Corporate
Governance Report; and

(f)  the annual confirmation from Mr. Liang Guoxing

and Yinji Investments Limited. Details of the annual

confirmation are set out in the paragraphs headed

“Non-competition Undertaking” on page 100.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for remuneration of Directors and senior
management of the Company and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedures for developing

remuneration policy.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors including Mr. Hung
Sui Kwan, Mr. Ma Lishan, Dr. Lee Kwok Keung Edward, and
two executive Directors including Mr. Liang Guoxing and
Ms. Cheung Mei Sze. Mr. Hung Sui Kwan is the chairman of

the Remuneration Committee.

In determining emoluments payable to the Directors,
the Remuneration Committee considers factors such as
salaries paid by comparable companies, the commitment
and responsibilities of the Directors and desirability of

performance-based remuneration.

The work performed by the Remuneration Committee for

the Financial Year, is summarised below:
(@) proposed the share options granted to certain

Directors, a substantial Shareholder and employees of

the Group;
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(b) recommended the refreshment of the Share Option
Scheme limit which was duly approved by the then
Shareholders at the 2015 AGM subsequently; and

(c) reviewed the remuneration package of non-executive

Director and made recommendations to the Board.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee has a majority of independent
non-executive Directors. Currently, the Nomination
Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors including Mr. Hung Sui Kwan, Mr. Ma Lishan, Dr.
Lee Kwok Keung Edward and one executive Director, Mr.
Liang Guoxing. Mr. Hung Sui Kwan is the Chairman of the

Nomination Committee.

The function of the Nomination Committee is to make
recommendations to the Board on appointments of the
Directors, so as to ensure that all nominations are fair and

transparent.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include but

are not limited to the following:

(@) to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
at least annually and make recommendations to the
Board on any proposed changes to complement the

Company’s corporate strategies;

(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated

for directorships;

() to assess the independence of independent non-

executive Directors;
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to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointments or re-appointments of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the

chairman and the chief executive officer;

to monitor the implementation of the Board Diversity
Policy and review such policy from time to time, to
ensure the effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy;

and

to do any such things to enable the Nomination
Committee to discharge its powers and functions

conferred on it by the Board.

The work performed by the Nomination Committee for the

year ended 31 March 2016 is set out below:

(a)

(b)

(@)

(d)

(e)

assessed the independence of independent non-

executive Directors;

reviewed the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and
made recommendations to the Board on any proposed
changes to complement the Company’s corporate

strategies;

reviewed the Board Diversity Policy of the Company;

approved and recommended the renewal of service
contract of Mr. Joseph Marian Laurence Ozorio as non-

executive Director; and

recommended (i) the re-election of Mr. Liang Guoxing
as executive Director; (ii) the re-election of Mr. Joseph
Marian Laurence Ozorio as non-executive Director; and
(iii) the re-election of Mr. Hung Sui Kwan and Mr. Ma

Lishan as independent non-executive Directors.
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Corporate governance functions of the Board

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions of the Company. The Board has
reviewed this corporate governance functions and to ensure

compliance with the Listing Rules.

The attendance of each Director for the Board meetings and
the Board Committee meetings held during the Financial

Year is set out in the following table:

REPORT

ESENEXERR
%%ﬁﬁiﬁﬁ$’ﬂﬁtiamﬁ 3
FECENACEEAMERBRET LD

HMAIWRE -

TREJEEENVHREFECEFTEEER

ExgZBgg%

Meetings Attended/Eligible to Attend

HHFEIRR

BEEZER/ RERLEZER
Annual

Audit Remuneration  Nomination  Compliance General
Directors Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting
Bz Exe ENZERE HMZEE REZRE  ARZRE RREFAE
Executive Directors HrEz
Mr. Liang Guoxing (Chairman and ARALAE 910  NATER 23 11 NANER 11

Chief Executive Officer) (FEFTHE)

Mr. Wang Jindong (Chief Financial Officer) TER%L4 (BHELE 010 NATER  NARER  NATER  NANER N
Ms. Cheung Mei Sze EXRuL 010 NARER B3 NATER M n
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Wu e Si RiEREE 90  NATMER  NATER  NATER  NARER i
Mr. Chen Sing Hung Johnny LA 1010 NATER  NATER  NAMER  NATER il
Mr. Joseph Marian Laurence Ozorio EEEE 810  NAMER  NATER  NATER  NATER 01
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYF#TEZS
Mr. Hung Sui Kwan sy bites 8/10 313 33 22 22 1
Mr. Ma Lishan Sul%E 10/10 33 33 22 22 17
Dr. Lee Kwok Keung Edward FEBET 1010 33 33 N M N
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Through continuous professional development, the Directors
are kept informed on a periodic basis of major changes that
may affect the Group’s businesses, including relevant rules

and regulations.

All the Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development and the latest development to
refresh their knowledge and skills for discharging their duties
and responsibilities as Directors of the Company. Directors
are requested to provide the Company with their respective
training record pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5. According
to the records maintained by the Company, during the
Financial Year, the Directors participated in continuous
professional development by (i) attending external seminars,
training courses, conferences and programs; or (ii) reading
relevant materials and updates, relating to corporate
governance practices, directors’ duties, Listing Rules,
relevant laws and regulations, and business development of

the baijiu industry.
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The individual training record of each Director received for
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the Financial Year is summarised below:

Name of Directors

ZABAFFIEE 8 -

TXBIEARRBMRE S EENMREE

Type of continuous professional development

FEREXBRZER

attending internal briefings
and/or external seminars,
training courses,

conferences and programs

reading relevant

materials and updates

SHEABPHRER R

MREBROFHE FEMEEERR
EEnA BZIIRE - EBRRE BEFHEHE
Executive Directors HITES
Liang Guoxing 22 [ v v/
Wang Jindong FER v v/
Cheung Mei Sze =9 v/ v/
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Wu Jie Si H#ER v v
Chen Sing Hung Johnny FeR P v/ v
Joseph Marian Laurence Ozorio  fi#E 4 v/ v
Independent Non-executive B HHITES

Directors

Hung Sui Kwan 3t Ty 35 v/ v
Ma Lishan hvARl v v/
Lee Kwok Keung Edward ESEi v/ v
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DIRECTORS’'S AND OFFICER'S INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and

officers.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

A Director may be appointed either by the Shareholders in a
general meeting or by the Board upon the recommendation
from the Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee will take into consideration criteria such
as expertise, experience, integrity and commitment in
appointment of new Directors. All candidates must also
meet the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of
the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed as
independent non-executive Director should also meet the
independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

Save as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Board
Composition” in this report, during the Financial Year, the
Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and
3.10A of the Listing Rules regarding the appointment of a
sufficient number of independent non-executive Directors
and at least one of the independent non-executive Directors
must have appropriate professional qualifications or

accounting or related financial management expertise.
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All Directors, including the non-executive Directors, are
appointed for a fixed term of three years. They are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company. New Directors appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy during any year are required to
retire and submit themselves for election at the first general
meeting immediately following their appointments. Further,
at each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors
for the time being, (or, if their number is not a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) are required to retire from office by rotation and every
Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general

meeting at least once every three years.

Pursuant to Code Provision A.4.3 set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules, further appointment of an independent
non-executive Director serves more than 9 years should
be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by the
Shareholders. Mr. Hung Siu Kwan (“Mr. Hung”) and Mr.
Ma Lishan (“Mr. Ma"), independent non-executive Directors
of the Company will serve the Company more than 9
years if their service agreements are renewed in next year.
Notwithstanding that Mr. Hung and Mr. Ma will serve the
Company for nine years, there are no circumstances which
are likely to affect their independence as independent
non-executive directors. Mr. Hung and Mr. Ma are not
involved in the daily management of the Company nor in
any relationships which would interfere with the exercise
of their independent judgment. The Board considers that
Mr. Hung and Mr. Ma remain independent and believe that
they are continue to fulfill their role as independent non-
executive Directors. The Board therefore recommends to the
Shareholders of the Company that Mr. Hung and Mr. Ma
should be re-elected at the annual general meeting to be

convened on 15 August 2016.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the Financial
Year are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial

statements.

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 of the Code, the annual
remuneration of the members of the senior management
(other than the Directors) for the Financial Year by band is

set out below:

Remuneration band (in HK$)

EEkeREEENMNE
EFRPRFEOMSHERRA R

FRMITES ©

RIESTRIE) ST AHE X EBA5G 2 MERE
KRB (BERIN R RFENFEMNSIRE
BT

Number of individuals

HEsE (BT AH
0 to 1,000,000 0%1,000,000 5
1,000,001 to 2,000,000 1,000,001%2,000,000 5

2,000,001 to 3,000,000

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the
code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.
Having made specific enquiries, all Directors confirmed that
they have complied with the standards set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 31 March 2016.

The Company has adopted written guidelines, “Code for
Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees”, on no
less exacting terms than the Model Code for securities
transactions by relevant employees who are likely to be in

possession of inside information of the Company.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

The Company has been confirmed by Mr. Liang Guoxing and
Yinji Investments Limited that (i) each of them has complied
with the undertaking contained in the deed of non-
competition undertaking dated 25 March 2009 executed
by them in favour of the Group; and (ii) each of them and/
or their respective associates is not offered or becomes
aware of any new project or business opportunity directly or
indirectly to engage or becomes interested in any business
carried on by any member of the Group from time to time
or in which any member of the Group is engaged or has

invested or is otherwise involved in.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and
effective internal control system of the Group to safeguard
the Shareholders’ investment and the Company’s assets.
With the support of the Audit Committee, the Board
conducts a review and assessments of the Group’'s
internal control system on a bi-annual basis to ensure its

effectiveness.

The internal audit department of the Company is responsible
for monitoring the effectiveness of internal control
procedures and compliance with policies and standards of
the Group. It has full access to review all aspects of the
Group’s activities and internal controls. All types of audited
reports are circulated to the Audit Committee and key
management which will follow up the corrective actions
based on the recommendations made by the internal audit

department.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited

SRS

2B H5E 4 KYinji Investments Limited & A7
REHER KEH-—EBTER-_FTAH
FZAZTHBERAEENGME A T5E
FRBZONAERAE  BEER K
HBEZENBHEA LR EARRESEEER
R AL RFIEB KEHE - MZEE XE
WIhEZESEEREAEEERKERRIMR
MENED  IAEBEAKE QTS KK
BRESUNEM AR ENER (KRNEFHEE
) o

KR EE 4
EFERRRARAKERRENA MM AR
EEHE ARERRZEENARFZE
Eo-HBRZZEGZXRBT BEFE8YF
o af K BT A% AN 5 [ A 7 P BE 4 R DA R AR L
TZBR -

RARANBEZAIEEEE

TR B RUA R B B ST AR R B BUR R AR
ENEK - ZHMT2EAFEHNAEESIE
MEBRABELEEE  -TEKLEZREY
BRABGZZESGRIZEEESEN WHR
F IR N BRI BB PTIR B B R i SRR AT 2R
=i -

Annual Report 2016



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ST

The Board, through the Audit Committee, coupled with
the assistance of the chief financial officer, the Company
Secretary and internal audit department, has conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal
control, covering major financial, operational, compliance
control and risk management functions for the Financial
Year. The Group’s system of internal control includes
the setting up of a management structure with limits of
authority, and is designed to help the Group to achieve its
business objectives, protects its assets against unauthorised
use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use or for publication, and ensure
compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The system is
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss, and to manage
rather than eliminate all risks of failure in the Group’'s
operational systems and in the achievement of the Group’s
business objectives. After reviewing the Group’s internal
control system, the Board considers that the internal control
system is effective and adequate for the Group as a whole.
The Board further considers that (i) there was no material
issues relating to the internal controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions of the Group; and (ii) there were adequate staff
with appropriate qualification and experience, resources for
accounting and financial reporting function, and adequate
training programmes and budget have been provided during

the Financial Year.
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DIRECTORS" AND EXTERNAL AUDITORS’
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation
of accounts of each financial period, which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of
the results and cash flows for that period. In preparing the
accounts of the Group for the Financial Year, the Directors
have selected suitable accounting policies and have applied
them consistently, adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standards
which are pertinent to its operations and relevant to the
financial statements, made judgments and estimates that are
prudent and reasonable, and have prepared the accounts on

the going concern basis.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements for the Financial Year which were
prepared in accordance with statutory requirements and

applicable accounting standards.

The reporting responsibility of the external auditors of the
Group on the financial statements of the Group are set out

on pages 108 to 111 of this annual report.

The Directors have confirmed that the Company has the
ability to continue as a going concern. Your attention is also
drawn to note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements

on pages 117 to 123 of this annual report.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS" REMUNERATION

Messrs. Ernst & Young has been appointed as the external

SNEERX ELRTD 2 BN &
TXEHMEBARN _E—RAEREBEAX
ELERRZAREARAZINEZEAD - 1
MBEE  strAsEBRE R8I
ZERBMEN AT RKE TR E T
MERMT :

auditors of the Company by the Shareholders at the 2015
AGM. During the Financial Year, the fees paid/payable to
Messrs. Ernst & Young in respect of audit and non-audit

services provided to the Group were as follows:

For the year
ended 31 March

For the year
ended 31 March

2016 2015

BE-ZE—XE HE_ZT—HHF

=A=+—H” =A=+—H

ILEE IEFE

HK$ HK$

Type of services R &S BT BT
Audit services % R 7% 2,600,000 2,500,000
Non-audit services IEAZ RS 960,000 1,060,000
Total et 3,560,000 3,560,000

The non-audit services include interim review fee and tax

HZBRGEETPEMELRNEEAE

consultation fee.

COMPANY SECRETARY NERE

The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and is AR ERA I EERT B SO YT LEY
responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance MEBELRHER NUREE  AFWE
matters. During the Financial Year, the Company Secretary B SFSF R EEEYHE o

has complied with the professional training requirements
under the Code.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company endeavours to maintain a high level of
transparency in communication with the Shareholders
and investors in general. The various formal channels via
which the Company communicates with its Shareholders
include interim and annual reports, information on the
Stock Exchange’s and the Company’s websites, and general

meetings.

The Company holds press and analysts conferences from
time to time at which the executive Directors and senior
management of the Group are available to answer questions
regarding the performance of the Group. The Company also
arranged analysts’ briefings and road shows after its annual

and interim results announcements.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Company recognises its responsibility to look after the

interests of the Shareholders.

A written Shareholders Communication Policy approved by

the Board is available on the Company’s website.

All notice of general meetings despatched by the Company
to the Shareholders have been sent in the case of annual
general meeting at least 20 clear business days before the
meeting and in the case of extraordinary general meetings
(an "EGM") at least 10 clear business days before such
meetings. Shareholders are encouraged by the Company to
attend the Company’s general meetings where the chairman
of the Board, the Directors including the chairman of the
audit committee and the external auditors are available to
answer questions. Separate resolutions are proposed at the

general meetings on each substantially separate issue.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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The Company is aware of its obligations under the Listing
Rules in relation to the disclosure of inside information
and has established procedures to ensure that all
communications with the public, including the investment
community and the media, are fair, and that material non-

public information is not disseminated on a selection basis.

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company can deposit a written
requisition to convene an EGM at the head office of the
Company in Hong Kong at the address stated on page 8
of this annual report for the attention of the Company
Secretary. The same procedure also applies to any proposal

to be tabled at general meetings for adoption.

The written requisition must state the objects of the meeting
together with proposals to be put forward at such meeting,
signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned and may consist of
several documents in like form, each signed by one or more

of those Shareholders.

The requisition will be verified with the Company’s share
registrars and upon their confirmation that the requisition
is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask
the Board of the Company to convene an EGM after the
deposit of such requisition by serving sufficient notice
in accordance with the statutory requirements to all the
registered Shareholders. Such EGM shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition. On the
contrary, if the requisition has been verified as not in order,
the Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this outcome

and accordingly, an EGM will not be convened as requested.
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If within twenty-one days of the deposit of a requisition
which is proper and in order, the Board fails to proceed to
convene an EGM, the requisitionist(s) may convene an EGM,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board to convene the EGM

shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

The procedures by which enquiries may be put to
the Board

The enquiries must be in writing with contact information
of the Shareholder(s) and deposited at the head office of
the Company in Hong Kong at the address stated on page
8 of this annual report for the attention of the Company

Secretary.

The procedures for a Shareholder to propose a

person for election as a director of the Company
A Shareholder may propose a person for election as a
director of the Company at the general meeting of the
Company by lodging the following documents at the head
office of the Company in Hong Kong at the address stated
on page 8 of this annual report for the attention of the

Company Secretary:
1. a notice in writing of the intention to propose that
person for election as a director of the Company in

which the following information should be included:

(a) the biographical details of that person as required
by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules; and

(b) the contact details of the proposing Shareholder

and that person.

2. a notice in writing by that person of his willingness to

be elected as a director of the Company.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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Such notice shall be lodged at least seven clear days
before the date of the general meeting and the period for
lodgement of such notices shall commence no earlier than
the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and end no later than
seven days prior to the date of such general meeting. If the
notice is received less than fourteen clear days and ten clear
business days prior to the date of such general meeting, the
Company will need to consider the adjournment of such
general meeting in order to give the Shareholders sufficient

notice of the proposal.

The Company did not make any changes to its constitutional

document during the Financial Year.
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Ernst & Young

22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central
Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2846 9888
Fax: +852 2868 4432
www.ey.com

EY =x

To the shareholders of Silver Base Group Holdings
Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Silver Base Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries set out on pages 111 to 231, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and

other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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AUDITORS" RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures

selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of

the consolidated financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
and its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2016, and of their
financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to
note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements which
indicates that excluding the write-back of impairment, net of
HK$17,843,000, the Company and its subsidiaries recorded
a consolidated profit before tax of HK$1,956,000 during
the year ended 31 March 2016, and the Company and its
subsidiaries had net cash outflows used in financing activities
of approximately HK$67,161,000. These conditions,
along with other matters as set forth in note 2.1 to the
consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence
of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt
about the ability of the Company and its subsidiaries to
continue as a going concern. As explained in note 2.1 to
the consolidated financial statements, these consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis, the validity of which is dependent on the ability of
the Company and its subsidiaries to extend their short-term
borrowings upon maturity, source additional debt financing
and refinance their existing indebtedness; and to improve
their operation to generate adequate cash flows to meet the
financial obligations of the Company and its subsidiaries as

and when they fall due in the foreseeable future.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 June 2016

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
EHERZR

Year ended 31 March 2016 —E—<"F=A=+—HLFE

2016 2015
—E—XRE —ET-HF
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
(N =a FHET FAETT
REVENUE U %8 5 1,260,232 418,865
Cost of sales 5 A (1,026,253) (336,182)
Gross profit EH 233,979 82,683
Other income and gains, net E g A R zs (GF%8) 5 77,463 1,084
Selling and distribution expenses HE RKHER (180,752) (180,141)
Administrative expenses TEER (103,223) (110,719)
Write-back of impairment, net B oRECFRE) 17,843 170,948
Finance costs & KA 6 (25,511) (30,808)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BB BIAE, (EE) 7 19,799 (66,953)
Income tax credit T8 EiiK & 10 110,550 47,516
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR EERE(FFE) 130,349 (19,437)
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: 1L -
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS EATEBEREEA
OF THE COMPANY 130,408 (19,098)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FEHHEER (59) (339)
130,349 (19,437)
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE AAFEBEERZEE AEN
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY BREAN(FE)
EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY
Basic (HK cents) FH AR GB) 12 8.95 (1.41)
Diluted (HK cents) #3881 12 8.84 (1.41)

REEEZRAER QA —E-RER



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FEEWBAR

Year ended 31 March 2016 —E—~"F=A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E-XKE —E—RF
HK$’' 000 HK$’000
FExT FATT
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FEFME(BE) 130,349 (19,437)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Ht2EmK A (BE)
INCOME/(LOSS)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) REBBHEEETSE
to be reclassified/reclassified to profit B EFHEZRIEZHZ
or loss in subsequent periods: Hpzmk A (BE):
Exchange differences on translation of & /G 5N E 5 AT E £ 1Y
foreign operations fE N =%E (45,654) 1,093
Realisation of exchange fluctuation HFHNBARMER
reserve upon dissolution SNVER B B
of subsidiaries (186) 150
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) W {E % BRI GEFH D E
to be reclassified/reclassified to profit CEEFOEEEEZ
or loss in subsequent periods HibhZ2EEA
(E18) F8 (45,840) 1,243
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE EEHM2EBRA S
INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR, (E18) » MERBiE
NET OF TAX (45,840) 1,243
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE FEZEWA(FE) B8
INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 84,509 (18,194)
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: A
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS KAFEREEZHEA
OF THE COMPANY 84,568 (17,855)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FEEFIEER (59) (339)
84,509 (18,194)

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

®
268 B R &

31 March 2016 —ZE—X<"F=A=+—H

2016 2015
—E-REF —T-RF
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
M =E FExT FAET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FIRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 13 9,674 12,829
Investment property WA 14 - 6,711
Intangible asset BIVAE 15 8,300 8,300
Deposits b gera 19 2,561 3,277
Total non-current assets FERBEERTE 20,535 31,117
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Property held for sale RESEME 16 9,606 =
Inventories PER=Y 17 692,837 758,305
Trade receivables e B 18 23,013 1,155
Bills receivable e W = \TJ% 18 48,249 74,613
Prepayments, deposits and EBRRIE He2k
other receivables ,H\MJEHK%’\IE 19 853,956 366,263
Pledged deposits e T 20 75,000 15,150
Cash and cash equivalents BekREeEED 20 300,709 170,058
Total current assets MENE EBTE 2,003,370 1,385,544
CURRENT LIABILITIES nE8E
Trade payables FETE 558 21 10,143 3,857
Bills payable B RE 21 615,000 =
Deposits received, other payables BEWET® - EfbfER
and accruals RIEREFTEE 22 240,544 168,254
Bank advance for discounted bills IRITRIRERIBE B 18 28,800 73,540
Interest-bearing bank and FHESRITR
other borrowings EMEE 23 222,000 453,897
Due to related parties 15 g Bt 5 SR0E 33 160 4,313
Due to directors BN EEFRIE 33 1,251 28,872
Tax payable JE 1~ 5 18 64,841 171,954
Total current liabilities nB B EEE 1,182,739 904,687
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 820,631 480,857
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBARE
LIABILITIES 841,166 511,974
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FRBEME
Bond payables B E S 24 13,997 -
Net assets EEFE 827,169 511,974
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to ordinary AT EEER
equity holders of the Company BEAEEES
Issued capital EEITHRA 26 151,521 134,921
Reserves G 28 676,701 378,047
828,222 512,968
Non-controlling interests Ik £ B R 2R (1,053) (994)
Total equity M AR 827,169 511,974
R E FER
Liang Guoxing Wang Jindong
o EE
Director Director

REEEZRAER QA —E-RER



CONSOLIDATED STATEjfl\q/IFE\I\l/TﬁgFE%I-%\NGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 March 2016 —ZE—~"E=A=+—HILEE

Attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company

KOEREREEARL
Share Capital ~ Share  Statutory  Exchange Non-
Issued ~premium  Capital redemption option  surplus fluctuation Accumulated controlling ~~~ Total
apitl  account  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reseve  losses  Total interests  equity
hih Br BRE iR JE b2
BRfRA  RER EAEE RERE 0 8% BBDES RBRE ZHEE & ER  EmE
Notes HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'00D  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HKS'000
it Tan TR T Thr T TAr TR TEr TEr  TEr TEn
(note 281)) (note 28(i)
(ztas) (kasi)
At1 Apri 2014 R-Z-REMA-A 135475 485148 (380) 1000 87698 7148 15665 (4324200  S046M (655 503,986
Logs for the year ERER - - - - - (19098 (19098 (3 (19437
Other comprehengivencome ~ EEEH2TYA:
for the year
Bichange differences on AEBNZRAELY
tranlaton of freign ErZE
operations - - - - - 1,003 - 1,093 - 1093
Realisaion of exchange i
flctuaton eserve upon TEENERDRE
dissolution of subsidaries - - - - 150 - 150 - 150
Totd comprehensie ncomel~ £E 2NN/
(loss) forthe year (BE) 28 = - 2 - 128 (1908 (8% (%9 (1819
Fuitpsettd shareoption~ JLERREZ BRERH
arrangements 1 - - - 317% - - - 317% 31,79
Shareoptions lapsedand  EREXARREE
cancelled - - - - (119494 - - 11949 - = A
Repurchase of shares BERA % (554 (5060 - 554 - - G54 (81 - (561
A 31 Mrch 2015 and R-Z-1E=A=1-BR
at 1 Apil 2015 AE-1%WA-A 134921 480,088 (380 1,554 T1462F 157901%  (332578)F 512,968 (994) 511974
Profitoss for the year EEAIE/ (58) - - - 130408 130,408 (59 130349
Other compreensre ERERZE
incomefloss) fo the year KA/ (BB) -
Bxchange differences on BESSHBAEED
translation of foreign EizE
operations - - - - (4654 - (45654 - (85
Realisation of exchange REHHELT
fluctuation reserve upon MEENERDEE
dissolution of subsidiaries - - - - (180) - (186) - (186)
Total comprehensive income/ ~ FE2ERA/
(los) or the year (BiE) 28 - - - - (45840) 130408 84568 (59 84509
Fouitysetted share option ~~ h{iEREEZ
anangements EfrExs ] - - - - 18667 - 18667 - 18667
lsue of shares ! 2 16600 200860 - - - - 17460 - 1740
Share issue expenses Ri%nER 2% - 4 - 3 = (5,441 - 5
t 31 March 2016 N-F-7E=f=1-H 151,521 675,507 (380 1554 18867 T162*  112,061F (02,170 828222 (109) 827,169
e These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves * ZERBEROREAMHUMBRAZTANEG
of HK$676,701,000 (2015: HK$378,047,000) in the Bt f# #676,701,0008 T (Z T — A F :

consolidated statement of financial position. 378,047,000% 7T) °

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited « Annual Report 2016



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EHRERER

Year ended 31 March 2016 —E—<"F=A=+—HLFE

2016 2015
—E-RE —E-AF
Notes HK$' 000 HK$' 000
Bt & FERT FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM EETBNRERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax B ATRE, (EE) 19,799 (66,953)
Adjustments for: BT SIEFTER FHE -
Gain on disposal of an investment HE—EREME
property ol 5 (10,306) =
Interest income B U A 5 (209) (431)
Finance costs BE KA 6 25,511 30,808
Depreciation e 7 8,323 15,043
Loss on disposal of items of HENE  BE K
property, plant and equipment [BEE BB 7 508 22
Loss/(gain) on dissolution of REMBARNER,
subsidiaries (Yz) 7 (186) 150
Impairment allowance of FEWE 55 IE 2
trade receivables AR 7 - 504
Write-back of impairment BEEKESHIEL
allowance of trade receivables BERE 7 (9,686) (152,003)
Write-back of impairment BEEKERZ
allowance of bills receivable WERE 7 (5,555) (7,054)
Impairment allowance of prepayments BRI e H At fE U
and other receivables FIE 2 RE RS 7 1,850 240
Write-back of impairment allowance of o178 11 3018 R E A
prepayments and other receivables W FRIE < RE B 7 (4,452) (12,635)
Provision for inventories in respect of MR E 2R FE
write-down to net realisable value 2IEEERE 7 17,408 21,517
Provision for a claim RREE 7 12,261 =
Equity-settled share option expense NEREE EREER 7 18,667 31,796
73,933 (138,996)
Decrease in inventories FERD 48,060 106,572
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables EWE SZIERD /(M) 29 (12,172) 39,313
Decrease/(increase) in bills receivable FEMWZ R D, () 29 26,364 (49,402)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, BRRIE EweREM
deposits and other receivables FEd TR IBR > () (484,375) 10,166
Increase in trade payables &8 2 ZIEE 6,286 182
Increase in bills payable e RIRIE N 615,000 -
Increase in deposits received, ElET® - HftENFIER
other payables and accruals FE5 B EE N 60,029 11,503
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXZHT L (FHE)
changes, net (53,834) 952
Cash generated from/(used in) LB/ (A WA
operations 279,291 (19,710)
Interest received B FIE 209 431
Interest paid ERFE (24,339) (30,808)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded BEREEBANEH - 14,500
Elsewhere tax paid B HEAME R A (32) (195)
Elsewhere tax refunded BR8] H At b [ B I8 8,963 -
Net cash flows from/(used in) BEEHME(FTA)
operating activities MR e REFHE 264,092 (35,782)
continued/...
PREEMBERERAAN - —FT— AER ...



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EHRERER

Year ended 31 March 2016 —E—~"F=A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E—RE —ZET—AF
Notes HK$' 000 HK$' 000
Bt & FET FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM RETBNRESRE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, BEWE  BERZE
plant and equipment HHE 13, 29 (6,260) (972)
Purchase of property held for sale BERAGEME 16, 29 (4,341) ~
Proceeds from disposal of items of HENE  BER
property, plant and equipment BB MR 225 =
Proceed from disposal of an HE-EREMER
investment property P {5 I8 14 17,000 -
Increase in pledged deposits B ZE M (59,850) (6,324)
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXEHTE (FH)
changes, net (2,328) 15
Net cash flows used in investing BEEHA
activities MIREREFE (55,554) (7,281)
CASH FLOWS FROM METBNRERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BIIROBAERIEA 26 217,460 =
Share issue expenses BOBETER 26 (5.441) r
Shares repurchased 8 @ % n 26 - (5,614)
Decrease in amounts due to directors e ZEEFIER D (27,621) (19,955)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to JEfT #B RS 5 FA
related parties @,/ CRd) (4,153) 4,153
Increase/(decrease) in bank advance RITERIRZ BT m/
for discounted bills CR) (44,740) 52,735
New bank and other loans and IBRITREMETU R
trust receipt loans EFUIEER 303,727 560,762
Repayment of bank and other loans ERRITREMETUAK
and trust receipt loans EREWEBER (535,624) (461,413)
Proceeds from issue of bonds, BITEAFMEHRE
net of paid related expenses HGRENEEER 24 12,825 =
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXZFEHTE(FH)
changes, net 16,406 -
Net cash flows from/(used in) REEHHE, (FTH)
financing activities MRS MEFE (67,161) 130,668
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRESEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS BmFE 141,377 87,605
Cash and cash equivalents FOReRReEED
at beginning of year 170,058 82,340
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXEHTE(FER)
changes, net (10,726) 113
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRACRESEEY
AT END OF YEAR 300,709 170,058
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH ReRESZEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EER D AT
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMREEED 20 300,709 170,058

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2016



2.1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 85 ¥R AR MY 5E

31 March 2016 —ZE—X<"F=A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 12 September
2007. The registered office of the Company is located
at the office of Codan Trust Company (Cayman)
Limited, whose address is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong is located at Room 1802-03,
18th Floor, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
distribution of Wuliangye (F1&/#&) liquor series,
National Cellar 1573 baijiu with 43% alcohol content,
Kweichow Moutai Chiew products, Fen Wine with
55% alcohol content liquor series, Red Fen Shijia
liquor series, Yaxi Classic liquor series and Old Vintage
liquor series, wine, foreign liquor series and Chinese
cigarettes.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R 2% Mt &

31 March 2016 —ZE—X<"F=A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1 GREEAE (F)

Going concern basis

The Group recorded revenue and a consolidated
profit before tax of HK$1,260,232,000 (2015:
HK$418,865,000) and HK$19,799,000 (2015:
consolidated loss before tax of HK$66,953,000),
respectively, for the year ended 31 March 2016.
Excluding the write-back of impairment, net of
HK$17,843,000, the Group recorded a consolidated
profit before tax of HK$1,956,000 for the year,
which included (i) provision for inventories in respect
of write-down to net realisable value amounting to
HK$17,408,000 (2015: HK$21,517,000); and (ii)
share option expense amounting to HK$18,667,000
(2015: HK$31,796,000). These non-cash items had not
affected the Group's operating cash flows. The Group
had net cash outflows used in financing activities of
approximately HK$67,161,000 (2015: net cash inflows
of approximately HK$130,668,000) for the year ended
31 March 2016.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group recorded net current
assets of HK$820,631,000 (2015: HK$480,857,000),
which included inventories of HK$692,837,000
(2015: HK$758,305,000), trade receivables of
HK$23,013,000 (2015: HK$1,155,000), pledged
deposits of HK$75,000,000 (2015: HK$15,150,000),
cash and cash equivalents of HK$300,709,000 (2015:
HK$170,058,000) and outstanding bank and other
loans of HK$222,000,000 (2015: HK$453,897,000)
and bills payable of HK$615,000,000 (2015: Nil), which
were due for repayment or renewal within the next
twelve months after 31 March 2016.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 85 ¥R AR MY 5E

31 March 2016 —ZE—X<"F=A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Going concern basis (continued)

The bills payable of HK$615,000,000 were arranged
in respect of the Group’s purchase prepayments
to a supplier and are due for repayment in January
and March 2017. In the event that the cash flows
generated from the operating activities of the Group
are insufficient to pay the bills payables on the due
dates, the Group will negotiate with the grantor bank
in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) for the

extension or renewal of the facilities.

In view of these circumstances, the directors of the
Company have given consideration to the future
liquidity and performance of the Group and its
available sources of finance in assessing whether
the Group will have sufficient financial resources to

continue as a going concern.

In order to improve the Group’s liquidity and cash
flows to sustain the Group as a going concern,
the Group implemented or is in the process of

implementing the following measures:

(1) Bank facilities

Subsequent to 31 March 2016, in May 2016,
the Group has successfully obtained a new long-
term bank loan of RMB165 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$198 million) from a bank in
the PRC, of which RMB20 million (equivalent to
HK$24 million) will be due for repayment within
twelve months from the end of the reporting
period, for the Group's partial repayment
of short-term bank loan of RMB185 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$222 million) due

in April 2016.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R 2% Mt &

31 March 2016 —ZE—X<F=A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Going concern basis (continued)

(1)

(2)

(3)

Bank facilities (continued)

The Group will actively negotiate with the PRC
banks for the renewal of the Group’s PRC bank
borrowings and bills payable when they fall due
to secure necessary facilities to meet the Group’s
working capital and financial requirements in
the near future. The directors of the Company
have evaluated all the relevant facts available to
them and are of the opinion that there have a
good track record or relationship with the banks
which will enhance the Group's ability to renew

the Group’s PRC bank loans and facilities upon

expiry.

Fund raising activities

The Group will actively seek opportunities to
carry out fund raising activities including but
not limited to issuance of bonds as alternative
sources of funding. Subsequent to the end
of the reporting period, the Group has issued
an unlisted bond with principal amount of
HK$51,300,000 for the Group’s working capital.

Attainment of profitable and positive cash
flow operations

The Group is taking measures to tighten cost
controls over various costs and expenses and to
seek new investment and business opportunities
with the aim to attain profitable and positive cash

flow operations.

In order to enhance the Group’s online sale
and marketing channels for its winery products,
the Group has entered into various service
agreements with certain e-commerce platform

service providers, and operated an online store.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 85 ¥R AR MY 5E

31 March 2016 —E—~"E=A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Going concern basis (continued)

(3) Attainment of profitable and positive cash
flow operations (continued)

In addition, the Group will actively expand its
middle to low-end product lines for the existing
national brand in order to enhance market
position in the baijiu industry and diversify

sources of revenue.

After taking into account the above measures, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group will
have sufficient working capital to finance its operations
and financial obligations as and when they fall due,
and accordingly, are satisfied that it is appropriate to
prepare the financial statements on a going concern

basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to write
down the value of assets to their recoverable amounts
and to provide for any future liabilities which might
arise. The effect of these adjustments has not been

reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 March 2016. A subsidiary is
an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give
the Group the current ability to direct the relevant

activities of the investee).
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

B 85 ¥R 3R MY 5t

31 March 2016 —ZE—X<"F=A=+—H

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over

an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote

holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual

arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to

be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the ordinary
equity holders of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full

on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described for subsidiaries above. A change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of
control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-
controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i)
(i) the

fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any

the fair value of the consideration received,

resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s
share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
accumulated losses, as appropriate, on the same basis
as would be required if the Group had directly disposed

of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised standards
for the first time for the current year’'s financial

statements.

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

Other than as explained below regarding the impact
of Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
and Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013
Cycle, the adoption of the above revised standards has
had no significant financial effect on these financial

statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R 2% Mt &

31 March 2016 —ZE—X<"F=A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a)

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-
2012 Cycle issued in January 2014 sets out
amendments to a number of HKFRSs. Details of
the amendments that are effective for the current

year are as follows:

o HKFRS 8 Operating Segments: Clarifies that
an entity must disclose the judgements
made by management in applying the
aggregation criteria in HKFRS 8, including a
brief description of operating segments that
have been aggregated and the economic
characteristics used to assess whether the
segments are similar. The amendments
also clarify that a reconciliation of segment
assets to total assets is only required to be
disclosed if the reconciliation is reported
to the chief operating decision maker. The
amendments have had no impact on the

Group.

o HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures: Clarifies
that a management entity (i.e., an entity
that provides key management personnel
services) is a related party subject to related
party disclosure requirements. In addition,
an entity that uses a management entity is
required to disclose the expenses incurred
for management services. The amendment
has had no impact on the Group as the
Group does not receive any management

services from other entities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R 2% Mt &

31 March 2016 —ZE—X<"F=A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-
2013 Cycle issued in January 2014 sets out
amendments to a number of HKFRSs. Details of
the amendments that are effective for the current
year are as follows:

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement: Clarifies
that the portfolio exception in HKFRS 13
can be applied not only to financial assets
and financial liabilities, but also to other
contracts within the scope of HKFRS 9 or
HKAS 39 as applicable. The amendment is
applied prospectively from the beginning of
the annual period in which HKFRS 13 was
initially applied. The amendment has had no
impact on the Group as the Group does not
apply the portfolio exception in HKFRS 13.

HKAS 40 Investment Property: Clarifies
that HKFRS 3, instead of the description
of ancillary services in HKAS 40 which
differentiates between investment property
and owner-occupied property, is used to
determine if the transaction is a purchase
of an asset or a business combination.
The amendment is applied prospectively
for acquisitions of investment properties.
The amendment has had no impact on the
Group.

In addition, the Company has adopted the

amendments to the Rules Governing the Listing

of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) issued by The

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong

Kong Stock Exchange”) relating to the disclosure

of financial information with reference to the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) during the

current financial year. The main impact to the financial

statements is on the presentation and disclosure of

certain information in the financial statements.

REEEZRAER QA

22 SRRV BB R E (F)

by R-ZT—WNF—RABRMZEELY
BHEER FRNERR (= F
——FE_F-ZFHH)EIZ
AEBMBREERNZIEFT - RA
FEERNEBETFBHT

o FBARAUBBMEEANBIZRA
FlEEFNE BEFRBMB
SEAE1FHEEEH R
TMEERREREENTR
BE TERBRBEMBR
SERFIFAF B LR
395k (MER) BERE
HMAH - IEFT B BRE
RAEBM RS ERNF135
ZF R E R R R AR
BA-mRAEEYERRE
B mE ER 135 2 A
BZEMR  BMRFEFTHA
SEBERZE-

o FHAEGHEAFIREKEY
X BERERAEVBRS
RRIFEIW (MIEFBGTE
A4 F RO R E YR E
XTERMEZEHDREHE
M) REEXZBEEWE
BRERGAM ZEBFIRNE
MRERANKBREDE
HRETH AR AR BT E -

AN RAFREE - 2EFBRAK
7 (5£622%) » ARAIDERMNETEH
EBRGMERAR ([BRBRM]) &EF5
EFRANT ERRRND BREFBEREK
BB - BUBHmRZIEZERY
BHEANETERZ 2PN MIKE -

[l
A
|
2
*R
+HH
5qd



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R 2% Mt &

31 March 2016 —ZE—X<F=A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 BHEMERERNE B EIR

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HEH
STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and RNEBNRARTBHRERIIBEBEATIIEE

B s R AR RO AT AR IERT BB BT 7%

revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these financial statements.

s -

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments? BRMBREEEY SHIA
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets ERMBBEENE0% REZLABEL TS
and HKAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and its REEGHEREN RENLEZEZEE
Associate or Joint Venture® (ZZ——F) i HELTE

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
(2011)

Investment Entities: Applying

the Consolidation Exception'

BRMBHREEUSE 0%
ERMBRSEAZ R
REEG £ S 285
(ZF——F)0ET

REEE BRAHTE

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions ERAMBREENENT WKELELEERZY
of Interests in Joint MEET iR
Operations'
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts® EAUNBREENE R EEFELES
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with REUBREEAZISS  EFAMUR
Customers?
HKFRS 16 Leases® ERUBREENS6R HE
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative' BRGENE1RMEBT AFHE
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable RAEHENEIRR  BEUESHNEREY
and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation and BEQHENE385 VA

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amortisation’

Agriculture: Bearer Plants'

BT

EREHEAEI6HR
EaeeaENg
il

RE:LEREY

Amendments to HKAS 27 (2011)  Equity Method in Separate BRI ENETSR BUBHZEERDE
Financial Statements' (ZE——F)MEi
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of FENEFRR (—F——F HEEEEUEREES
2012-2014 Cycle HKFRSs' EoE-RERH) ol EHE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R 2% Mt &

31 March 2016 —E—XE=A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019

Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its
annual financial statements beginning on or after 1
January 2016 and therefore is not applicable to the
Group

No mandatory effective date yet determined but is
available for adoption

The Group is in the process of making an assessment

of the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon

initial application but is not yet in a position to state

whether these new and revised HKFRSs would have

any significant impact on its results of operations and

financial position.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R 2% Mt &

31 March 2016 —ZE—X<"F=A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 BEREFTHBERBE (8)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment property at fair
value for the disclosure in the note to the financial
statements at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their

economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant

that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and

minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R 2% Mt &

31 March 2016 —E—~"E=A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRETHBRME (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued) NFEEEGTE(E)
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured R EHmERGTERREN R FEENM
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised BEERBE HRBEHAFEENE
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, BEME %EKE’JE‘T&J‘%J)\%@F&T
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the NEBEERETHHE

fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) FIR-—ERECRFNEEXBEL LR
in active markets for identical assets or TIHEME (REFHE)
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the E2R - ERAIESAEESHEER
lowest level input that is significant to the BRI A FEBEFEEERE
fair value measurement is observable, either B A BRI EF X
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the FEIF - ERNBEEBEEBE QAT EER
lowest level input that is significant to the EHEKEEH ASBRNGEE
fair value measurement is unobservable 75

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the REERVBREBERNEERBEM
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group T AKEREmERRK  BBEE
determines whether transfers have occurred between BATEEEHEN&ERE#H AR
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation EHTEOE ETASETEERE
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to w5 o

the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of

each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 BEREFTHBERBE (8)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories and financial assets), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less
costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to

which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the

impaired asset.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of

profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of

the Group;

or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of

the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary

or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures

of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the

Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled

by a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity

(or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the

parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2016 —E—~"E=A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
When an item of property, plant and equipment
is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a
disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not
depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5, as further explained in the accounting
policy for “Non-current assets and disposal groups
held for sale”. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its

working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection
is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them

accordingly.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EREFTHEBE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of each item of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this

purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the

lease terms and 20%

Furniture and fixtures 20%
Office equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each

financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sale proceeds and the

carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investment property

Investment property is an interest in land and
building held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business.
Such property is stated at cost, including transaction
costs, less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and is depreciated on the straight-
line basis to write off the cost of the property over its

estimated useful life of 50 years.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on
the retirement or disposal of an investment property
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the

year of the retirement or disposal.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held

for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be
recovered principally through a sales transaction rather
than through continuing use. For this to be the case,
the asset or disposal group must be available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only
to terms that are usual and customary for the sale of
such assets or disposal groups and its sale must be
highly probable. All assets and liabilities of a subsidiary
classified as a disposal group are reclassified as held
for sale regardless of whether the Group retains a non-
controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the

sale.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 BEREFTHBERBE (8)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Non-current assets and disposal groups held
for sale (continued)

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than
investment properties and financial assets) classified
as held for sale are measured at the lower of their
carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell.
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
classified as held for sale are not depreciated or

amortised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are
not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset
with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life assessment continues to
be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on

a prospective basis.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the
lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to
the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 BEREFTHERBE (8)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as loans and receivables. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets, except in the case of financial

assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or

convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate. The effective interest rate amortisation and the
loss arising from impairment are recognised in the

statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 BEREFTHEBE (8)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group's consolidated statement of financial position)

when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset

have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to
what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset
to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights

and obligations that the Group has retained.
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31 March 2016 —E—~"E=A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group

could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. An
impairment exists if one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or

economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 BERETFTBEBE (8)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not,
it includes the asset in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are

not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not yet been incurred). The present value of
the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the

effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the loss is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Interest
income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off
when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral has been realised or has been

transferred to the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to
the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as loans and borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the

effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 BEREFTHBERBE (8)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially
as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of
the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the
higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period; and (ii) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative

amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation

under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or

loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the

assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-
in, first-out basis. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be

incurred to disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liguid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash

management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,

which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 BERETBEBE (8)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in

the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised either in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries

in which the Group operates.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 ERSABERBE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued) FrEF (48)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on EEREEABE AR IRE KR

all temporary differences at the end of the reporting MEEMBERAERERYERSE AR

period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities BIRRTEE 2 B8P A BRI 2 R AE &
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting & -

purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable FIEERREREZERYERAELER

temporary differences, except: BEE ELATERRIN:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the e MWMRELHEEBESHVIIER
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or EENWIEBREHZIRIFRZ
liability in a transaction that is not a business BERBEEL  RRETRHH
combination and, at the time of the transaction, Herr M EaERB A HNEE
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable HEZE &

profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences o A ERB AR ZIRE 2 ER
associated with investments in subsidiaries, HMEMRMEEEMT - WRATLAEES
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary BOERMEER R > B
differences can be controlled and it is probable ERAE TS B K RER -

that the temporary differences will not reverse in

the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 BEREFTHBERBE (8)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be

utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or

loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which

the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R 2% Mt &

31 March 2016 —ZE—X<"F=A=+—H

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms;

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;
and

(d) purchase incentive, when the relevant conditions
are fulfilled.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits
Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees
under their employment contracts on a calendar year
basis. Under certain circumstances, such leave which
remains untaken at the end of the reporting period
is permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the
respective employees in the following year. An accrual
is made at the end of the reporting period for the
expected future cost of such paid leave earned during

the year by the employees and carried forward.

Pension schemes and other retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to
the statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF

Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the

central pension scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 ERAIFTHERME (8)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group's operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled

transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 20 February 2009 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they
are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial option pricing model, further
details of which are given in note 27 to the financial

statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised
in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting
period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group's
best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the
statement of profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at

the beginning and end of that period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 BEREFTFTBEBE (8)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant
date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions
are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to
be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also

service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met, no expense is recognised. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or

service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as
if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of

modification.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-
vesting conditions within the control of either the
Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as

described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of

earnings per share.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of

funds.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items

are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or

loss, respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than the Hong Kong
dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the
end of the reporting period and their statements of
profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is

recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates

for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the

future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts

recognised in the financial statements:

Impairment of assets

The Group has to exercise judgement in determining
whether an asset is impaired or the event previously
causing the asset impairment no longer exists,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has
occurred that may affect the asset value or such event
affecting the asset value has not been in existence;
(2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use
of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by management
to determine the level of impairment, including the
discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the
cash flow projections, could materially affect the net

present value used in the impairment test.

Withholding taxes arising from the distribution of
dividends

The Group’s determination as to whether to accrue
for withholding taxes arising from the distributions of
dividends from certain subsidiaries according to the
relevant tax jurisdictions is subject to judgement on
the timing of the payment of the dividend. The Group
considered that if the profits will not be distributed
in the foreseeable future, then no withholding taxes

should be provided.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.

Provision for inventories

Provision for inventories is made based on the current
market conditions, historical experience of selling
merchandise of similar nature and estimated net
realisable value of inventories. The assessment of the
provision amount requires management’s estimates
and judgements. Where the actual outcome or
expectation in the future is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the carrying
value of inventories and the provision amount in the
period in which such estimate has been changed. As
at 31 March 2016, the carrying amount of inventories
was HK$692,837,000 (2015: HK$758,305,000).

Income and other taxes

The Group has exposure to income and other taxes in
various jurisdictions. Significant judgement is involved
in determining the provision for income and other
taxes. There are certain transactions and computations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises income and other tax liabilities based on
estimated assessable profits, the rate of tax prevailing
in the countries of operation, and the existing tax
legislations, interpretations, and practices in respect
thereof. Where the final tax outcome is different
from the amounts that were initially recognised, such
differences will impact the income and other taxes and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of
items of property, plant and equipment, the Group
has to consider various factors, such as technical or
commercial obsolescence arising from changes or
improvements in production, or from a change in
the market demand for the product or service output
of the asset, expected usage of the asset, expected
physical wear and tear, the care and maintenance
of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the use
of the asset. The estimation of the useful life of the
asset is based on the experience of the Group with
similar assets that are used in a similar way. Additional
depreciation will be made if the estimated useful
lives and/or the residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment are different from the previous
estimation. Useful lives and residual values are
reviewed, at each financial year end date based on
changes in circumstances. As at 31 March 2016, the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment was
HK$9,674,000 (2015: HK$12,829,000).

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited

3.

EREs M R A ()

Mt THEEEZE (&)
Y% - BE KRR Al (& F K
28
REEMZE - BE KK EEEB B EA
FHREEARK ASEFTEZREER
= NRAEENEHUME  KEUE
EFREE RS RGH TSR KmEE
MM Es  BHNEEFER
TRENBEERRERIES  BEMNBER
BERFERAEERNEESEMBLURS -
M EENERATHE  RENASEHE
SO A ERBEUEERNLR - Y
X BRERKBEEENMGGERFH
R/ SEEGRRUENGT  EEE
HEIMTE - ERFHREREANS Y
BEEFEBRREANEEZSE - 1
ZE—XRE=ZA=+—8B D% BE
B2 BREEA9,674,0008 7T (=&
—A 4 12,829,000/ T) °

Annual Report 2016



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 85 ¥R AR MY 5E

31 March 2016 —ZE—X<"F=A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment allowance of trade receivables, bills
receivable and other receivables

The Group’s management determines the impairment
allowance of trade receivables, bills receivable and
other receivables in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 2.4. Such impairment allowance
is established if there is objective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables.
The Group's estimation of impairment allowance of
trade receivables, bills receivable and other receivables
reflects its best estimate of amounts that are
potentially uncollectible. This determination requires
significant judgement. The Group’s customers mainly
are distributors of liquor products, and they vary
in size and types of products to be distributed. In
making the judgement on the impairment allowance,
the Group evaluates, among certain economic
factors specific to each debtor and other factors,
the historical and current year payment pattern and
creditworthiness of each debtor, the default rates of
current and prior years, aging of receivable balances,
and the latest communication with individual debtors.
To the extent the financial condition of any debtor
deteriorates which results in an inability to make
payments on time, or the debtors significantly exceed
their credit terms and ask for payment extension,
or if the Group incurs more bad debt than their
original estimates, additional impairment allowance
may be required. This assessment is based on the
specific facts and circumstances of each customer.
Management reassesses the impairment allowance at
the end of each of the reporting periods to ensure
the current impairment allowance is still appropriate.
As at 31 March 2016, the carrying amounts of trade
receivables, bills receivable and other receivables
were HK$23,013,000 (2015: HK$1,155,000),
HK$48,249,000 (2015: HK$74,613,000) and
HK$46,393,000 (2015: HK$41,491,000), respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end
of each reporting period. Non-financial assets are
tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset
or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the
fair value less costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the
asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of

those cash flows.

Valuation of share options

The fair value of options granted under a share option
scheme is determined using the binomial option pricing
model. The significant inputs into the model were the
risk-free interest rate, expected volatility, expected
life of options and expected dividend yield. When the
actual results of the inputs differ from management'’s
estimate, it will have an impact on the fair value of
share option and the related share option reserve of

the Company. Further details are given in note 27.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R 2% Mt &

31 March 2016 —ZE—X<"F=A=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on its products and services and

has three reportable operating segments as follows:

(i)  the distribution of Wuliangye liquor series,
National Cellar 1573 baijiu with 43% alcohol
content, Kweichow Moutai Chiew products, Fen
Wine with 55% alcohol content liquor series, Red
Fen Shijia liquor series, Yaxi Classic liquor series
and Old Vintage liquor series, wine and foreign

liquor series (“Liquors”);

(i) the distribution of Chinese cigarettes

("Cigarettes”); and

(iii)  the investment in a residential apartment for its

rental income potential (“Property investment”).

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance
is evaluated based on reportable segment result,
which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before
tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured
consistently with the Group's profit/(loss) before tax
except that interest income, other gains and finance

costs are excluded from such measurement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2016 —ZE—X<"F=A=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BEDHER (&)
(continued)
Year ended 31 March 2016 ZTE-RE=ZA=+—HLEE
Property
Liquors Cigarettes investment Total
B 52 MERE &t
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FET FET FAET

Segment revenue: PR
Sales to external customers HEZIBRR 1,255,492 4,740 - 1,260,232
Purchase incentive from KE—RHEER

a supplier WS RE 64,223 - - 64,223
Gain on disposal of an HEREME

investment property 2 Was - - 10,306 10,306
Foreign exchange gains, net  SMNESIE 3 Ui zs (F58) 207 - - 207
Total Bt 1,319,922 4,740 10,306 1,334,968
Segment results DEEE 30,709 1,782 10,092 42,583
Reconciliation: #Ek
Interest income FEWA 209
Other gains Hth iy 2,518
Finance costs A& B AR (25,511)
Profit before tax B 15t B A 19,799
Other segment information: Hfth % &% :
Depreciation e 8,279 27 17 8,323
Loss on disposal of HEWME - BE R

items of property, HBERZEE 508 - - 508

plant and equipment
Write-back of impairment BOEKZESHHRELZ

allowance of trade DERER L

receivables (9,686) - - (9,686)
Write-back of impairment BORKEERZ

allowance of bills receivable B & (5.555) - - (5.555)
Impairment allowance of TaRRIE K E At

prepayments and JE W R IE

other receivables 2R ERE 1,850 - - 1,850
Write-back of impairment BOENRIER

allowance of prepayments H i WK1

and other receivables ZREEE (4,452) - - (4,452)
Provision for inventories EEMBET S

in respect of write-down FECHFERE 17,408 - - 17,408

to net realisable value
Provision for a claim AR 12,261 - - 12,261
Capital expenditure* BARZ 6,260 = - 6,260
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to items of o BATHBEWE BELEREHEER

property, plant and equipment.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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31 March 2016 —ZE—X<"F=A=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(continued)
Year ended 31 March 2015

—E-RF=R=+—-HILHEE

Property
Liquors Cigarettes investment Total
B BE MERE &5t
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FAET FAET FHET FET
Segment revenue: DE A
Sales to external customers  SHEZEINPLEF 398,928 19,937 - 418,865
Other revenue A U A — - 48 48
Foreign exchange gains, net  ME WS CH%58) 405 5 = 410
Total A&t 399,333 19,942 48 419,323
Segment results DEEE (32,230) (4,317) (224) (36,771)
Reconciliation: HE -
Interest income B A 431
Other gains HAth iy 195
Finance costs B & KA (30,808)
Loss before tax Bk 750 Bl 5 48 (66,953)
Other segment information: HE b o MEH :
Depreciation e 13,708 1,126 209 15,043
Loss on disposal of LEWE BER
items of property, HEBEEE 2 BB
plant and equipment 22 - - 22
Impairment allowance of EWE SHIEZ
trade receivables B E R 504 = - 504
Write-back of impairment BEEKE S FIE L
allowance of trade DERERE L
receivables (152,003) - - (152,003)
Write-back of impairment BROREKEEZ
allowance of bills receivable & {E % & (7,054) E = (7,054)
Impairment allowance of TR RIE R E At
prepayments and JE WK IE 2
other receivables DERERE L 240 - - 240
Write-back of impairment B OB RIAER
allowance of prepayments H b JE W R IE
and other receivables R ERE (12,635) = = (12,635)
Provision for inventories BREAMRZ ] #3R
in respect of write-down FEFERE
to net realisable value 21,517 - - 21,517
Capital expenditure* BAR 3,370 320 - 3,690
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to items of * BEATHBEYE BELREER

property, plant and equipment.
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31 March 2016 —ZE—X<F=A=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Geographical information

Hh [ & R
Mainland
Hong Kong China Others Total

BE HEAE Hith CE

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

TET TET TET TRT

Year ended 31 March 2016 -REZHA=T+-HLEE

RENEBEF 2 W

Revenue from external
customers*

FRBEE

Non-current assets**

Year ended 31 March 2015 —RE=A=+—HItFE

RENEBEF 2 W

Revenue from external

customers*
Non-current assets** EREEE
- The revenue information is based on the locations of

the customers.

**  The non-current asset information is based on
the locations of the assets and excludes financial
instruments.

Information about major customers

Revenue from a major customer of approximately
HK$631,686,000 (2015: HK$123,588,000) for the year
ended 31 March 2016 was derived from sales by the
Liquors segment and the Cigarettes segment, including
sales to two entities which are known to be under

common control of this major customer.

Revenues from two major customers of approximately
HK$123,588,000 and HK$55,191,000 respectively for
the year ended 31 March 2015 were derived from sales
by the Liquors segment and the Cigarettes segment,
including sales to two entities which are known to be

under common control of one major customer.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited

717,482 542,750 - 1,260,232
11,372 6,602 = 17,974
175,833 241,940 1,092 418,865
19,736 8,104 = 27,840

* WEONEHNERBEEPMEMMSE -

= ERBDEENBEHNERBEEMRGEH
sk EPETEREERTA -

BRAFEZFPHNER

RBEE-_T—XR"E-A=+—ALHF
- RE—BEEEF 4631,686,000
BT (ZZF— R4 123,588,000 7T)
W REBDEREED T H HE
(RIERAMEERNEE MBEHREE
BESHAUHBEZEFMARIZES) -

REBEE-_ZE—REF=ZA=+—H
EFE REMEBETERTFPSAH
123,588,000/% 7T 555,191,000 7T &9
KWEEREBOBRBED BOHEE
(BREAMEEEMEE mMEHEEE
BERH—RETERLFERES) -
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B 85 ¥R AR MY 5E

31 March 2016 —E—A<"E=A=+—H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, 5. s HMBRARKEZE GF
NET )
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods WHEEREARERERESHITNED
sold, after allowances for returns and trade discounts. DEEWHEEEE-
An analysis of the Group’s other income and gains, net REBBHEMKA R CEER) S0
is as follows: T :
2016 2015
—nNEF —E-hF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FET FAT
Purchase incentive from a supplier e —RHEERNEERE 64,223 -
Gain on disposal of HEREYE 2 W
an investment property 10,306 -
Bank interest income RITH BUA 209 431
Gross rental income BLEs KA - 48
Foreign exchange gains, net HNESTE H W zs OF58) 207 410
Others HAty 2,518 195
77,463 1,084
FINANCE COSTS 6. MENA
2016 2015
—"NEF —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$' 000
FET AT
Interest on discounted bills BRI EE 2 F B 2,568 3,511
Interest on bank and other loans RITRHMERA K
and trust receipt loans SHERIBEERZFE 21,482 26,982
Interest on bond payables ERESFFE 853 =
Others Hh, 608 315
25,511 30,808

REEEZRAER QA



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R 2% Mt &

31 March 2016 —ZE—X<"F=A=+—H

BRBE AT R, (B18)
AEBERBRBATIE (FR) Bk

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 7.

The Group’s profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after

charging/(crediting): (Gt A) -
2016 2015
—E-RE 0%
Notes HK$'000 HK$' 000
(ks TET TET
Cost of inventories sold** BEFERA** 1,008,845 314,665
Depreciation: WE:
Property, plant and equipment ERN ST 13 8,306 14,834
Investment property REME 14 17 209
8,323 15,043
Minimum lease payments REEEHEN
under operating leases REHERNK 43,210 52,694
Loss on disposal of items of HEME  BEREH
property, plant and equipment BEZER 508 22
Loss/(gain) on dissolution of subsidiaries B AHBRARMER,/ (k) 41 (186) 150
Impairment allowance of trade receivables* FEURE 5 18 7 il (& B 5+ 18 - 504
Write-back of impairment allowance of ~ BEIENE 7B 2R ER FE*
trade receivables* (9,686) (152,003)
Write-back of impairment allowance of B EEWEE 2
bills receivable* HERE (5,555) (7,054)
18 (15,241) (159,057)
Impairment allowance of prepayments B RIA R E
and other receivables* HOE R ERE 19 1,850 240
Write-back of impairment allowance of BB FE R E M
prepayments and other receivables* FEMRRE 2 R B 19 (4,452) (12,635)
Provision for inventories in respect of BEBRMAEERFE
write-down to net realisable value** 2GR~ 17,408 21,517
Provision for a claim AREE 37 12,261 =
Auditors' remuneration ZEM 2,600 2,500
Employee benefit expense (including EERTIER(BE
directors' remuneration (note 8)): EEH ¢ (f7E8)) :
Wages, salaries, allowances and I8 %% 28K
benefits in kind EYH= 57,500 65,537
Pension scheme contributions R FIT B3R 4,597 4,303
Equity-settled share option expense WEREEBREER 18,667 31,796
80,764 101,636
Direct operating expenses ARDASRERENE
(including repairs and MEENERZEER
maintenance) arising on (PEEER&E)
a rental-earning
investment property 197 63
* Included in “Write-back of impairment, net” on the * STAAERRZ [BERIE (CF5E) ] -

face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

** Included in

“Cost of sales”

on the face of the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited

* *
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B 85 ¥R AR MY 5E

31 March 2016 —E—~"E=A=+—H

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (continued)

The employee benefit expense (including directors’
remuneration) includes housing benefit with aggregate
rentals of HK$6,615,000 (2015: HK$7,251,000), which
is also included in the total amount disclosed separately

above.

At 31 March 2016, the Group had no forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contribution to the

pension schemes in future years (2015: Nil).

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), ()
and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information

about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

Br&LAT RS, (B518) ()
BERFMNER (BREEEH) 2L
& 46,615,000 T (ZF — A F :
7,251,000/ 7T) WEERT - B#EREE
NEFAEXSITRBENEER -

RZZE-—RE=ZA=+—H £&EEYL
BEDREEFAARMBRRRFEE 2R
REMAEER(ZF—RHF: 8) -

EEME

BB EMHRA - BB R AEHIE383(1)
@) OEROHEUERAR] (BREES
MmBER) RO E 2 BMERNFRECES
BT

2016 2015

—E-REF —E—RF

HK$’' 000 HK$' 000

FH T FAT

Fees e 2,400 2,317

Other emoluments: HEM< :

Salaries, allowances and benefits e FMEEDHE

in kind 19,605 19,585

Pension scheme contributions RAKTE FETE 113 105

Equity-settled share option expense NiERERE  BREER 2,530 2,351

22,248 22,041

24,648 24,358

REEEZRAER QA
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31 March 2016 —ZE—X<F=A=+—H

DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION (continued)
During the year ended 31 March 2016, certain
directors were granted share options, in respect of
their services to the Group, under the share option
scheme of the Company, further details of which are
set out in note 27 to the financial statements. The
fair value of such options, which has been recognised
in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting
period, was determined as at the date of grant and
the amounts included in the financial statements for
the current year is included in the above directors’

remuneration disclosures.

(a) Independent non-executive directors

8. EEM=E (&)

RBE_Z-X"F=ZA=+—HBL*F
B ETEFIREAARERMZR
B MARBAR R A 2 B A S R BB AR
8 E—PFBERNMBERKRME27 -
ZEBEREZATEER(CRERYA
ERaiXBR)CRROUBHEE -
RAFEFAMBRRZSBEBREAE
EXZEEHMERE -

(a) BUIIFATES

Equity-

settled

share
option Total
Fees expense remuneration

UERER
e ZBREEAR [k
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FET FET FERT

2016 —E-RF

Hung Sui Kwan Bt I e 360 195 555
Ma Lishan B 360 97 457
Lee Kwok Keung Edward B 58 360 97 457
1,080 389 1,469

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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31 March 2016 —E—XE=A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EZEZEM & (&)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BYIEHTES (B)
(continued)

Equity-
settled
share
option Total
Fees expense  remuneration
LAt E
we ZHEREER B & 4258
HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FHT
2015 —ET-0fF
Hung Sui Kwan 3t I 1 360 - 360
Ma Lishan SRVl 360 - 360
Lee Kwok Keung Edward e G 277 - 277
997 - 997
There were no other emoluments payable to the FRNYBENBIIERTES 2
independent non-executive directors during the Hie (S —FHF: &) -

year (2015: Nil).
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31 March 2016 —ZE—X<F=A=+—H

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. BEEM < (&)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive (b) MITEERIERITES
directors
Salaries, Equity-
allowances settled
and Pension share
benefits scheme option Total
Fees in kind contributions expense remuneration
o BHR BHRER NEZEE
e  BWANE  HEMY BRESR Helasm
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TER TET TET TERT Thn
2016 BN
Executive directors: BIES:
Liang Guoxing (note) A~ R EIE (FIzE) A - 17,914 18 - 17,932
Cheung Mei Sze BER - 619 18 584 1,221
Wang Jindong TER - 1,072 771 1,168 2,317
- 19,605 113 1,752 21,470
Non-executive directors: ~ JF#{TEE
Wu Jie Si RER 480 - - 195 675
Chen Sing Hung Johnny T2 420 - - 97 517
Joseph Marian Laurence  fIi £
Ozorio 420 - - 97 517
1,320 - - 389 1,709
1,320 19,605 13 2,141 23,179

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited = Annual Report 2016
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31 March 2016 —E—XE=A=+—H

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. ZEEME (&)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive (b) AITESENIFHNITES (88)
directors (continued)

Salaries, Equity-
allowances settled
and Pension share
benefits scheme option Total
Fees inkind  contributions expense  remuneration

FooRER  RINER NERERZ
we  EWMAE  HEEX BRERR  HWo#ER
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$ 000
TEL TEL TEL TEL T

2015 —T-HE
Executive directors: BITES:
Liang Guoxing (note) A B (i) A - 17,914 18 = 17,932
Cheung Mei Sze EXR - 619 18 437 1,074
Wang Jindong IER - 1,052 69 520 1,641
5 19,585 105 957 20,647
Non-executive directors: ~ JFH{TEE -
Wu Jie Si RiER 480 A = 437 917
Chen Sing Hung Johnny B8 420 - - 437 857
Joseph Marian Laurence  fIi £
0zorio 420 - - 520 940
1,320 = k. 1,394 2,714
1,320 19,585 105 2,351 23,361
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31 March 2016 —E—~"E=A=+—H

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued) 8.

(b) Executive directors and non-executive
directors (continued)

A Mr. Liang Guoxing is also the chief executive
officer of the Group.

Note: The remuneration of Mr. Liang for the year
ended 31 March 2016 included a housing benefit
with aggregate rental of HK$6,394,000 (2015:
HK$6,394,000) incurred by the Group.

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during

the year.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.
The five highest paid employees during the year
included two directors (2015: one director), details
of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above.
Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining three (2015: four) non-director, highest paid

employees are as follows:

=EME (&)
(b) MITEZNIFATES (B)

A REIESELETAAREEZITRE
# o

W RuREB=E=—_FT—XF=A
=+ BLEFENHMESBRER
SEEENERZM BEE
6,394,000 L (ZFT—HF :
6,394,000 7T) °

FRAYBEETNELARBERETAHS
B2 HE o

TuGEeEHMHNES

PO T i 3 795 B 0 R B B (=
T-HE: -R)EF REOMBH
8RS - FRB T4 (ZF
— T ) E R R A
SHREMT :

2016 2015

—E-AF —E-RF

HK$'000 HK$' 000

FH T FiE T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind & ~ 2B REWH = 3,283 5,301
Pension scheme contributions RIREFIFT B 168 83
Equity-settled share option expense NEREE 2 BERERR 2,200 12,673
5,651 18,057

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited = Annual Report 2016
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.

(continued)

The number of non-director, highest paid employees

whose remuneration fell within the following bands is

as follows:

B 85 ¥R AR MY 5E

31 March 2016 —ZE—X<"F=A=+—H

AT :

hfumeHmMNES (&)

HFHBRATHBNEERSFHES

Number of employees

BEAH
2016 2015
—®-XxF ~E-IF
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,00178 7T £2,000,00078 7T 2 ~
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,00178 7L £2,500,0007% 7T 1 =
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T 3,000,000/ 7T - 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001/ JT &3,500,0007% 7T - 1
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001/ 7T £6,000,000/% 7T - 1
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 6,000,001/ 7T £6,500,0007% 7T - 1
3 4

During the year ended 31 March 2016, share options
were granted to the three non-director, highest paid
employees in respect of their services to the Group,
further details of which are set out in note 27 to the
financial statements. The fair value of such options,
which has been recognised in the statement of profit
or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at
the date of grant and the amounts included in the
financial statements for the current year is included
in the above non-director, highest paid employees’

remuneration disclosures.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any of the highest paid employees who are
not a director of the Company as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office (2015: Nil).
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31 March 2016 —ZE—X<"F=A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX 10.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been
made for the year as the Group has available tax
losses brought forward from prior years to offset the
assessable profits generated during the year. During
the year ended 31 March 2015, no provision for Hong
Kong profits tax had been made for the year ended
31 March 2015 as the Group did not generate any
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during that
year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries

or jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Frig %t
HRASBEAAMBAEFEZAH
AREEENEEFAELEZERN
B B | ELFERBNSHE
we-NBE_T-—AF=R=+—HI
FE BRAKRERFRALEEMRE
FRZERGAME - AW EIELEE
TE-RAF=-A=+HLFENEE
NS BHE - NEME KK R 5 B R
MABEERAEEEEMENBERKA
ARERABITHRGEDIA -

2016 2015
—E-RE —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FExT FETT

Current — Elsewhere RER—H fbih 75
Charge for the year FANEH 97 77
Overprovision in prior years AR FEBEEE (110,647) (47,593)
Total tax credit for the year FABIER BT (110,550) (47,516)
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31 March 2016 —ZE—X<"F=A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX (continued) 10.

A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable
to profit/(loss) before tax at the applicable statutory
rates for the countries or jurisdictions in which the

Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are

Fris®i (%)

SR PR AR B S L AHB A9 Y 28 R P
EERRRADEEROERAEHEHE
KR BRI R, (BB MBURER
(#Hsp) BB BLE A H N BUAE 0

domiciled to the tax credit at the effective tax rate is as R BT
follows:
2016 2015
—E-RF —ET-1F
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FET FAT
Profit/(loss) before tax BB ATFIE, (E518) 19,799 (66,953)
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEEMEFENTIE 3,267 (11,047)
Difference in tax rates enacted HWHERBEMNBRER
by local authorities (4,270) (35,325)
Adjustments in respect of current tax BB RS BT IE
of previous periods E i #Y) 3 2 (110,647) (47,593)
Income not subject to tax BAHTE A (1,701) =
Expenses not deductible for tax TAAHEHRIENER 11,343 10,959
Tax losses not recognised R R A T 75 B 18 5,247 52,198
Tax losses from previous periods utilised 8 A HifE BB 75 &5 48 (12,116) -
Others Hity (1,673) (16,708)
Tax credit at the effective rate RERBEAENREES (110,550) (47,516)
BRESEEZERAFR QA —E-XNFH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 85 ¥R 3R MY 5t

31 March 2016 —ZE—X<"F=A=+—H

DIVIDENDS

The Company’s directors do not recommend the
payment of any dividend for the year ended 31 March
2016 (2015: Nil).

The board of directors has recommended a bonus
issue of 1 bonus share for every 2 existing shares held
for the year ended 31 March 2016 being subject to
the approval of the shareholders at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company to be held on 15 July
2016.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share
amount is based on the profit for the year attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the Company of
HK$130,408,000 (2015: loss of HK$19,098,000), and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
1,457,151,352 (2015: 1,351,772,945) in issue during
the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share
amount presented for the year ended 31 March 2016 is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company of HK$130,408,000.
The weighted average number of ordinary shares used
in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year, as used in the basic earnings per
share calculation, and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no
consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary
shares.

No adjustment had been made to the basic loss per
share amount presented for the year ended 31 March
2015 in respect of a dilution as the share options
outstanding had no dilutive effect on the basic loss per
share amount presented for the year ended 31 March
2015.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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RAREBREBFAARGSE
BREF, (BE)

BREARA (BB SEDHIEF
RARNREBERFHB AEGFE
130,408,000 T (ZE—h % - F#E
19,098,000 7T) R FAB BITERK
B b0 #E 7 159 01,457,151,352/% (==
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NAQRIEBE=FEA ABGEFE
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BRI RFANCETYE
BRHE (MEREAAFTEMER
H)  ARBRERMEBEEESL A
B AR 1T (50 S B I 5 iR AR B DA A M
FRBEITH T BAR A INE T -

ERHERBE-B-—EF=A=T—H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2016 —E—A<"E=A=+—H

12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY

12. "\

HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY (continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per

EREREEARBGE

BREF,(BR) (&)

BREAREBRN, (ER) TIREIA

share are based on: TEEHE :
2016 2015
—B-RF —E-hF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THEx FAT
Earnings/(loss) BRI, (Ei8)
Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary AARIERERIFTE A
equity holders of the Company FE(RFIE, (E518) 130,408 (19,098)

Number of shares

igvil 4=
2016 2015
—EB-AF —E-hF
Shares [dvi)
Weighted average number of REtESRERRBF,
ordinary shares in issue during (BB REAN
the year used in the basic FREETETAR
earnings/(loss) per share calculation B 04 S 15 £ 1,457,151,352 1,351,772,945
Effect of dilution BEr e
Weighted average number of BREE 2 HMRITEBEAE
ordinary shares assumed to have ERF AR BITER
been issued at no consideration AEEHF BTN
on the deemed exercise of all share T AR EY N S S #R
options outstanding during the year 17,457,586 N/A 3 A
1,474,608,938 1,351,772,945

REEBEZRER QA -
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A
|
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31 March 2016 —ZE—X<F=A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. 1%~ BMEKRRME

Leasehold Furniture Office Motor
improvements and fixtures  equipment vehicles Total
AR
HEMELES BEEE BOAERE HE &t
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TEx TETL TER TER TEL
31 March 2016 ZE-Af¥ZAZ+-H
At 31 March 2015 and RZE-RF=A=+-Ak
1 April 2015: “Z-hFMA-A
Cost A 29,332 3,483 7,612 21,023 61,450
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (23,850) (2,288) (6,456) (16,027) (48,621)
Net carrying amount FEFE 5,482 1,195 1,156 4,99 12,829
At 1 April 2015, net of R-Z-1FEMA-H"
accumulated depreciation NBEHTE 5,482 1,195 1,156 4,99 12,829
Additions AE 4,877 = 679 704 6,260
Depreciation provided during ERRERE
the year (5,368) (329) (631) (1,978) (8,306)
Disposal during the year ERHE = (463) (241) (29) (733)
Exchange realignment ERE (162) - @3) (171) (376)
At 31 March 2016, net of RZE-RF=ZA=+—-H"
accumulated depreciation NG EHHTE 4,829 403 920 3,522 9,674
At 31 March 2016: W_E-~EZA=1+-H:
Cost KA 19,674 2,083 5,898 18,401 46,056
Accumulated depreciation 28 (14,845) (1,680) (4,978) (14,879) (36,382)
Net carrying amount FEFE 4,829 403 920 3,522 9,674

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2016



(continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R 2% Mt &

31 March 2016 —E—A<"E=A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. 1% - BBz (&)

Leasehold Furniture Office Motor
improvements and fixtures  equipment vehicles Total
BHR
BENELE EERE RAZRE RE &3t
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
THL THL TR TR TER
31 March 2015 “Z-1%=A=1+-A
At 1 April 2014 RZZ-mERA—-A:
Cost KA 25,878 3,561 7,399 21,010 57,848
Accumulated depreciation ZEME (13,486) (1,697) (5,452) (13,231) (33,866)
Net carrying amount RHFE 12,392 1,864 1,947 7,779 23,982
At 1 April 2014, net of RZZ-MEMA-H -
accumulated depreciation Nk EsHeE 12,392 1,864 1,947 7,779 23,982
Additions AE 3,436 = 254 - 3,690
Deprediation provided during FRFERE
the year (10,350) (656) (1,038) (2,790) (14,834)
Disposal during the year ERHE = (13) o) = (22)
Exchange realignment ERRE 4 - 2 7 13
At 31 March 2015, net of RZE-R%¥=RA=+-H"
accumulated depreciation Nk &sHeE 5,482 1,195 1,156 4,996 12,829
At 31 March 2015: RZBE-hF=fA=+-H:
Cost KA 29,332 3,483 7,612 21,023 61,450
Accumulated depreciation REiE (23,850) (2,288) (6,456) (16,027) (48,621)
Net carrying amount RHFE 5,482 1,195 1,156 4,99 12,829

REEEZRAER QA



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R 2% Mt &

31 March 2016 —ZE—X<"F=A=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 14. BREYZE

2016 2015
—B-KE —T-REF
HK$' 000 HK$’000
FERT FHT
Carrying amount at beginning REYVHEREE
of the year 6,711 6,920
Depreciation provided during FRNTERE
the year (17) (209)
Disposal during the year FALRE (6,694) =
Carrying amount at end RERNEREE
of the year - 6,711
Fair value at 31 March R=ZA=Z+—HHRQ - 17,400

The directors of the Company have determined that
the Group’s investment property as at 31 March
2015 was a residential property, based on the nature,
characteristics and risks of the property. The Group's
investment property was revalued on 31 March 2015
based on the valuation performed by Vigers Appraisal
& Consulting Limited, an independent professional
qualified valuer, at HK$17,400,000. Each year, the
directors of the Company decide to appoint which
external valuer to be responsible for the external
valuations of the Group’s property. Selection criteria
include market knowledge, reputation, independence
and whether professional standards are maintained.
The directors of the Company have discussions with
the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results twice a year when the valuation is performed

for interim and annual financial reporting.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited

RAREZCRBEMEZNLE  FEHR
EEmErAEER_E—hFE=H
S+—HZREVERTEVE - A&
ENEEMER_T—AF=A=1+—
HIRE B L 5 ¥ & & % (4 B 6D BE A
BETHERERABETZHEMSE
fHE{B{E 517,400,000 7T - N AR E
ERATEHEERIIMBEEMEELRSE
B2 INEBIEE - BEFELERET S
M BE BUMRELREEEK
F o RAREFENAERTERRE
HEMREERRREELER  UE
2HHRHRFEABRE °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R 2% Mt &

31 March 2016 —E—~"E=A=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued) 14. BREYZE (18)

The Group’s investment property was leased to a third
party under an operating lease, which was expired
during the year ended 31 March 2015.

At 31 March 2015, the Group’s investment property
with a carrying value of HK$6,711,000 was pledged to
secure an other loan granted to the Group (note 23).
The other loan was fully repaid by the Group during
the year ended 31 March 2016.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group
disposed of its investment property to two independent
individuals for a cash consideration of HK$17,000,000.
The transaction was completed in May 2015, and
the gain on disposal of an investment property of
HK$10,306,000 was recognised in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss for the year.

REEEZRAER QA

AEBZREVEERBELEREHE
T—RF=ZITMZEHECRBE_F
—RAF=-A=T—HILLFEARER-

R-ZE—FRF=A=+—H AEBE
1A /56,711,000 TR EMEE A
A& BRI E A BRI (MEaE23) o
REBERBE-_ZT—"F-A=+—
HEFERHBEEZZEMER -

REE-T - "F=ZA=+—HLF
& - ZAEE 17,000,000 THIE £ R
BREAKEMEHETMEBEIAL -
ZEXRSGER_T—HAFRATEK M
& —JER & % 2 %510,306,000/% 7T
ERAFENEHEDRER -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R 2% Mt &

31 March 2016 —ZE—X<F=A=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued) 14. REY % (&)
Fair value hierarchy NFEEE R
The following table illustrates the fair value AEBEREMER-_Z-—HF=A
measurement hierarchy of the Group's investment =t+—HZAFEEFEEBRIRAT
property as at 31 March 2015: x
Fair value measurement
as at 31 March 2015 using
EAUNTHABER=-2-2F=ZA=+-8
ZATEETE
Quoted
prices in  Significant  Significant
active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
ERWS EZW EERT
ZHE BR2Y BE22¥
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(—18) (%=8) (5=8) @t
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
THT TET TET TET
Recurring fair value BEMRTEEREZ:
measurement for:
Residential property FEME - - 17,400 17,400
Below is a summary of the valuation technique used TXHMAERIEENER T —1F
and the key input to the valuation of the Group's —A=T—HBNHEMKBZHERE
investment property as at 31 March 2015: REELE :
Valuation Significant
technique input
RER % EEZHY
Residential property FEWE Comparison approach Market transaction
B 97 price per gross
floor area
BREEEREZ

M5 3 ER

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016



15.

16.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 85 ¥R AR MY 5E

31 March 2016 —E—~"E=A=+—H

INTANGIBLE ASSET

15. BILEE

Club
membership
&S
HK$' 000
FHET
At 1 April 2014, 31 March 2015, RZZFE—MFMNA—H -
1 April 2015 and —E—RF=ZA=+—H "
31 March 2016: —Z-RFMA-BR
—E-RF=HA=1T—8:
Cost and net carrying amount A & BREDFE 8,300
PROPERTY HELD FOR SALE 16. BEBESEYE
2016 2015
—E-RF —ET—hF
HKS$'000 HK$' 000
TER FHET

Carrying amount at RENZEREE
beginning of the year

Additions nNE

Exchange realignment TE T

Carrying amount at MRERZEREE

end of the year

During the year ended 31 March 2016, according to
a judgement issued by a court in the PRC (the “PRC
Court”), the Group confiscated one residential property
in the PRC (the “Property”), after making payment
of HK$4,034,000 by the Group to settle a bank loan
secured by the Property and the related handling fee
of HK$307,000, as the settlement from a customer
for a bills receivable of HK$5,555,000 (note 18).
The Property was classified as held for sale upon the

Group’s acquisition and as at 31 March 2016.

REEEZRAER QA

A

9,896 i
(290) —

9,606 -

RBE_T-—R"E=ZA=+—HILF
& - BEFBUERT ([ AR 1) 10 H)
FISR - 1E 7N & B 2 194,034,000 T LA
BE—EUNZMEERERNRITER
KR FEE307,0008 0% AEH
BRI RRENEEDE ((ZY
%) LAKIE — % E F #95,555,00078
TCEWEE (M:E18) - ZMERAEE
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16. PROPERTY HELD FOR SALE (continued)

17.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 85 ¥R 3R MY 5t

31 March 2016 —ZE—X<F=A=+—H

Subsequent to 31 March 2016, the Group entered
into a sale and purchase agreement for the disposal
of the Property to an independent individual for a
cash consideration of RMB9,400,000 (equivalent to
HK$11,280,000), as further detailed in note 39(a) to

the financial statements.

6. KEEEMW=E(8)

R-ZT—ARNE=ZA=+—H% ~5H
TV BEE e A AR %9,400,0007T
FHE F 11,280,000 7T) B3R & K ER
—EBBUATHEZYME  E—FHE
B R M FE39() ©

~~ o

INVENTORIES 17. 78
2016 2015
—E—XEF —ET—RF
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FH& T FET
Merchandise B 692,578 758,202
Packaging materials BEME 259 103
692,837 758,305

At 31 March 2016, the Group’s inventories with
costs in aggregate of RMB427,352,000 (equivalent to
HK$512,822,000) (2015: Nil) and RMB250,000,000
(equivalent to HK$300,000,000) (2015: Nil) were
pledged to secure the Group’s bills payable (note
18) and a bank loan granted to the Group (note 23),

respectively.

RZZTE—ANE=ZA=+—8 KASE
£ B AR®427,352,000T (FBE R
512,822,000 ) (Z T — A F : &)
LA K A R #250,000,0005T (& R
300,000,000/87C) (ZE—H%F : H)H)
AEEFECDANAEREENENE
& (H318) RAKBEERN—FRITE
A (BE23) MR R -
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31 March 2016 —E—XE=A=+—H

18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. BB ZFIERERERE

2016 2015

—E-RF —E-RF

HK$' 000 HK$’ 000

FExT FHET

Trade receivables FEWE 5518 220,388 208,216
Impairment allowance DERIERCL =] (197,375) (207,061)
23,013 1,155

Bills receivable e R i 48,249 80,168
Impairment allowance DERIERCL ] - (5,555)
48,249 74,613

71,262 75,768

REEBEZRER QA -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R 2% Mt &

31 March 2016 —ZE—X<"F=A=+—H

18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(continued)

The Group normally allows a credit period of not more
than 3 months to its customers except for certain
identified major customers where longer credit terms
may be granted upon approval by the management.
The credit terms of bills receivable are generally 6
months. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by senior management. Over
25% of the trade and bills receivables balances as
at 31 March 2016 represented receivables from five
customers. As at 31 March 2015, in view of the fact
that the Group’s trade and bills receivables relate
to a number of diversified customers, there was no
significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancement
over its trade and bills receivables balances. Trade and

bills receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables at
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice

date and net of provision, is as follows:

1B ERNEZREARERERE
(%)
AEE-RAFZPEHETZR=[AN
EEH HELEEEHER  ETER
I EERPAERRENEEN - &
WRBZEER—RANEH - A&EE
B REENRUGKIA RS BBIE
Hle RREEESCHEMBHAH -
R-E-—RFZA=T-BZEKE
HHARBREET - BBR25%MEH
EREABREFHNFA - R-F—4LF
ZA=+t—H ERAEENEKRES
RELEREEZANREZNZ TR
P Y EAENEERBRERER -
AEBHERYEEZFAMERERS
BRARFAEMERRIEMEENRE
ik o RE HHIERERZET G

B o

N

RBERRNEEE ZFRAREERE
W E BB RN B R e R ik 2 AT A

_|

2016 2015

—E-REF —EF—ARF

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

FExT FATT

Within 2 months & A A 28,010 38,471
2 to 6 months —E=XEA 43,252 37,180
6 months to 1 year NEAZE—F - 69
Over 1 year —FLE - 48
71,262 75,768

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2016 —E—A<"E=A=+—H

18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 18 ERNESZREREKREE
(continued) (#8)
Included in the above trade and bills receivables as at PR =—ZE—X"F=ZA=+—H

31 March 2016, amounts totalling HK$28,800,000
(2015: HK$73,540,000) were discounted to banks in
exchange for cash and included as “Bank advance
for discounted bills” on the face of the consolidated

statement of financial position.

The movements in impairment allowance of trade and

bills receivables are as follows:

ZF’EH&%%/?AIE&FEW/—\?FEP &
#£28,800,000/8 7t (= & ﬁi
73,540,000/ 7T) M) R 77 BE 38 AR ERER
® - WREHMBARRKRFIATERT
BEIR B o

FEWE 5 5B K E W E IR AR BB EE
AT

2016 2015

—B—RF —E—AF

HK$’000 HK$' 000

FTET THET

At beginning of the year REH 212,616 592,433

Impairment allowance B RRE R (M EE7)

recognised (note 7) - 504
Impairment losses ERERERE (MHE7)*

reversed (note 7)* (15,241) (159,057)

Written off as uncollectible B % U B0 T i 38 - (221,264)

At end of the year RER 197,375 212,616

REEEZRAER QA



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2016 —ZE—X<F=A=+—H

18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(continued)

*

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group
has confiscated the Property as settlement from a
customer for a bills receivable of HK$5,555,000, which
was previously impaired. Besides, the carrying amount
before provision was decreased by HK$9 million for
previously impaired trade receivables denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB”) due to the depreciation of RMB
during the vyear.
allowance on these trade and bills receivables of
approximately HK$15 million in aggregate was reversed
during the year ended 31 March 2016.

As such, the related impairment

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group
has bought back inventories from one distributor and
the purchase consideration of HK$143 million was
offset with the Group’s trade receivables due from this
distributor which were previously impaired. Besides,
during the year ended 31 March 2015 and up to the
date of approval of the Group's financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2015, settlements of
HK$16 million were received by the Group from a
few distributors for the previously impaired trade
and bills receivables of the same amount. As such,
the related impairment allowance on these trade and
bills receivables of approximately HK$159 million in
aggregate was reversed during the year ended 31
March 2015.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited

1B ERNEZREARERERE

(%)
" mai_7 AEZA=+—AILEF

CAEBERKREZMEUNLEE B
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BERME) i ARARBRER
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JEWE PR A R ERE R EE R
oEEE T At  LEERKESRE
REREREENABRERES XY
ISEEBTERBEE=-Z—X<F=A
=+—BLEFERER -

mﬁi_7 AF=A=+—RAL~F

CAEER-REHEARNEESE
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Wt A8 ST B 8 - M UL FRIE K AT
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WP ERREMEE R AEEB K
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2016 —ZE—X<"F=A=+—H

18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(continued)

Included in the above impairment allowance of trade
and bills receivables is a provision for impaired trade
and bills receivables in aggregate of HK$197,375,000
(2015: HK$212,616,000) with a carrying amount
before provision in aggregate of HK$197,375,000
(2015: HK$212,661,000). The impairment allowance
was recognised based on the Group’s best estimate
of amounts that are potentially uncollectible. This
determination requires significant judgement. In
making such judgement, the Group evaluates, among
certain economic factors specific to each customer and
other factors, the historical and current year payment
pattern and creditworthiness of each customer, the
default rates of current and prior years, aging of
receivables balances, and the latest communication
with individual customers. The Group has launched
a series of plans to communicate with individual
customers and manage the credit risk of the customers.
Management will closely monitor and continue to

pursue collection of those receivables.

REEEZRAER QA

18. BIRE 5

RERERREE

&)
NS E ey L ES T
RERESR B %ﬁﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁ%

IE K E W R ﬁ(ﬁ*%%ﬁmﬁ
ﬁfﬁ & 4 5197,375,000% T (=
—ﬁiju6mow%mn¢ﬁA

#197,375,000 7t (=T — A F -
212,616,000/8 7T) BV B & - RUERE T
BB S BN Al g AR E & B8 &
E-ETMER - E—RAEHNFERTE
RHAE - EEREBAEBNBIEFR - K
EEAE—AXTFHARBKEREZR
HthEEZ HPEE : SEPHNBER
AEEEREXNEE AFERBE
FEMBALE  BUFIEABRHERER
MBI EER TP BEBRHER - A& H

BEET—RINEFENEFEARERR
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31 March 2016 —ZE—X<F=A=+—H

18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 1BEUREZREREWRERE
(continued) (%&)
The aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables that WARIERBEERIERBREENEKRES
are not individually nor collectively considered to be FEREWRERNERERSTOT

impaired is as follows:

2016 2015
—E—-XRE —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$' 000
FERT FiBET
Neither past due nor impaired RBEA R AR RE 66,254 74,613
Less than 2 months past due BB E A 3,424 976
Over 2 months past due 2 i3 B R i Y 1E A 1,584 134
71,262 75,723
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired AR 38 HA % SR Rk (B B0 8 KUK TR B — e S
relate to a number of customers for whom there was HEREBNARETSEH -
no recent history of default.
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate £ 38 HAE 30 R R (B A FE R IE B — e )
to a number of independent customers that have a AEBBERNTECBNBIRF,E
good track record with the Group. Based on past o RBERTNKER  ARAFESRA
experience, the directors of the Company are of the BEAMBBERELRERE  URD
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary AR BB ZF 4R o

in respect of these balances and the balances are still

considered recoverable.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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31 March 2016 —E—~"E=A=+—H

19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

19.

BARE TR HEAMER

RECEIVABLES IE
2016 2015
—E-KF —ZT-R%F
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FTHERT FHET
Deposits paid to suppliers FEER N2 RE 803,298 331,086
Prepayments SEENE ] 15,284 7,654
Other deposits and receivables HEfbik & R EWSKIAE 46,393 45,280
Impairment allowance of TE A FRI8 I H At 8 U
prepayments and I R ERE
other receivables (8,458) (14,480)
856,517 369,540
Portion classified as DERIENHIZRS
non-current deposits ZE 1D (2,561) (3,277)
Current portion BN EAER 1 853,956 366,263

The movements in impairment allowance of

U E 55008 ) R R IR 1B (B Rt

prepayments and other receivables are as follows: RN
2016 2015
—E-XRE —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$' 000
THER FHET
At beginning of the year REH 14,480 27,112
Impairment allowance BRERBERE (HE7)
recognised (note 7) 1,850 240
Impairment losses B EREEE (ME7)
reversed (note 7) (4,452) (12,635)
Written off as uncollectible 97U IR = (3.420) (237)
At end of the year RER 8,458 14,480
REEFEZRAER QA —E-RE®
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19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES (continued)

Included in the above impairment allowance of
prepayments and other receivables is a provision
for impaired prepayments and other receivables of
HK$8,458,000 (2015: HK$14,480,000) with a carrying
amount before provision of HK$8,458,000 (2015:
HK$14,480,000). The impairment allowance was
recognised based on the Group’s best estimate of

amounts that are potentially uncollectible.

Except for the aforementioned prepayments and other
receivables, none of the remaining balance is either
past due or impaired. The financial assets included in
the above not impaired balances relate to receivables

for which there was no recent history of default.

Included in the Group’s “Other deposits and
receivables” is a rental deposit of HK$1,200,000
(2015: HK$1,066,000) and included in the Group's
“Prepayments” is prepaid rent of HK$2,539,000 (2015:
Nil), placed with Silver Base (Holdings) Limited (“SBH"),
a company controlled by Mr. Liang, an executive
director and a substantial shareholder of the Company
(note 33(d)). The rental deposit to SBH is unsecured,
interest-free and is repayable at the end of the lease

terms.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 85 ¥R AR MY 5E

31 March 2016 —E—~"E=A=+—H

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

20. BERBSEEYURCEMA

PLEDGED DEPOSITS 73K
2016 2015
—E-REF e
HK$'000 HK$' 000
FERT FHET
Cash and bank balances B RRITHES 375,709 185,208
Less: Pledged deposit for W BB TR E R
a trust receipt loan m i 2 73 - (15,150)
Less: Pledged deposits W BENREM
for bills payable I Z 7 (75,000) L
Cash and cash equivalents RekReZEEY 300,709 170,058

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and
bank balances of the Group denominated in RMB
amounted to approximately HK$355,369,000
(2015: approximately HK$153,439,000). RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group
is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange

business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances and
pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy

banks with no recent history of default.

REEEZRAER QA

RBERR - AEBUAREIENIE
@ MIRIT 482 47/355,369,000% 7T (=
T —ARF : 4153,439,00087L) - AR
BETAIEBRARAEMES - A - 1R
BB ONEE GRS RGEE - &
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R 2% Mt &

31 March 2016 —ZE—X<F=A=+—H

21. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 2. BENEBEZRERENERE
An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at RBREHARIZREZAPNENE S8
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice RENZEBENRESNAT

date, is as follows:

2016 2015
—E—XEF “E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
THER FHT
Within 1 month —EAR 546,986 -
1 month to 3 months —Z=={@A 75,000 716
Over 3 months =&AL E 3,157 3,141
625,143 3,857
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are ENESHIEERS N—RRIA0H AR
normally settled on 90-day terms. e o
The bills payable are non-interest-bearing and with 365 ENEEREERAE35HMEER -
days settlement terms.
As at 31 March 2016, the Group's bills payable RZE-—RF=ZA=1t—H x&H
of HK$615,000,000 (2015: Nil) were secured by 615,000,000 7T (= F — A F : #&)
the Group’s inventories with cost in aggregate of MENERERUARAGERARS
RMB427,352,000 (equivalent to HK$512,822,000) 427,352,0007T (188 10512,822,0007
(2015: Nil) (note 17) and the Group’s pledged bank ) (ZF—RF &) (Ha17) BAK
== Ed=1 N —= — F —
deposits of HK$75,000,000 (2015: Nil) (note 20). &SRB FH %75,000,0008 L (=F -0

F ) (MEE20) AR E S B RTT
FRBER -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R 2% Mt &

31 March 2016 —E—XE=A=+—H

22. DEPOSITS RECEIVED, OTHER PAYABLES 22. EWET € - HttEFIERE

AND ACCRUALS STEE
2016 2015
—E-RF —E-hF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FTHET FET
Deposits from customers mEFKBNIZE 110,288 70,157
Value-added tax payables FETIEET 97,624 68,268
Other payables E b fE {308 4,377 2,962
Accruals EEtaE 28,255 26,867
240,544 168,254
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an EMEMZREARENFH A=
average term of three months. J=I

REESEZRBERRA - T -XER



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2016 —E—<XE=A=+—H

23. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 23. FFERITREMEE
BORROWINGS
2016 2015
ZE-RF “2-1F
Contractual Contractual
interest rate interest rate
EHNR Maturity HK$" 000 AlH = Maturity HK$' 000
(%) HHA TEL (%) Ell= FEL
Current
b
Trust receipt loan - secured (note (a)) - - - LIBOR 2015 12,647
ERNEER-ERA (M) +3.5%
CECSH
FAEHFE
113.5%
Bank loan - secured (note (b)) 130% of 2016 222,000 - - -
ROER-BEM (HF0) PBOC
HEARRT
FlZ2130%
Bank loans - unsecured (note (c)) - - - 120% of 2015 303,000
BOER-BER (FE0) PBOC
HEARBIT
& 2120%
Other loan - secured
(note (d)) - - - 12 On demand 12,000
A EF-FER (i) EEX
Other loan - unsecured
(note (e)) - - - 18 2015 126,250
EET-EER (Fike)
222,000 453,897

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

B 85 ¥R AR MY 5E

31 March 2016 —ZE—X<"F=A=+—H
23.

Wit -

(a)

As at 31 March 2015, the Group's trust receipt loan
denominated in United States dollars bore interest at
a rate of LIBOR + 3.5% per annum. The Group’s trust
receipt loan as at 31 March 2015 was secured by the
Group's pledged bank deposit of HK$15,150,000 (note
20), and was supported by a guarantee provided by a
bank in Mainland China.

The Group’s bank loan denominated in RMB bore
interest at a rate of 130% of PBOC per annum (2015:
Nil) and would be repayable in April 2016. As at 31
March 2016, the Group’s bank loan was secured by
the Group’s inventories with cost in aggregate of
RMB250,000,000 (equivalent to HK$300,000,000) (note
17), and supported by corporate guarantees executed
by the Company, a subsidiary of the Company and a
related company of the Company.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group’s bank loans
denominated in RMB were unsecured, bore interest at a
rate of 120% of PBOC per annum and were fully repaid
in April 2015. The Group's bank loans as at 31 March
2015 were supported by corporate guarantees executed
by the Company and a subsidiary of the Company.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group’s other loan
denominated in Hong Kong dollars bore interest at a
rate of 12% per annum. The Group's other loan as at
31 March 2015 was secured by the Group’s investment
property with a carrying amount of HK$6,711,000 as
at 31 March 2015 (note 14) and was supported by a
guarantee provided by a director of the Company.

For the purpose of the above analysis, the Group's
other loan in the amount of HK$12,000,000 containing
a repayment on demand clause was included within
current interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group has
fully repaid the other loan of HK$12,000,000 in May
2015 after the disposal of the Group's investment
property. Further details of the disposal of the Group’s
investment property are included in note 14 to the
financial statements.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group’s other loan
denominated in RMB was unsecured, bore interest at
a rate of 18% per annum and was fully repaid in April
2015.

REEEZRAER QA

Al

(a)

SEIRTR AL E ()

R-B—RE=A=+—0 x%H
LAZETLHE M TR E IR R BUR
TEEREMI5% 2 FFKFE o K
EERN-_T-RE=A=1+—Br1E
LU B 3 A A % E15,150,000/%8 7T
B AR IR 1777 5% (M 5E20) 1EHR R LA
R B AR —RERITIRENERE
X e

AEBMUARBENRITERIZS
BARBITHEZ2130% (ZF—H
FoEB)ZFRMRABURAR T
—NFHAEBE R-ZE—XRE=A
=+—H AEENBEITERHKAR
& H A AR250,000,0007T (HHE R
300,000,000/ 70) AL B FE (M
FE17) B AR BARQR - AAQF]
—fEf B AR EARNG —MEH QG
FTE R R R ERIES 45 o

R-ZBE—RAFE=A=+—8 A&£H
DWARBHENRITEREERA -
BB ARBITHEZ120% 2 FF R
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MEFR -AEER_ZT-—HF=A
ZSt—HMEMERHAEER -F
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BRI E M (KaE14) (FE M A K
ARAB—BEZREHEREFR -
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BETHEMER (EPREAREKE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2016 —ZE—X<"F=A=+—H

24. BOND PAYABLES 24. B &S

2016 2015

—E—XE —T—RF

HKS$' 000 HK$’000

FERT FHET

Bond payables — unsecured e B —mIEA 13,997 -

During the year, the Group issued bonds (the
“2015 Bonds”) with an aggregate principal amount
of HK$15,000,000, before related expenses of
HK$2,175,000, to certain independent individuals. The
2015 Bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 6% to
7% per annum and will mature in the period from July
2017 to December 2022. The interest will be repayable
by the Group annually on the anniversary of the issue
dates of the respective bonds and up to the maturity
date.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the
Group issued a 7%-interest-bearing bond (the “2016
Bond") with principal amount of HK$51,300,000 to an
independent entity, as further explained in note 39(b)
to the financial statements.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited

FA-AEBEMETHLALETER
% %8/415,000,00078 7T (R 0Bk AR E F
2,175,000 7T) 2 EH ([ ZE—RFE
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25. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the

year are as follows:

B 85 ¥R AR MY 5E

31 March 2016 —ZE—X<"F=A=+—H

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. IEFERL IR

Depreciation allowance
in excess of related

Losses available
for offsetting
against future

ELEHBREBRFRAZEBHNT

depreciation taxable profits Total
RERHE MAEEHERR

BERERE ERENEZER -

HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000

TER TEL TEL

At 1 April 2014 RZZ-MEMA—H 38 (38) -
Deferred tax charged/(credited) ERRBREENR/ (GIA)

to the statement of profit or loss ZEREHIE (W3E10)
during the year (note 10) (38) 38 -

At 31 March 2015, 1 April 2015 -
and 31 March 2016 “Z-1fWA-AR

The Group has estimated tax losses arising in Hong
Kong of HK$154,892,000 (2015: HK$233,935,000)
that are available indefinitely for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose. The Group also has estimated tax losses
arising in Mainland China of HK$624,150,000 (2015:
HK$644,205,000) that will expire in one to five years
for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax
assets in respect of tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
approximately HK$154,892,000 (2015: approximately
HK$233,935,000) and Mainland China of
approximately HK$624,150,000 (2015: approximately
HK$644,205,000) have not been recognised as they
have arisen in certain subsidiaries that have been loss-
making for some time and it is not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the

tax losses can be utilised.
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31 March 2016 —ZE—X<"F=A=+—H

25. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 25, IRIERLIE (&)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared
to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable
rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of

earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 March 2016, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject
to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the
directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will
distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future after
their assessment based on the factors which included
the dividend policy and the level of capital and
working capital required for the Group’s operation.
The aggregate amount of temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland
China totalled approximately HK$58,051,000 (2015:
HK$251,404,000) at 31 March 2016, for which
the related deferred tax liabilities of approximately
HK$5,805,000 (2015: HK$25,140,000) have not been

recognised.
There are no income tax consequences attaching

to the payment of dividends by the Company to its

shareholders.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. &7
2016 2015
—E-RF —F 0T
HK$' 000 HK$’000
THER FHE T
Authorised: ERE
100,000,000,000 100,000,000,000/%
(2015: 100,000,000,000) (ZZE—FAF :100,000,000,0008%)
ordinary shares of SREE0. 1B T L B
HK$0.1 each 10,000,000 10,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRERE :
1,515,205,997 1,515,205,997 1%
(2015: 1,349,205,997) (ZZ—H% :1,349,205,997F%)
ordinary shares of BREE0 1B TN T B
HK$0.1 each 151,521 134,921

REESEZRBERRA - T -XER
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31 March 2016 —ZE—X<F=A=+—H

26. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 26. A (48)
A summary of the movements in the Company’s issued AR BITRANESPHZNT -

share capital is as follows:

Number Share

of shares Issued  premium
in issue capital account Total

BRfT BRfT &4
RAEE R BER @i
Notes HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
Pt & THx THEx FHL
At 1 April 2014 R-Z—WEMA—H 1,354,749,997 135,475 485,148 620,623
Repurchase of shares BERH (a) (5,544,000) (554) (5,060) (5,614)

At 31 March 2015 and RZE-HE=A=+-H

1 April 2015 k—E-HEMA—H 1,349,205,997 134,921 480,088 615,009
Placement of new shares & kH (b) 166,000,000 16,600 200,860 217,460
Share issue expenses BROEITER ¥ = (5,441) (5,441)
166,000,000 16,600 195,419 212,019
At 31 March 2016 RZE-R"FE=A=1+—-H 1,515,205,997 151,521 675,507 827,028

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited = Annual Report 2016



26. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Shar

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R 2% Mt &

31 March 2016 —ZE—X<"F=A=+—H

26. BN (48)

Hit -
During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company (a) REEZ
repurchased its own ordinary shares on the Hong Kong g AR
Stock Exchange. All ordinary shares repurchased during Tak e TEREZ=

EF=A=+—HBItF
AREEMRABLOAS 2

the year ended 31 March 2015 were cancelled, and
the issued share capital of the Company was reduced
by the par value of the repurchased ordinary shares
so cancelled. The premium of HK$5,060,000 paid for
the repurchase of the ordinary shares was charged to
the share premium account. An amount equivalent
to the par value of the ordinary shares cancelled was
transferred to the capital redemption reserve as set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

On 27 July 2015, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent, pursuant to which
the Company has agreed to place up to 276,493,999
new ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.1 each
through the placing agent at HK$1.31 per share.

On 7 August 2015, 166,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each were issued for cash at HK$1.31 per share
pursuant to the placing agreement dated 27 July 2015
for a total cash consideration, before related expenses,
of HK$217,460,000.

e options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the

share

options issued under the scheme are included in

note 27 to the financial statements.
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 27. BBIRRESTE

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants
of the Scheme include the Company’s directors,
including executive directors, non-executive directors,
independent non-executive directors, a substantial
shareholder of the Company and other employees
of the Group. The Scheme became effective on 20
February 2009 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that

date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme
is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is

subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time and with an aggregate value (based on the price
of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a

general meeting.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 5 business days from the date of offer, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total
by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the directors, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends on
a date which is not later than 10 years from the date
of offer of the share options or the expiry date of the

scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable
by the directors, but may not be less than the highest
of (i) the nominal value of the Company’s shares;
(i) the Hong Kong Stock Exchange closing price of
the Company’s shares on the date of offer of the
share options; and (iii) the average Hong Kong Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of

offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to

dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 27. lmIEsTEl (&)
The following share options were outstanding under FR - RIBEZETE B ARITFERERED
the Scheme during the year: N
2016 2015
—E-AF —T-R%F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of options price  of options
mEEFE BRE NMETH B
TEE 2B 1768 2A
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
per share per share
BRER TR SkET T
At beginning of the year REA) - - 3.102 75,584
Granted during the year FREE 1.09 134,900 - -
Cancelled during the year F AT H - - 3.102 (74,559)
Lapsed during the year FEREM 1.09 (28,700) 3.102 (1,025)
At end of the year RER 1.09 106,200 - =
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share
options outstanding as at 31 March 2016 are as
follows:

Number of options Exercise price

T

R TTE(E AT RN T -

Exercise period

BREZE TEE TEH

‘000 HKS per share

F B BERBT
21,240 1.09 22 April 2016 to 21 April 2021
—E-RFNA-_t+-H=Z
2 —-FMA=+—H
21,240 1.09 22 April 2017 to 21 April 2021
—2—+FMNA=+=HZE
—E-—FMA=+—H
21,240 1.09 22 April 2018 to 21 April 2021
T N\FWA-_t+-H=ZE
—EZ—FMA=+—H
21,240 1.09 22 April 2019 to 21 April 2021
—E-NAFERA=-+=ZH=Z
R —FMA=+—H
21,240 1.09 22 April 2020 to 21 April 2021
—E-FTFPMA—+ZHE
—E-—FMA=+—H

106,200

The fair value of the share options granted during the
year was HK$58,081,000 (HK$0.43 each), of which
the Group recognised a share option expense of
HK$18,667,000 during the year ended 31 March 2016.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, 1,025,000
share options, which were granted by the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2013, were lapsed
and upon receiving the consent from the relevant
grantees of the Company’s share options, 74,558,500
share options, which were granted by the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2013, were cancelled
by the Company with the related share option
expense of HK$31,796,000 recognised immediately
to the Group’'s profit or loss during that year upon
cancellation.

REEEZRAER QA

A

REBEE-ZT—R"E=ZA=1+—HIEE
B EREN R FEEA58,081,000
BT (FR%0.43870) - MASBEE I
RBE-_ZE—RE=A=+—BILEE
R AEE 18,667,000/ T ©

REBEE-ZTE—RAF=A=+—HLHF
€+ 1,025,000/ BB A% AE (T A D R E,
E_E-=F=ZA=+—BILFERX
BH) BARM - MARERS AR R BERE
ZHBEERBRANRER  KAFCEHE
74,558,500/ g g #E (T AR AR EE
TE-—ZHFZRAZTHULEEFEEARARK
tH ) T A B8 E A% #E & F331,796,000/8 7T
DR A EZEREERER 2B
R o

|
>
H
4
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
The fair value of equity-settled share options granted
during the year was estimated as at the date of grant
using the binomial option pricing model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. The following table lists the

inputs to the model used:

BT ()

FRR M MBS 2 BB AT
BEDHEEABER B BT H
R A RIR R AR R R
Eft o TRIMRABR S8

27.

Dividend yield (%) i B & (%) 0.00
Expected volatility (%) T8 HAR 18 (%) 46.94
Historical volatility (%) [ 5 1R (%) 46.94
Risk-free interest rate (%) 1 3 B R 2R (%) 1.13
Expected life of options (year) TR ERRE A i B RUE (F) 6.00
Share price as at the valuation date REEBBARE (FRET) 1.09

(HK$ per share)

The expected life of the options is based on the
management’s estimation and is not necessarily
indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur. The
expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which

may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
106,200,000 share options outstanding under the
Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding share
options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 106,200,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of HK$10,620,000 and share
premium of HK$105,138,000 (before related issuance
expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 105,600,000 share options
outstanding under the Scheme, which represented
approximately 7.0% of the Company’s shares in issue
as at that date.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited

EHEREARA T ENERENMET
RA—ERRAEHROITEERER - 78
HOR 1 2 BR 38 1 R 18 AJ #6878 R SR E 0
BERER IR AR 46 B B R A8 RABTT o

R -

AEATFEER  UEMADRLBR
M EMEFE -

RBEEHER A2RREZTESE
106,200,0000% & 7% 17 15 #Y 8 Ak 4 < 1R
BARNAE TR RANERE - W R1T
FHOBBREERHTE  BEMmET
106,200,0000% A 1 &) B8 5N @A & =
A AN AR 10,620,0005% 7T BA M A% 17 %
E105,138,0008 7T (RMNBRAEBAEITE
M) e

Rt SR BHREREMENBE - AQF
B AE % =t 815 105,600,0008% 4 7 17 &
MERE  HERAARRZAMNE R
TR #97.0% °
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28. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the

movements therein for the current and prior years are

presented in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity of the financial statements.

(i)

(i)

The Group’s capital reserve represents the
differences between the nominal value of the
shares issued by the Company and the aggregate
of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired
upon the group reorganisation prior to the listing

of the Company’s shares.

In accordance with the PRC Company Law, the
Company’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC
are required to appropriate 10% of the annual
statutory profit after tax (after offsetting any prior
years' losses) to the statutory surplus reserve.
When the balance of the reserve fund reaches
50% of the entity’s registered capital, any further
appropriation is optional. The statutory surplus
reserve can be utilised to offset prior years’ losses
or to increase capital. However, the balance of
the statutory surplus reserve must be maintained
at a minimum of 25% of registered capital after

such usages.

REEEZRAER QA

28. {#1&
AEEAEERBEEENEESER

o gk

X

BERBNM B RERANE G S

2H* -

(ii)

AEENERNFEFBEAQARDH
TR EERRARRBRG EH
IR SE RN Jo 10 €40 o) PN
AR A BENEZER -

REBEFERRDE - ARRNFPEE
ey f B8 2 B 4 A #10% F B
EBRBEMNE (REHEBEFEN
ERERR) BREXERBKAE
T ERBSEMRED BRI
BARNE50%K - AR A A& FE
HERBINEN  EERBAES
AREEEBEFREAERIIE
MEA - AT - EERBKATESH
tELAMEE - BHRLART BT
PREMEARIN25% e



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R 2% Mt &

31 March 2016 —ZE—X<"F=A=+—H

29. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transactions

(a)

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group
has confiscated the Property as the settlement
from a customer for a bills receivable of
HK$5,555,000, as further detailed in note 16 to
the financial statements. Accordingly, a portion
of the purchase consideration of the Property of
HK$5,555,000 resulted in no cash outflow during
the year ended 31 March 2016.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group
has bought back inventories from a distributor at
the purchase consideration of HK$143,088,000,
including the value-added tax of HK$52,958,000.
The purchase consideration of the inventories
bought back by the Group resulted in no
cash outflow during the year ended 31 March
2015 as all of the purchase consideration was
offset with the Group’s trade receivables of
HK$143,088,000.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, provision
for reinstatement cost of HK$2,718,000 was
capitalised as leasehold improvements under

property, plant and equipment.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited

29 EHBEERERMEE

T2HRBAERH

(a)

REE-ZZT—-R"F=H=1T—H
LHFE - AEEB R MELE
B — & & F 5,555,000/ T FE UL
RE - E—SFEHNMBERRN
F1e A  ZMENTHEE
R (B5,555,0007%8 LI & 5| E =
—T-RNEZAZ=ZTHLEE
NZBREMH -

RBzE-_ZE—RF=A=+—8H
ILFE - REER—BEHEREE
BEFE - BEMRER143,088,000
BT BIEIE{E 52,958,000/%
T AEERBEFECBEREL
Eo|BHE_T—RF=A=1—
BIEFEAZR@RL  BAEH
BERBEDEEAEENERE
5 FXIE 143,088,000 7T ATK 8 ©

RBEE-_T—-—AF=A=+—H
LEFE - 2,718,000/ 7T BV 1B & K
AEBEEMMARYE - BE &R
BINHEYEEE -
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30. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

31.

Details of the Group’s assets pledged for securing bank
and other borrowings and banking facilities during the
year are included in notes 14, 17, 20, 21 and 23 to the

financial statements.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office premises,
warehouses, and staff quarters under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for

terms ranging from 6 months to 5 years and 3 months.

At 31 March 2016, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases falling due as follows:

30.

31.

BEKH
AEEBRAFEHRESRITREMEE
RRITRE FTEREENFBHN RN
TERRM L1417 20~ 2123 °

EEHELH

EAEME A
AEEREBEZERELRHEBEETHA
EHE-EE - ZTEEREIBE A
AE s BMEZN Tl A 25%31E A
L THEHETIER o

RZZE-—RE=ZA=+—0  x5ER
EAAEHEERERI R ENAR
KEEEBEFRRBOFBAOT

2016 2015

—E—XEF —ET—RF

HK$’' 000 HK$' 000

FExT FET

Within one year —F RN 24,889 24,783
In the second to F_FEFERF

fifth years, inclusive (BREEEME) 24,866 4,144

49,755 28,927

REEEZRAER QA
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32. COMMITMENTS 32, RIE
In addition to the operating lease commitments Br £ XHIRE31ATRF il /) & B M & R e
detailed in note 31 above, the Group had the N REBERREBRE AT EREIE
following capital commitments and inventory purchase LB EFEAE

commitments at the end of the reporting period:

Capital commitments 2016 2015
BEREE ZE-XREF —T-RF
HK$' 000 HK$’000

THERT FET

Contracted, but not provided for: 2 5] #7118 & B -

Capital contribution R THEEREZHE
payable to PRC entities 30,259 2,368
Acquisition of items of property, BEWZX WEh&ZEEE
plant and equipment 3,663 -
33,922 2,368
Inventory purchase 2016 2015
commitments —E-XF —ZET—REF
BEFERE HK$'000 HK$' 000
FTET FET
Within one year —F RN 2,687,832 9,812,179
In the second to F_FRERF
fifth years, inclusive (BIEEEMSF) 5,989,815 8,091,262
Over five years REFELE 5,852,567 6,316,987

14,530,214 24,220,428

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R 2% Mt &

31 March 2016 —E—A<"E=A=+—H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere

in these financial statements, the Group had

3. BB AR
B AR B 75 R R B A 05 B S L1
RPN - AEBRARE R E R

(a)

the following material transaction with a related BETATERRS :

party during the year:

2016 2015

ZE-AEF —E-IfF

Note HK$'000 HK$' 000
Bt it FTERT FAT

SBH: RE(RH) :

Rental expenses HEEZA (i) 6,394 6,394

Note: Btz -

()  The rental expenses of a staff quarter were () —REIBEMHEEEZEBRH
charged by SBH based on mutually agreed terms RE(EE)REEEREN K
at a fixed monthly amount of HK$533,000 (2015: ;o RE A EE S % A533,000
HK$533,000). In the opinion of the directors Bt (ZZE—HF 533,000
of the Company, the rental expenses were TL)WE - KRRIEERA M
determined by reference to the prevailing market ERZI2E R LR ENE A
rental of comparable premises. The transactions MHEEMEE - BEXSEX
constitute continuing connected transactions ETRAITHEERERS °
under the Listing Rules.

REEEZERER A A T -REHR
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(b)

Other transactions with related parties:

(i)

During the year ended 31 March 2012,
the Group formed 17 limited liability
partnerships established in the PRC (the
“Partnerships”) with certain its employees
(the “Employees”) via a trust arrangement.
On 1 November 2011, the Company,
Silver Base Trading and Development
(Shenzhen) Co. Limited (“SBTS”) and Mr.
Liang Guosheng, the brother of Mr. Liang,
an executive director and a substantial
shareholder of the Company, and also
the director of two subsidiaries of the
Company, entered into a trust agreement
(the “Trust Agreement”) regarding the
investments in the Partnerships. Pursuant to
the Trust Agreement, Mr. Liang Guosheng
held 2% equity interest in each of the
Partnerships on behalf of SBTS as at 31
March 2015 and 2016. Further details of
the Trust Agreement are set out in note 41

to the financial statements.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited

33. FAE

(b)

X5 (1)

BN T EMR 5

—~

MAREEAKEE(EK
¥ RZE——F+—
A—B AXR7F - -REEH
BRORYDBERAR ([HRE
BHERFRID]) RRE
TE(RAARBHNITESR
REIBBERRRAEEMNRS
I B YEEA R =) /M 8 A
AMER)RERERA KD
EQERVAEE A EA(REE )
&) REEFEHRE RX=
E-AFER-FT-AF=A
=+—H REBELERRK
REZBZHER (R HEE
BINEEN2%KRAES - 5
AHENE - T HBFERY
TEERR M TE4T o
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(b)

Other transactions with related parties:

(continued)

(ii)

As at 31 March 2016, a related company of
the Company, which is beneficially owned
by Mr. Liang, has provided a guarantee in
favour of a bank in the PRC for the Group's
bank loan of HK$222,000,000 as at 31
March 2016.

As at 31 March 2015, a director of the
Company had provided a guarantee in
favour of a financial institution in Hong
Kong for an other loan granted to the
Group of HK$12,000,000 as at 31 March
2015. The other loan was fully repaid by
the Group during the year ended 31 March
2016.

Details of the Group’s bank and other
borrowings are set out in note 23 to the
financial statements.

Commitments with a related party:

As disclosed in note 33(a), the Group has rental
commitments with SBH of HK$7,200,000 (2015:
HK$6,394,000) under non-cancellable operating

leases falling due within one year (2015: within

one year).

REEEZRAER QA

3. A RS ()

(b)

HERPB T EMR S - (&)

RZE—RNE=ZA=+—
H —HBHREEE=RS
i /NI 2D N NS
RZE—R"F=A=+—H
/222,000,000 Jt 2 R 1T
BEm—HEREmRITIRM
BR-

RZE—RF=ZA=+—
H ARAl—RESEMES
—HeREEREERZER
SEEER=_ZT—AF=A
=+—H A12,000,0005% T
ZHEHMER NEEBE R E
E-FT-ARF=A=+—H
IEFENEREEZEHM
B e

REBMRITREMEER
SEIBH NI SR M 5E23 o

B2 B B 7 O AR

B FE33(FT R AEER
BR—FRN(ZT—HF: —FR)
FEA TR EE W R
X (%£ME)A7,200,0008 T (=F

=

F4E : 6,394,000/ 7T ) #A9FH E &
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(d)

Outstanding balances with related parties:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

The amounts due to directors included in
the Group'’s current liabilities are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

The amounts due to related parties
represented a payable to a key management
personnel of HK$160,000 (2015:
HK$1,116,000) and a payable to SBH of
nil (2015: HK$3,197,000). The balances
included in the Group’s current liabilities are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

Details of the Group’s rental deposit and
prepaid rent placed with SBH as at the end
of the reporting period are disclosed in note
19 to the financial statements.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited

33. FAE

(d)

X5 (1)

HERM T M AREENER

—~
=

(i)

(iii)

rEBZzRBDEERBTEN
EXZFAE ZEXELSELR
B 2R REBEEERS -

FEATBEEE T RIBRKREN
—REITEEBRABZRA
160,000 T (ZFE — A5 -
1,116,000/ 7T) K& fE i1 iR
E&KB)RERE(ZE
— A4 3,197,000/ 7T) °
rEBZRBEEREZE
BEBRAEER 2ERE

AR BN RS R FRRR
(EE)HAE RS RENE
SO IE I BT MR I 19
W -
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. Bl AR5 (5)
(continued)
(e) Compensation of key management personnel of () AEEBXZEIEABHRH
the Group:
2016 2015
—E—AHF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$' 000
THER FHET
Salaries, allowances and Fe REREVHR
benefits in kind 30,124 35,029
Pension scheme RIKERETEIH R
contributions 594 596
Equity-settled share NERERECBREER
option expense 6,677 19,123
37,395 54,748
The balance includes emoluments of Ms. Luo Li, ERERBREEMNL L (RRARK
the spouse of Mr. Liang, of HK$2,247,000 (2015: AR BLAS) B F BN2,247,000% 7T
HK$2,470,000). Further details of directors’ (ZF— 2% : 2,470,000/ 7T)
emoluments are included in note 8 to the EsMenE—IHFBARIH

TR M TES ©

financial statements.

REESEZRBERRA - T -XER
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34. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying
amounts of the Group’s financial instruments

approximate to their fair values.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to

estimate the fair values:

The fair values of trade receivables, bills receivable,
current portion of deposits and other receivables, cash
and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade payables,
bills payable, other payables and accruals, amounts
due to directors and related parties, bank advance for
discounted bills and interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short term maturities of these

instruments.

The fair values of the non-current portion of deposits
and bond payables have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments on similar terms, credit risk
and remaining maturities, which approximate to their

carrying amounts.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited

TREERAGBZATEERZIAR
BRER 57 (MIFREBRIEE) ZA)
RHTNZARZEEARK > THIHEAR
RETI ARG RFEE :

BWEZHE  BEREE HEREM
R R VB - BE MRS EFE
Y DERER BNEZHIE - BN
FiE - HMBENAZALEAE - B
EFNEMBEB SR RTHERERE
B URFFRBRITREMEREN AT
BEAEKEERS TESAREL
TANIHRERE -

B 2 FNRBH REMEFORFE
B ZERGR  FEERR R TR H
FrEMRER TR B AER A XK ESR
ARRERERBEMTHE - MABAAF
EBEAARREAZKREERS
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY  35. €@ T E W& Rl
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of EEemT AN ESHRMNEEER
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting T:

period are as follows:

Loans and receivables

BERREKRRE
2016 2015
ZE-REF —T-hF
HK$'000 HK$' 000
THER FHET
Trade receivables fEWE F A 23,013 1,155
Bills receivable B W E 5 48,249 74,613
Financial assets included in FTATERFIE - R
prepayments, deposits R H A FE R IB &Y
and other receivables SREE 46,393 41,491
Pledged deposits [REERER N 75,000 15,150
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREFEY 300,709 170,058
493,364 302,467
Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
REBERTIENERES
2016 2015
ZE-RF —E-1F
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
FTER FHT
Trade payables FET & 558 10,143 3,857
Bills payable EREE 615,000 -
Financial liabilities included FFABWET - AR
in deposits received, other HIERET A G
payables and accruals TRAaE 70,312 29,829
Bank advance for discounted bills $R77B4 3R IR EA K 28,800 73,540
Interest-bearing bank and other B R1T R E b
borrowings BE 222,000 453,897
Bond payables ERES 13,997 -
Due to related parties FE S EB B 5 B IE 160 4,313
Due to directors e EEFIA 1,251 28,872
961,663 594,308
REEEZERER A A ZE-RNEFER
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TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

At 31 March 2016, the Group discounted certain bills
receivable (the “Discounted Bills”) with a carrying
amount of HK$28,800,000 (2015: HK$73,540,000) to
banks in Mainland China for cash. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, the Group has retained
the substantial risks and rewards, which include default
risks relating to the Discounted Bills, and accordingly,
it continued to recognise the full carrying amount of
the Discounted Bills and the respective bank advance
for discounted bills. Subsequent to the discounting,
the Group does not retain any rights on the use of
the Discounted Bills, including sale, transfer or pledge
of the Discounted Bills to any other third parties.
The aggregate carrying amount of bank advance for
discounted bills recognised due to the Discounted Bills
was HK$102,826,000 (2015: HK$112,021,000) as at
31 March 2016.

LITIGATION

In December 2013, one distributor of the Group (the
“Plaintiff”) filed a claim to a District People’s Court in
the PRC (the “PRC District People’s Court”) against one
of the Group'’s subsidiaries in the PRC in relation to the
Group’s obligation to buy back certain inventories from
the Plaintiff (the “Claim”). The Plaintiff demanded the
purchase consideration and related compensation from
the Group of RMB20.1 million (equivalent to HK$24.1
million) in total.

According to a judgement dated 25 August 2015
issued by the PRC District People’s Court, the Group
was liable to buy back certain inventories from the
Plaintiff with a total consideration of RMB18.9 million
(equivalent to HK$22.7 million). The Group has filed
an appeal for such judgement to the PRC District
People’s Court in September 2015. According to a
judgement dated 7 January 2016 issued by the PRC
District People’s Court, the appeal from the Group was
dismissed and the original judgement dated 25 August
2015 was sustained.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited

36. TREEER

37.

R-ZZE—RNEZA=Z+—H A&
ErRRBErt s RTMIRE TERER
B /528,800,000 T (=ZZT — R F :
73,540,000/ 70) < FEYEIE ([BLIR =
BDUKEEE - ARREERE - &
SEREBENBORABRLKER(BIES
BMRERZEARRE) Bt HES
BRUREBEZ2HEEHERBED
RITAAIREIE R - NELIRE - AEE
WERBFERMB R ZEMERN (2
BRERE=HLE  ERLEMUER
ZE) RZE—A"F=A=+—8"
AREAEEMERZBITHERER
M2 HBIRE{EA102,826,0008 L (=ZF
— R : 112,021,000 7T) °

5T A
EE_

R-T—Z=ZF+_F ~EE—2LH
B(READRAKRERREARES
THEENEEETEER ARZEE ([H
BipE ARER ) HAKER T B E
h—FEMBARRERR ([ZBER]) -
REAZBRAEEZNAGHEARKE20.1
BET(HER241B8BT)NEBER
B REEEE -

REFEEARERMBEMBEA
“E-RFENAZTHAMHR K&
BERREADNEETESE  BREA
ARM189F B (MHENR2278EH
)  AEBER-_ZE—RFENARK
HrmE P E @ ARARIRE 5 o 4R
BREMEARECABEMBRAZS
—NF-AEEBNHAR  AEERB®
FHRERETAFERHA_T—HFEN
A-+HRBMEH -
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LITIGATION (continued)

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Group and the Plaintiff are under the negotiation
for the buy back arrangement of the inventories and
the Group has not bought back any inventories from
the Plaintiff. The directors of the Company are in the
opinion that adequate provision has been made in the
financial statements to cover any potential liabilities
arising from the Claim.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
bond

payables and cash and short term deposits. The main

interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,

purpose of these financial instruments is to finance
the Group's operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables,
bills receivable, deposits and other receivables, trade
payables, bills payable, other payables and accruals,
bank advance for discounted bills and amounts due to
related parties and directors, which arise directly from

its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these

risks and they are summarised below.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings with floating
interest rates. The contractual interest rates and terms
of repayment of the interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings of the Group are set out in note 23 to

these financial statements.

A reasonably possible increase in 50 basis points (2015:
50 basis points) in interest rates would have decreased
profit before tax of the Group by HK$1,110,000
(2015: increased loss before tax of the Group by
HK$1,578,000) during the year and there would be
no material impact on the Group’s equity (excluding

retained profits).

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating
units in currencies other than the units’ functional
currencies. For Hong Kong operations, all sales and
purchases transactions are settled in Hong Kong dollars
or United States dollars. Meanwhile, most of the sales
and purchase transactions in the PRC operations are
settled in RMB. Accordingly, the transactional currency
exposures of the Group are not significant. The Group
has not entered into any hedging transaction to reduce
the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk in this

regard.

A reasonably possible appreciation of 5% (2015: 5%) of
the exchange rate of the Hong Kong dollar against RMB
would have no significant effect on the profit before tax
of the Group during the year (2015: no significant effect
on the loss before tax of the Group) and there would be

no material impact on the Group’s equity.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk

Credit risk arises mainly from the risk of counterparties
defaulting on the terms of their agreements. The
carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents,
pledged deposits, trade receivables, bills receivable,
and deposits and other receivables represent the

Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to

financial assets.

The Group monitors the exposure to credit risk on an
ongoing basis, and credit evaluations are performed
on customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis and the Group has launched a series
of plans to manage the credit risk of customers,
further details are set out in note 18 to these financial
statements. Provision are made for certain balances
past due when management considers the loss from
non-performance by these counterparties is likely.
The credit risk on cash and bank balances is low as
those balances are placed with reputable financial

institutions.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
certain concentration of credit risk as over 25% of
the Group’s trade and bills receivables were due
from the Group’s five customers (2015: no significant

concentrations of credit risk).

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and bills
receivables are disclosed in note 18 to the financial
statements.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the
use of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
bond payables and trade finance facilities. The
Group’s financing activities are managed centrally
by maintaining an adequate level of cash and cash
equivalents to finance the Group’s operations.
The Group also ensures the availability of bank
credit facilities to address any short term funding
requirements.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at the end of the reporting period, based on
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

W HHEEREEEEZRBEK

(%)

mBE %
AEENBEFEEEBERFERITRE
fEE  BNEFIESBREEERS
BEeNBFEERBHE 2RO TE - KN
B&ETEERELYMEBRERAK
FOREMASFEYRAEENLE
R#EES - ARBETRERRITEETLR

A HIELENERERHESEKR -

REBIZA KRR

ETN
NG

B ENE

BEERBSHRNIBBERET

2016
—E-REF
On demand
or less than
1 year 1to5 Over
EERDS years 5 years Total
—-Ex —-ZREE "ENE @t
HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$’'000
TR TERT TER TET
Trade payables eI 8 5 3R 10,143 - - 10,143
Bills payable [ENER 615,000 - L 615,000
Financial liabilities SFABWETE - HAh
included in deposits JE S 3RIE I AT
received, other payables BENERAR
and accruals 70,312 - - 70,312
Bank advance for RITHRERBN
discounted bills 28,800 - - 28,800
Interest-bearing bank and SHERITREAM
other borrowings BE 222,629 - - 222,629
Bond payables e S 1,000 8,100 11,750 20,850
Due to related parties & BB 75 RUR 160 - - 160
Due to directors [ ADEE S0 1,251 - - 1,251
949,295 8,100 11,750 969,145

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT . B KEREEEEZEREE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (48)
Liquidity risk (continued) MENE & E b (&)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities N
as at the end of the reporting period, based on £
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows: (%)
(continued)

2015
—ET-hF
On demand
or less than
1 year 1t05 Over
& Z K, years 5 years Total
—&xn —ERF IFENE st

HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET AT TET TAT

Trade payables e E 58 3,857 - L 3,857
Financial liabilities STABKET® - At

included in deposits e 38 & JE AT

received, other payables BEMNSRAE

and accruals 29,829 - - 29,829
Bank advance for RITAREERHR

discounted bills 73,540 - - 73,540
Interest-bearing bank and SHERTREM

other borrowings* BE* 462,225 = = 462,225
Due to related parties JE 1< BB 77 R 4,313 = = 4,313
Due to directors ENEERA 28,872 - - 28,872

602,636 - ~ 602,636
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

*

As at 31 March 2015, included in interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings are other loan of HK$12,000,000
containing a repayment on demand clause giving
the lender the unconditional right to call the loan
at any time and therefore, for the purpose of the
above maturity profile, the amount is classified as “on
demand”.

Notwithstanding the above repayment on demand
clause, the directors of the Company do not believe
that the other loan will be called in its entirety within
12 months, and they consider that the other loan will
be repaid in accordance with the maturity date as
set out in the agreement. This evaluation was made
considering: the financial position of the Group at the
date of approval of the financial statements; and the
lack of events of default. In accordance with the terms
of the other loan, the maturity term at 31 March 2015
is HK$12,000,000 repayable in 2019.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise the shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the

years ended 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by the total capital plus
net debt. Net debt includes interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings, trade payables, bills payable,
deposits received, other payables and accruals, bank
advance for discounted bills, bond payables and
amounts due to related parties and directors less cash
and cash equivalents. Total capital represents equity

attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(@) On 27 April 2016, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent
individual to dispose of the Property for a cash
consideration of RMB9,400,000 (equivalent to
HK$11,280,000).
be completed by end of June 2016.

This transaction is expected to

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
the Group issued the 2016 Bond with principal
amount of HK$51,300,000 to an independent
entity. The 2016 Bond bears interest at 7% per

annum and will mature in 2019.

REEEZRAER QA

BT HEAREEEBERBXR
(%)
BAER
AEENAFERNEERE  RIRE

39.

AEEFBELENENERFRENE
AR UXEEXBRERREER
KAE °

REBEBEEENEERERCEMRR
BERAEEEN RS ELRAE -
RIRFFH AR ERLEE  AEEAFHE
AR R IR A 2 AR B MIRFRIREE AN
BTG Z'XE.E/\@:I:—z N
—A=+—HBER=ZZE—RF=A=+—
HIEFEITESGEREANBE  BUER
FBIREL &

AEBERBERLREREN - AER
FERABERINERFHE - & ?‘ﬁrﬁﬁ
BREFERITIEAMBES BNES

B ENRE BRETE - EtEMR
EREFEE RITUERERDR K
MESA RN D RESFIANE
G ?)ﬁfﬁﬁﬁiﬁé%ﬁ%%%ﬁ c AN

BAAAERERTSE ARG ESR -
HEHESEE
(a) B/\\:i /\i@ﬂ +‘EE| $

EEE-FZBIALILEE D
& LA AR%9,400,0007T (8%
11,280 ooo;‘%ﬁ)ﬁﬁiﬁéﬁ{ﬁﬁj
EZWE - B ZBERSHERZ
—NENAKEA ﬁ:% ©

RNIEEARE - AKER—MBZ
TS B 1T AN & % A51,300,00078
TTH-E—RFEHE - —_T—RF
1%%?;?7%2&%@&%&1%50
—NFERIHE -

T
‘ﬂﬂfb} X

NH



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R 2% Mt &

31 March 2016 —ZE—X<"F=A=+—H

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position

40. 72 BRI B B AR R AR

BRAARRRRIRE BRI BN R
BT :

of the Company at the end of the reporting period is as

follows:

2016 2015
—E-RE e
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FH& T FAETT
NON-CURRENT ASSET kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B R AMIEE 711,944 492,345
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Cash and cash equivalents e kReEED 1,540 664
CURRENT LIABILITY REBEE
Accruals FEEtEaE 244 454
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 1,296 210
TOTAL ASSETS LESS HWEER
CURRENT LIABILITIES R 713,240 492,555
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY kRBEE
Bond payables ERESH 13,997 =
Net assets BEFE 699,243 492,555
EQUITY R
Issued capital BT A 151,521 134,921
Reserves & 547,722 357,634
Total equity M AR 699,243 492,555

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2016



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R 2% Mt &

31 March 2016 —E—~"E=A=+—H

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 40. XD B BT FE AR R 3R (48)
THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: Htat
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RARREORENT
Share Capital Share
premium Capital  redemption option  Accumulated
account reserve reserve reserve losses Total
BB REER EhfiE SAHERE  BRERE 61 aE
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000

TARL TART TARL TARL TEL TATL

At 1 April 2014 RZZ-NENA-A 485,148 229,208 1,000 87,698 (434,543) 368,511
Loss for the year and FRERRENEE

total comprehensive BEAE

loss for the year - - - - (37,613) (37,613)
Equity-settled share DEREEZBRERS

option arrangements - - - 31,7% - 31,796
Share options lapsed and BB R R s 84

cancelled - - (119,494) 119,494

Repurchase of shares BERH (5,060) - 554 - (554) (5,060)

At 31 March 2015 and RZE-R1%=A=+—-H

1 April 2015 kZE-1%ERA-A 480,088 229,208 1,554 - (353,216) 357,634
Loss for the year and EREBBERENZE

total comprehensive BEAE

loss for the year - - - - (23,998) (23,998)
Equity-settled share IEHEE  BRERH

option arrangements = - = 18,667 - 18,667
Issue of shares BRG 200,860 - - - = 200,860
Share issue expense RHETER (5,441) = = - = (5,441)
At 31 March 2016 R-E-x"E=A=+-H 675,507 229,208 1,554 18,667 (377,214) 547,722
The Company’s capital reserve represents the excess of ARG EARFHBEREEERSEMESN
the net book values of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant M B A RIBREFEB E PRI AR 7B 31T
to the group reorganisation over the nominal value of the Rty EE R EE D ©
Company's shares issued in exchange therefor.
The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share BRERELEDE DB RITEERED
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further ATEE #E—PHFBRUBHREWF2.4
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payments BENRO N RO S HEANA - BEX
in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will either TEAS RO R T RSB ERDEE
be transferred to the share premium account when the related B - SR AE R AE fE o ok i )R U A B s s =

options are exercised, or be transferred to accumulated losses Z2xtEig -
should the related options expire or be forfeited.
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

41.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FTEMBL RS

SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are ARBIEBHBRARINERBOT -
as follows:
Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable
incorporation/ ordinary share/ to the Company
registration registered Direct Indirect
and operations paid-up capital KAFER
Name HMRY/ BRALER/ REFAL  Principal activities
£ AMREE LS EEaUE §3-t E# B IEEER
Fast Boom Holdings British Virgin US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Limited* Islands/Hong Kong (2015: US$1) REARRK
RRERERAA EREBRER /AR E
(Z%-5%:
1%7)
Richmind International Limited* British Virgin Uss1 100 - Investment holding
EREBBRAF Islands/Hong Kong (2015: US$1) REER
AREBRHE/BR [E3
(Z5-%F:
1%7)
Silver Base Investment Hong Kong HKS1 = 100 Trading of red wine
Development Limited Bk (2015: HK$1) TEES
RERBRRARAR 1%
(ZZ-1%:
A7)
Silver Base International Hong Kong HK$2 = 100 International distribution
Development Co. Limited G (2015: HK$2) of liuor and cigarette
BEARRERERARA 2B products
(Z2-1%: AREHERER
28T)

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited -
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41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 4. TEMB A RINERE (&)
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Percentage

of equity

Place of Issued attributable
incorporation/ ordinary share/ to the Company
registration registered Direct  Indirect
and operations paid-up capital KO EMR

Name gREL/ BRATTER/ REFEAL  Principal activities

£ EIES-$E REIE - E# B TEEE

SBTS* (i) PRC/Mainland China US$89,750,000 - 100 Distribution of liquor

REEZHER ORI () RE /R E R (2015: products in the Mainland

US$62,100,000) China market
89,750,000% T R BRI 5 B E
(Z2-1%:
62,100,000%7T)
Silver Base Wine & Spirit Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Distribution of Dimple
REFBERAR Ak (2015 Scotch Whisky
HK$10,000) BHENERRRALR
10,000/ 7T
(ZB-1%:
10,000 7¢)
Silver Base Wine & Spirit PRC/Mainland China HK$113,600,000 - 100 Distribution of liquor
(Shenzhen) Co. Ltd.* (i) BE /PR (2015; products in the Mainland
REFE (R BERAF() HK$113,600,000) China market
113,600,000 1T R BRI T 5 EHBER
(Z2-1F:
113,600,000 7T)
Shenzhen Silver Base PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 - 100 Distribution of liquor
Wine Kingdom Sales B/ PER L (2015: products in the Mainland
Management Co. Ltd.* (ii) RMB3,000,000) China market
RMIBERESR AR 3,000,000 R ER TGS HEER
HEERBRAF" (i) (ZZ-1%:
3,000,000 7¢)

& The statutory financial statements of these subsidiaries b ZEMBRARZEEMBRERILIEH
are not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or BB LKA BT & ok B R
another member firm of the Ernst & Young global EEMK B AREZ -
network.
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41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 41, TEMMB A RIMNERE (8)
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Notes: Hfat -

(i) Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under
PRC law.

(i) Registered as a private company with limited liability
under PRC law.

As disclosed in note 33(b), the Group has formed
the Partnerships with the Employees under the Trust
Agreement. Pursuant to the Trust Agreement, Mr.
Liang Guosheng held the 2% contributions and all of
his rights to and interests in each of the Partnerships
as a trustee of the Group, and solely followed the
instruction of the Company to exercise all powers and
authorities as the sole general and executive partner of

each of the Partnerships.

The principal terms of each of the 17 partnership
agreements (the “Partnership Agreements”) entered
into amongst Mr. Liang Guosheng and the Employees

are:

(1) Each of the Partnerships is contributed by Mr.
Liang Guosheng as to 2% and the Employees as
to 98%;

(2)  Mr. Liang Guosheng would act as the sole
general and executive partner of the Partnerships,
while the Employees would act as the limited

partners thereof;

(3) As the sole general and executive partner of
each of the Partnerships, the decision-making
power and financial and operating policies of
each of the Partnerships are controlled by Mr.
Liang Guosheng, who has the sole and absolute
control over the management and operation of

the Partnerships; and

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(4) The residual assets and liabilities of each of the
Partnerships are entitled by the Employees in
proportion to their contributions in each of the
Partnerships, and are limited to the amount of
their investment contributions. The remaining
residual assets and liabilities of each of the

Partnerships are entitled by Mr. Liang Guosheng.

As a result of the effects of the Trust Agreement
and the Partnership Agreements, the Partnerships
are accounted for as subsidiaries of the Company
for accounting purposes. The Company’s directors
confirmed that, based on the advice from the
Company’s PRC legal adviser, the Trust Agreement
and the Partnership Agreements are legally valid and

enforceable under PRC law.

Certain of the Partnerships and the Company’s
subsidiaries are dissolved during the year ended
31 March 2016, and the gain on the dissolution
of HK$186,000 (2015: loss of HK$150,000) was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss for the year. Up to 31 March 2016, 8 of the
Partnerships have been dissolved (2015: 5).

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company

principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial

which, in the opinion of the directors,
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on
27 June 2016.
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